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To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Commission, Members oflhe Public Utility Board ofTrustees and Citizens 
of the City of McAllen: 

State and local law requires that the City o f Me Allen publish annually a complete sel of audited financial statements. This 
report., the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report o f tile C ity ofMcAllen, is published to meet thai requirement for the 
fi scal year ended September 30, 2014. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the compleleness and reliabili!)' of the infomlation presented in this report, 
based upon a comprehensiYe interna l control framework that it has established for this purpose. S ince the cost ofintemal 
contro l shou ld nOI exceed amic ipaled benelils, Ihe objective is 10 provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance Ihal 
Ihe financial statements are free of any material misstatements. 

The finn of Grant Thomlon, L.L.P., Certified Public Accountants, was selected by the City 10 perfonn the audit and have 
issued an unmodified (,'clean") opinion on the City of McAllen's financial statements for the year ended September 30, 
2014. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the 
requirements of the Single Audit Act and OMS Circular A- 133. Generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
set forth in the Government Accountability Office's Governmenf Auditing Standards were used by the auditors in 
conducting the engagement. The auditors' report on the basic financial Sl8tements and required supplementary 
infonnat ion as well as the individual fund statements and schedules are included in the financial section of this report. 
The auditors' reports on internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations can be found in the single 
audit section of this repon. 

Management' s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors' report and provides a 
narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial st:Hemenls. MD&A complement this letter of 
transmina\ and should be read in conjunction with it. 

The City of McAllen is required 10 undergo an annual single Budit in confonni!), with the provisions of the Single Audit 
Act of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget 's Circu lar A- I », Audits o/Sfufe and LOCllI Govemmems 
and Non-Profit Organi=afions and Ihe State o/Texas Single Audil Circular. Information related to this single audit. 
induding a schedule of expendirures of federal and slate awards, the independent auditors' reports 00 internal controls 
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and a schedule of lindings and questioned costs are included in Ihe 
single audit s(,(lioo Of lhis report. 

PROFILE or THE: GOVERNMENT 

The City of McAllen, incorporated in 1911 and the largest city in Hidalgo County, is located at the intersection of U. S. 
Highway 83 and State Highway 336. It is approximately 230 miles south of San Antonio, 150 miles nonh of Monterrey, 
Nuevo Leon, Mexico, a City with a popUlation of over 5.9 million including the surrounding suburbs, and just 7 miles 
north of Reynosa, Tamps. Mexico. Within a ISO-mile radius of McAllen, its trade area represents approximately 10 
million people . According to the 20 I 0 census, McAJlen's estimated population was 129,877, increasing 23,463 or 22% 
over that of the 2000 census, 106,414. Using the latest census number as a new base, i( is est imated that as of September 
30,2013 and 20 14 the population has grown to \35,435 and 137,358 respectively. The City is empowered to levy a 
property tax on both real and business personal property located within its boundaries. The City also has the power by 
state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which it has done from lime to time, as deemed appropriate by 
the City Commission. 

The CilY has operated under the council-manager fomt of government since 19 11 . Policyrnaking and legislative authority 
is vested in the Ciry Commission, which currently consists of a mayor and B six-member commission. The City 
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Commission is responsible, among olher things, for passing ordinances, adopting Ihe budget, appointing comm inees and 
hiring Ihe City Manager, City Secretary, Po lice Chief, Fire Chief, the City Anomey and the Mlmicip.:1 1 Judges. The City 
Manager is responsible fo r carrying oUI the policies and ord inances of the City Comm ission, for overseeing Ihe day-to­
day operations of lhe City, and for appoi nting the heads of the City 's departments. The City Commission is elected on a 
non-panisan basis. In May 2000 the voters decided in favor of single member district representation . Under Ihis system, 
City Commission members are e lected to four-year staggered lenns with three elected every two years. The Mayor was 
and will conli nue 10 be eleeled at large 10 fou r-year tenns. 

The fi nancial reponing entity (the govemmeOl) includes " lithe funds of the primary govemm enl (i.e., the City of McA llen 
as lega lly defined). The City of McAllen prov ides a fu ll range of services including public safety (primarily police and 
fire prOiection), highways and Streets, health and welfare, recreational and cult ura l activities, water, se wer, sanilation and 
recyc ling services, a municipal golf course, a civic cenlcr, a convent ion center, an international airpon, illtennodal transi t 
lenninal, a transit system and IwO international toll bridge operations. 

The City acts in the Cflpac ity of fiduciary for the Firemen's Re lief and Retirement Fund , Deve loper's Fund, and 
Communications Group; there fore , Ihese activiti es are included in thc rcport ing entity. However, the McA llen 
Independent School Distri ct (MISD), McAllen Chamber of Commerce (MCC), McAllen Economic Development 
Corporation (MEDC), McA llen Affo rdable Homes ofSoUlh Texas, Inc., and Ihe Texas Munic ipal Reti rement System 
(TM RS) do not meet the established criteria for indusion in Ihe reporting ('nlily, and accordingly are excluded fiom Ihi s 
report. 

The Ciry Commission;s required 10 adopt a final budget by no laler than Ihe close ofltle fiscal year. This annual budget 
serves as the foundatio n for the City of McA llen financia l plallJling and control. The budget is prepared by fund, function 
(e.g., publ ic sa fety), and department (e.g., police). The legal level of control is al the department level. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

Over the lasl 15 10 20 years, the City's economy l\as undergone a significant rrans formation, characteri zed by a decreasing 
reliance on agricu lture. As a consequence of th is transformation, the City has experienced substantial economic growth 
that has spurred an increase in em pl oyment and a dec line in its unemployment rate despite brisk groW'l h in the labor 
force-until il began to experience a slowdo ....,o during Ihe last year period. Although the City's economy did nOI decline 
to the extent of lhal experienced by other c it ies, in bOlh Ihe nalion and to a lesser extent fhe state, it did present some very 
real challenges during Ihe budget process laSI year. wh ich pers isted, if not more difficult th.is year compared 10 the 15 
years prior. 

According to the Texas Workforce Commission, over the las! 10 years the McA llen-Edinburg-Mission MSA employment 
has grown &om 23 1,999 in 2004 to 284,640 in 20 14- a 22 .69% increase. At Ihis level, the unemploymenl TalC is 9.8%. 
Some of tile more signifiea", employmenT numbers by industry, include govem ment: trade, transpon8tion and utilities ; 
education and health services; and le isure and hospitality. 

The City'S locati on has posit ioned it \0 lake auvantage of The Maquili.ldora "Twin Plant" Program, under wh ich U.S. 
finns locate manufacturing facilities in Mexico accompanied by warehousing faci lities in McA llen's fore ign trade zone 
in order 10 cut labor coslS and remain competitive, has been responsible for a large part of the job grow'lh. Since 1988 
through 20 14, the latesl year ava ilable, wh ich on a calendar year basi s, the McAllen Economic Development Corporation 
has been responsible for bringing 307 new companies, whi ch including expansions, has cre<Hed 29,924 jobs in McA llen. 
Its efforts have also resulted in 357 new companies, which including expansions, has created 133,7 19 new jobs in 
Reynosa, Mexico. 

The impact of the North Amcrican Free Trade Agrecment (NA Ff"A), as it conti nues 10 develop, has also played a major 
role in increased trade with Mexico for the City as well as the State of Texas. Du ring 2013 Texas exponed $10 18 10 
Mexico, which represented over 36% of Texas' tOla l expons-making Mexico ils Number One Trading Panner. This 
new level of lrade represents a 39% increase from 2010. As NAFTA continues 10 marure, the City of McAllen's 
international 1011 bridge, connecting Hida lgo, Texas with Reynosa, v.'ill continue to faci litale trade between Mexico and 
the U. S.; and, more panicularly the City wilh its proximity to Mexico and strong social, economic and culrumJ ties with 
the people of Mexico. The Anzalduas International Cross ing also prov ides another bridge to conneCI the peoples of the 
U.S. and Mexico and facilil3le economic development opponunilies between Ihe fWO countries. 

The City'S uncmployment rate has declined 1.90% over the last 10 fiscal years wilh its unemployment rate, in the 5% 
range during 2005, rising to 7.5% in 2009, decreasing in 20 10 to 7.4%, incn:asing back up to 8.2% in 20 11 , decreasing 
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to 7.85 in 2012, before decreasing down to 6.9% in 20 13 and funherdown to 6.3% this year. Although the unen1ploymcni 
rate decreased due to job growth resulting from a decline in the unemployed while the labor market increased. 
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Another useful source of information for assessing the City'S economy is the McAllen Area Economic Pulse repon, 
published by the McAll en Chamber of Commerce. This year's report indicates a marginal im provement over last year. 
Accord ing to the latest Tepon available, August 20 14 , the economic index fOr the McAllen Area increased from 179.2 in 
August 20 13 to 183.3 in August 20 14 . This index re nects, for the McA llen area economy, an increase in reta il sales, an 
increase in lodging lax receipts, a irline board ing 's. motor vehicle purchases. conSlruction penn it va lues. and average 
home sales price although bridge crossings were dOwn. 

LONG·TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

As of September 30 ,20 14 the City'S General Fu nd unassigned fund balance amounted 10 $4 1.2M, which represent s 150 
days ofoperating expenses appropriated in nelil year's budget. This amount exceeds the City's 140 day policy. 

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES 

During this fiscal year, the City adopted no new financial policies, which wou ld have a significant impact on the curren( 
years financial statements. 

MAJOR [NITlATIVES 
For the Year 2013- 14 

The City's stalf, fo llowing spec ific directi ves of the City Commission and the City Manager, has been involved in a variety 
o(projects throughout the year. These proj ects refl ec t the Cit y's commitment of ensuring that its c itize ns are able to live and 
work in a highly des irable community and include the following: 

The goals adopted by the Mayor and City Co mmission for FY 201 3·1 4 as well as each' s status as follows: 

COlll inlfe 10 implemem City Business Plan 

)- Continue Incenti ve programs for "Destination" Retail Projects including La Pla~a Ma ll 
Management 's Rt'sponse: Completed agreement with Simon at La Plaza Mall for construction of Park ing 
Decks for 1300 cars. 

)- Public An to City 
Management's Response: Veteran 's Spire under construction for opening on Veteran's Day. Vaquero Statlle 
under construction for 20 15 installation at new Vaquero park site at Perlonning ans build ing. 
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:;;. 	 Continue to Market McA ll en-Miller Airpot1 for Additional fli ghts [0 Mexico and Domestic Mark.et 
Mflnagement's Response: Aerom.ar began night to Mexico City, San Luis Potosi began on November 2013, 
Completed SIXIL ai r service meeting with American United and working of Denver-McAllen non-stop service 
with airline. 

Complete City assets clITrenlly in design 

>- Phase One of Morris/Perez Park 
Management's Response: Installation of Irrigation system, trees and new IUrf completed. Phase II will 
commence this year. 

>- Complete construction on Airport Tenninal Expansion 
Management's Response : Construction 95% complete with a schedule completion date- February, 20 15. 
Landscape and lighting improvements underway with completion date for January 20 J5. 

}> 	 One-stop Development Center City bus iness affairs. 
Management' s Response: Deve lopment Center comp leted with departments fUIl ctional on 
Novem.ber 20 13. 

» 	Bent sen-Pecan to ) mile R~onSlTuclion 

Management 's Response: Roadway completed. Design completed for a l-likelB ike for construction in 
F.Y. 14- IS. 

>-	 Bicentennial: Nolana to Trenton and hi kelbike lrail 
Ma nagement's Response: Roadway completed and Hike/Sike Trai l completed. (MAS bui ld ing fat;ade revised 
and completed as well as an addi tion of left turn lane by widening bridge. 

Improve CifY TrofJicflow and Slorm Drainage 

>- Traffic Management Improvements 
Management's Response: Tra ffic Signal installati on comp leted on Business 83 and 15"', 16thand Main street; 
and 10'" and Wisconsin . 

? 	 Regional SlOnn wate r improvemen ts - Retiree Haven 

Management 's Res ponse: South McA llen site . Im provemen ts comple ted September 10 14. 


» 	Construction of storm water projects. 
Managemenl 's Respo nse: East McA llen site being acquired. 2 of 3 parcels purchased. Kendlewood: t911\ to 
22nd street completed. Design undcTWa}' for Qu ince & Redwood: 4911> to 5 1"" and Quince and NW Blue line to 
27(". 4llo &6llo: Harvey to Fern 75% complete. 

Leisure, Cullural and Enrertainmenl 

}- Begin design and financing plan ofperfonning Ans Center 
Management' s l{esponsc: Design development by Architects approved on 03/2 512013. Bond was approved 
November 5, 2013 for addi tional funding ofprojecl. 

". New Year's Bash. 
Management's Respo nse: Upgrade with Private Sector sponsor and moving it to Convention Ce nter. 

?- McA llen e il)' Marathon. 
Management's Res ponse: First Cil)' marathon held December 15, 2013 with next year scheduled on 
December t4, 20 14. 

>- MOlOrcross COllrse. 
Management 's Response: Received grant fTom Texas Parks and Wi ld li fe and will construct the courSe south 
of Airport nmway. 
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> Hike & Bike Trail on Bentsen Road. 
Management's Rtsponse: R.eceived grant from Texas Parks and Wildlife and will construCIThe trail from 
Pecan II) 3 Mile line. 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financ ia l 
Reponing to the CiIY for its comprehens ive annual financ ial report for the year ended September 30, 2013. This was the 
twenIY-seven consccutive year and Ihe rwenty-eight overall that the CiTy has received Ihis presligious award. In order to 
be awarded a Certificate of Achievement , the City published an eas ily readable and efficie ntly organized comprehensive 
annual financial repon. This report satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is va lid for a period of one year only. We believe ThaI our CUrTcnt comprehensive annual 
financial report contiJlues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the 
GFOA to detennine its eligibi lity for anOTher cenifieate . 

In addition, the City also received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual appropriated 
budget dated October 1,20 1 J. The budget for October 1,2014 has been submitted for review and notification of an award 
is awaited. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City's budget document is judged 
on proficiency in several categories including policy documentation, financial planning and organization. 

The preparation of this report cou ld not have been accomplished withOUT the efficient and dedicated services of the entire 
Finance Department stafT. Due credit also should be given to the Mayor, City Commission, McAllen Public Utilities 
Board of Trustees, the Bridge Board. Development Cocp Board and management for their interest and support in planning 
and conducting the operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~;trR~todf8~J Susan Lozano, CPA CGFO 
City Manager Interim-Finance Director 
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700 MUm SUetf, Suite 300 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIfIED PUBUC ACCOUNTANTS 
tbiston, TX 77002·2848 

T 832.476.3600 
f 1i3.6$s.874J 
GranlThor~, (om 

To the Honocable 1vIayor, Members of the City Commission 1onkd. ~a~tTho 'nlonUS 
twitter. ComtCrenlThor 1'II01IlIS 

and Public Utility Board of Trustees 
City of McAllen, Texas 

Report on the financial statements 

We bave audited the accompanying 6nancial Sl2tcmcnts of the governmenlal activities, the 
bwiness.rype activities, e2ch major fund. and the aggreg:ate remaining fund in(onn:uion of the 

City of McAllen, Texas (the "City'') as of and for the yeM coded Septembu 30, 2014, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which coUeccivdy comprise the City's basjc financial 

statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's responsibility for !.he ftnancial statements 
Management is rcspoDsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financiaJ statements 

in accordance with accQuming principles generally accepted in the United States o( America; this 

includes the design. implemenucion, and maimen:ance of incunaJ conttol rdevanl to the 

preparation and fair presentation of ftnancia1 st:l lemenlS !.hat are free from matcW.l mlsSUlemetlt, 
whether due to fraud or erroc. 

AudItor's responsibility 
Our .responsibility is to express opinions on these financial Statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards genera.l.ly accepted i.n the United States 

of America and the. standards applicable to financW a.udits conlAined in COlltnll'NtRI Akdi1ill,!. 

S/anMrdJ iuu~ by the CompttoUe.c Genen.J o( the United SUte.s. Those standards require thaI 
we plan lind pe..rfoml the 2Um! 10 obtain reasonable 2ssunmce abom whether the 6.na.ocial 
st:ltements ate free from material m,i'utatemenL 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain auctit evidence about the amounts and 
discJosUttS in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgment. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

sutemenr.s. wbelher due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessmena, the auditor 
considen internal control rdevant to the Cicy's prepar.uion and fair prescnunion of Lhe financial 

statements in o rder to design audit procedures lh:at are appcop.riat~ in the circumsl2nCes, but not 
for the purpose of expressing lin opinion on the effecuvef"\C$s of th~ City's internal control. 

Co .... ~_UJ' 

U.S._.... IlfIl<_~__ LI<l 
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Gra nt Thornton 

Accordingly, W~ express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of ~6c:ult accounting es ti.mates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presencuion of the financial sutements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriare 10 provide a 

basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 
In Que opinion, the financial su.tements referred to above present fairly, in all mueri.al respects, 

the respective financial pos.i tion of the govenunental activities, the business-type activi ties, each 

major fund, and the aggre~tc remaining fund infoanation o f the City o f McAllen, Texas as of 
September 30, 2014, and the respective chaoges in financial position and, when- appliC3ble, cash 

Dows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the 
D~dopment Corpor.ation Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
pMcp!ea generally accepted in the United Smtes of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1 th~ financial statementS, the City adopted new guidance in 2014 related 

to the accounting foe bond issuance costs as current pe.ciod expenses. O w: opinion is not 

modified with respect to tiUs matter. 

Other Manees 

Required supplement8/}' inlormaUon 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United StaleS o f Ameriu r«juice that the 
management discussion and analysis on pages 5 through 17, schedules of funding progress on 

pages 106 tJuough 108, be presented to supplernl"Ot the basic financial statements. Such 

infoonation, although not a required part o f the basic financial statwleQts, IS required by the 

Gov~enta.l Accounting Sandacds lloard who considttS it to be an essential part of financial 

reporting for pbcing the basic fin ancW statements in an appropriate operational. economic. o r 

histot"ic:al context. This required supplementary infonnation is the responsibility of management. 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the n:<iuired supplemeu tary information in 
acconbnce with auditing stanchrds gate.rally accepted in the United Suites of America. These 

lirr.i ted procedures consisted of inquiries of managemenl about the methods o f preparing the 

infocnation and comparing the infonnation fOr consistency with management's responses to our 

inquiDes, the basic financial sutdTI.ents, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 

the basic financial statements. We do n Ol express an opinion or p rovide any aSSlll'al1ce on the 

infonnaoon because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficientcvidtTlce to express 

an opinion or provide :ill}' asS'W1UlCe. 

Supplemantery Information 

Our audit was conducted foc the purpose of fanning opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining fund financial 

statements, individual budgct schedules and other, thc schedule of expenditures of federal 

0._ Thon\tO<Ill' 
u,S. ~' f..,.,oICtw~",-.._ u.! 
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awards, as required by the U.S. Offic~ of Management 2nd Budget Ciccu1ar A-I '33,Axdil.s ojSk1JeI, 
l..Jxa1 GtM11lnlnIfJ, tllld NOli-Pro/a O'l,aNi!;;,alioIlJJ and the schedule of ~dirurC'S of state awards 
as tl:'1uUed by the State of TeJ;lI.5 Single Audit Circula.t as listed in the table of contents are 

presented for purposes of additioru.1 analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 

statements. Such supplementary infonnation is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlyiog accounting and other records used to prepare 

the bas.ic financial statanents. The information has been subjected to the aucliting procedure~ 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures. These 

additional procedures included comparing and reconciling the information directly to the 
underlying accounting and o ther tttords used to prepare the basic financial statements or TO the 

b:u.ic fiJlllncial statements themsdve!, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of America. In our opinion, the 

supplementary infonrution is fairly stated, in all marerial rtspects, in rclation to the basic financial 

statements as a whole. 

Other inf()('mation 
The introductory section and SLatistical section as listed in th~ table of contenes a.r~ pr~sentcd for 

Purpolles ofadditional an21ysis and ar~ nm a r~quittd part of th~ basic financial s13ttrnen lS. Such 

infomution has not been subjected to the auditing procedure, applied in the audit o f the buic 

finmcial statements, llOd accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assw-ancc on 

it. 

Olhe( reporting required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with GovtmmrnIAMdilint,SllUuiarriJ, we have !Uso issued all( repon, dllted March 13, 

2015, on our cons.idention of the City's internal control over 6.oanoal reporting and on our tests 

of its compliance with certain provisions o f laws, regulation" conlmets, and gram agteenu:nlli 

and other maners. The purpose of thai report is to describe the scope of our tes ting of in ternal 

control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 

an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control ovC;( financial reporting or on compliance. 

That report is an integral part o f an audit performed in accordance with GOllmlmenl AliditiRt, 
SftJndord! in considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

w 
Houston, Texas 

March 13,2015 


~~fTt""lU' 
U.$ MtO'lCotr""oIGr~ r_~l'" 

- 3 ­



This page left intentionally blank 



City of McAllen, Texas 

Management Discussion and Analysis 


September 30, 2014 


This discussion and analysis is intended to provide an overview of the C ity 's financial performance for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 20 14 and the related effect on the City 's financial condition. Please 
read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter on pages i·v and Ihe City 's financial statements, which 
begin on page 19. 

FINANCIAL IDGIILlGIITS 

City's Change in Net Position - Governmental and Business·Type Activities 
Total govemment·wide net position decreased $4M as a result of thi s year's operations. Governmental 
activities decreased $8M with business-type activities contributing $4M. [n compliance with GASB 
Statement 65, $2M in issuance cost were restated to prior year's net position . 

• 	 Governmental Activities - Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year - Total revenues in 
the aggregate increased $4M over last year. The increases were in the following categories: 
property tax increased $2M, and other taxes and other general revenues increased by $IM each. 
Expenses increased $21M or 18% over last year, which is primarily as a result of const ruction 
projects during the year. The net increase is the resu lt of a $14M increase in genera l government, 
$4M increase in public safety, and $3M increase in cu lture and recreation . Highways and streets 
as well as health and welfare were unchanged from last year. 

• 	 Business-Type Activities - Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year - Tota l revenues 
reflected an increase of $6M from last year. Charges for serv ices increased by $2M, grants and 
contributions also increased by $2M, and $2M in proceeds from the sale of cap ital assets. 
Expenses increased $5M or 6.8% over last year with the more significant increases coming from 
the Sewer Fund-$lM; the Sanitation Fund-$lM; the McAllen Express Transit Fund-$l M; 
Convention Center Fund-$IM; McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund-$IM; 

• 	 City as a Whole - Revenues and Expenses Compared to Last Year - Governmental revenues 
reflected an increase of $4M and business·type activity revenues increased by $6M, thus 
generating revenues of $IOM or 4.9% more over last year while expenses increased by $26M or 
13.5% more than last year. 

USING TilE ANNUAL REPORT 

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Activities (on pages 19 and 20-21) provide information about the activities of the City as a 
whole and present a longer.tenn view of the City'S finances . Fund financial statements sta rt on page 22. 
For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were fLO anced in the short term as 
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in 
more detail than the govemment-wide statements by providing information about the City'S most 
significant funds. The remaining statements prov ide financ ial information about activities for which the 
City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of th ose outside of the government. 

Reporting the City IlS Il Whole 

The Statement of Net Position Ilnd the Statemeot of Activitie.s 

One of the central concerns in assessing any C ity 's finances could be summarized in the question, " Is the 

City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" Our ana lysis addreSSing this 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
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question begins on page 8-9. The analysis includes a condensed summary of the government-wide 
financial statements-The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which present 
infonnation about the City in a way that facilitates answering this question. These statements are 
presented much like the private-sector companies-including all assets and liabilities using the accrual 
basis ojaccounting. All revenues and expenses for the current year are reported without regard to when 
cash is received or paid. 

These government-wide financial statements report both net position and changes thereto. Net position is 
reported in the Statement of Net Position. The City's net position, which is the difference between assets 
and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, is one indicator of the 
City's financial we1J-being or financial position at one point in time. Increases or decreases to net 
position over a period of time is an indication whether its financial well-being is improving or 
deteriorating. Of course, other non-financial considerations enter into the detennination of the City's 
overall health, which would include such things as changes in the City's property tax base and the 
condition of its streets. 

Changes to net position are reported in the Statement of Activities, which divides all City functions into 
two categories: 

Governmental activities-Most of the City's basic services aTe reported in this category, which includes 
public safety (including police and fire), highways and streets, health and welfare, culture and recreation 
and general administration. These activities are primarily supported by sales and property taxes and 
franchise fees. 

Business-type activities---Certain services that the City provides are paid for from fees that are charged 
to customers. Water, sewer, garbage collection, civic center, convention center, golf course, airport, 
transit tenninal, transit services and the bridges are activities that are reported in this category. 

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 


OUf analysis of the City's major funds commences on page 11. The fund financial statements are 
presented on pages 22 through 49. These statements present detailed infonnation about the City's more 
significant funds as opposed to the City as a whole. Funds are established for various reasons-some are 
required by state law; others, by bond covenants. Some funds are established by the City Commission to 
assist in managing money that is to be spent for particular purposes. For example, the Community 
Development Block Grant Fund was established to demonstrate that the money received from the U. S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development was used for purposes established by the federal 
government. The City has two categories of funds, which can be used for public purpose-governmental 
and proprietary. Each category uses a different accounting approach. 

Governmental funds-Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds. These 
funds focus on the flow of money into and out of the funds and the balance left over at the end of the year 
that is available for future spending. Governmental funds use a method of accounting called modified 
accrual. The purpose of this method is to measure cash and other financial assets that can readily be 
converted to cash. This approach provides a detailed short-term perspective of the City's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. This view of the City's operations provides 
infonnation that helps to detennine the extent to which financial resources are available to spend in the 
near future to finance City programs. The relationship between these governmental fund financial 
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statements and the governmental activities column shown in the government-wide financial statements is 
shown in the fonn of a reconciliation presented on the page following each governmental fund financial 
statement. 

Proprietary funds- Services provided to either outside customers or to another unit of the City, where a 
fee is charged, are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported the same way 
that is used in the government-wide financial statements. Maner of fllct, the City's enterprise funds (a 
component of proprietary funds) are substantially the same as the business-type activities column of the 
government-wide financial statements but provide more detail including cash nows. The other 
companeOl of proprietary funds is internal serv ice funds. These funds are used to report services that are 
provided for other City funds-such as the Fleet and Materials Management Fund, which reports 
maintenance activities for all City vehicles. 

The City as Trustee 

Reporting the City's Fiduciary Responsibilities 

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Firemen 's Pension Fund, Developers ' Fund, Communications 
Group Fund and Payroll Fund. This activity is reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position 
and Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position on pages 50-5 1. These activities are not included 
with the City'S other government-wide financial information since the City cannot use these assets to 
finance its programs or operations. The City'S is responsible for ensuring that these funds are used for 
their intended purpose. 
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

The City's Condensed Net Position Informat ion is presented in the table be low. 

Net Position Informlltion 
(in Millions) 

Tolal 
Gove rnmenfal Bus iness-type Primary 

Activities Activities GDvemmenf 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 <01) 

Current and other assets $ 187 $ 154 $ 132 $ 136 $ )19 $ 292 

Capital assets 281 266 397 393 678 659 

Deferred outflows of resources 0.5 0.5 


Total assets and deferred 
outflows of resources $ 468 $ 420 $ 5'9 $ 529 $ 997 $ 951 

Long-tenn debt outs tanding $ 87 $ 34 $ 146 $ 150 $ <33 $ 184 
Other liabilities 16 24 15 11 31 39 
Deferred inflows of resources 12 12 

Total liabilit ies and deferred 
inflows ofresources 115 58 161 161 276 223 

Net pos ition: 

Net investment in capita l assets 261 2« 264 264 525 504 
Restricted <4 J3 55 50 79 83 
Unres tricted 68 85 49 56 11 7 141 

Total net pos ition $ 35) $ 362 $ 368 $ 37O $ 72 1 $ 728 

Net position of the City's governmenta l acti vities decreased by $9M or 2.2 1% over last year; primarily as 
a result of increase in net investment in capita l assets by $ 17M, with a corresponding decrease of $26M 
from restricted and unres tricted . Unrestricted net pos ition is the portion of net pos ition, which can be 
utilized to finance day-lo-day operations, free of any constraints established by debt covenants, enabling 
legis lation or other lega l requirements. 

The net position of the City 'S business-type actIvItIes decreased $2M or .50% less than last year's 
amount. Generally the City can only use thi s net position to finance continuing operations and capital 
expenses of the enterprise fund s. 

The table on the following page presents more detail on revenues and expenses. 
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Changes in Net Position Information (in Millions) 
Total 

Governmental Business·type Primary 

Ac ti vi ties Activities Govemment 
2014 2013 20!4 2013 201' 20D 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 9 $ 9 $ 7. S 72 $ 83 $ 81 
Grants and contributions 8 8 10 8 18 16 

General revenues; 

Property taxes 35 33 35 l3 
Sales tax 61 61 61 61 
Other taxes 12 11 12 11 
Proceeds from sale ofcapita l asse 2 2 
Other general revenues 3 2 4 3 

Total revenues 128 124 87 81 215 205 

Program expenses 
General government 35 21 35 21 
Public safety 58 54 58 5. 
Highways and streets 20 20 20 20 
Health and welfare 5 5 5 5 
Culture and recreation 21 18 21 18 
Interest on long lenn debt I 
Water 17 17 17 17 
Sewer 15 14 15 I. 
Sanitation 16 15 16 15 
Golf 

Transit !ennina! I 1 
Su, 4 3 4 3 
Civic center 
Convention center 6 5 6 5 
Airport 7 7 7 7 
Anzalduas international crossing 5 5 5 5 
McAllen Int.'] toll bridge 7 6 7 6 

Total expenses 

Excess (Loss) before tran s feT'S 

Trans rers 

140 

( 12) 

4 

119 

5 

2 

79 

8 

(4) 

74 

7 

(2) 

219 

(4) 

193 

12 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 
Restatement of beginning net posit 

(8) 

361 

7 

354 

4 

366 
(2) 

5 

361 

(4) 

727 
(2) 

12 

715 

Ne t position , end in g $ 353 $ 361 $ 368 $ 366 $ 72 1 $ 727 
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Total revenues generated from both governmental and bus iness·type activit ies this year amounted to 
$2 15M, represenling an increase of $ 1 OM or 2.44% over lasl year due primarily 10 charges for services, 
property taxes, and granls and contributions. Sales tax rema ined flat, which was offset by an increase of 
$ IM in olher taxes. Expenses came in at $2 19M, $26M more or 13% over last year, leaving -$4M as a 
decrease 10 net pos ition. T he following ana lysis considers separately the operations of govemmen!al and 
business-type ac tivities. 

Governmental Activities 

Total revenues generated from govemmental activities this year amo unted to $128M. Expenses came in 
at $140M, leaving -SI2M as a decrease before transfers -in of$4M, thu s decreasing net position by 
-$8M. 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $140M. However, as shown on the Statement of 
Activities on pages 20-21, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through 
taxes and other general revenues was S124M. The othe r $ 16M to finance these programs was paid by 
those who directly benefi ted from them ($9M) and by other governments that subs idized certain programs 
with grants ($7M). 

The table below presents the cost ofeach oCthe Ciry's five largest programs as well as each program's net 
cost (total cost less revenues generated by the activ it ies). The net cost shows the financial burden that 
was placed on the C iry 's taxpayers by each of these f1 111ctions. 

Governmenta l Activities 
(in Millions) 

Total Cos t 
of Services 

2014 2013 

Net Cos t 
of Services 

2013 2013 

Police 
Fire 
SU-eel mainlenace 
Pari<s 
Drainage 

$ 33 
19 
10 
13 
J 

$ 32 
17 
9 
6 
3 

$ 25 
19 
10 
12 
J 

$ 26 
17 
3 
6 
2 

TOlal $ 78 $ 67 $ 69 $ 54 

Business-rype Ac(jvities 

Total revenues generated from bus iness-type activities this year amounted to $87M. Expenses came in at 
S79M leaving S8M before transfers out of $4M, which. resulted in a net increase to net position of $4M, 
before a restatement of 2M 10 the prior year. The reSlaiement was the result of removing $2M issuance 
cost. 
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More details will be provided about governmental and business-type activities' operations later in this 
discussion and anftlysis. 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - A Deta iled Disc ussion 
(General F und , Specia l Revenue Funds, Debt Service F und and Capita l Project F und s) 

As a resu lt of th is year's operations, governmemal funds (as reflected in the ba lance sheet on page 22-23) 
combined fllnd ba lance tota led $ 129M or an increase of $42M from last year. Current revenues, 
including net rransfers in , were sufficient to cover current expenditures. lhus, result ing in an i_ncrease to 
nel assets by $42M. 

Revenues and Tra nsfers-In a nd Other Financing Sources 

The following table presents a summary of genera l fund, special revenue funds , debt service fund and 
capital projects runds revenues and transfers-in and other financing sources for the years ended September 
30,2014and2013. 

Revenues, tran sfers -in 
and Other Financing So u 

20 14 
Amo unt 

%of 
Total 

20 13 
Amoun t 

All)()unt of 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

% 
In crease 

(Decrease) 

T=, 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovemmental 
Olarges for services 
Fines and forfeitures 
Investment income 
Mis ce llaneous 
proceeds from capita l debt 
Tra nsfers·in 

$ 107,695,530 
1,447,7 12 
7,376,849 
5,220,385 
2,556,904 

739.885 
1,784,5 18 

57.723,908 
18,703, 155 

52.99% 
0.71% 
3.63% 
2.57% 
l.26% 
0.36% 
0.88% 

28.40"/0 
9.20% 

$ ) 05,293,773 
) ,429.150 
6,782,63) 
5,279,159 
2,548,733 

69,628 
2, 101,208 

22,353 ,826 

$ 2,40 ),757 
18,562 

594,2 18 
(58,774) 

8,)71 
670,257 

(316,690) 
57,723,908 
(3,650,671) 

2.28% 
1.30% 
8.76% 

-1.1 1% 
0.32% 

962.63% 
-15.07% 

NIA 
-16.33% 

To tals $ 203,248,846 I OO'()()o/o $ 145,858, 108 $ 57,390,738 39.35% 

The $2.4M increase in taxes is primar ily an increase in property lax of $400K and an increase of $2M in 
hotel and venue tax due to an approved 2% rate increase (from 7% to cr/o). Licenses and permi ts and 
charges fo r services were relatively flat. The increase of $8K in fines and forfeitures was largely due to 
increased collection efforts. Funding from federal and state assistance increased marginally this year as 
reflected in intergovemmental revenues' categol}'. Investment eamings also reflect a substantial increase 
as compared to last year. The decline of $3 17K in the misce llaneous category is a result of a decrease in 
severa l miscellaneous items and grant funding requests. The decrease of $4M in transfers-in was the 
resu lt ofa decrease of transfers from the General Fund for funding capital improvement projects. 
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Expenditures and Transfers-O ut 

The following table presents a summary of general fund, specjal revenue funds, debt service fund and 
capital projects fhod s expenditures, transfers-out for the years ended September 30, 20 14 and 20 13. 

Elq:>enditu res and 

Transfers-out 

20 14 

Amount 

%of 

To ta l 

20 13 

Amount 

Amo unt of 

In crease 

(Decrease) 

% 

Inc rease 
(Decrease) 

Genera l government 

Public safety 

Highways and s treets 

Health and welfare 

Cultu re and recreation 

Debt service: 

Principa l 

lnteres l and fISca l 

charges 

Transfers-OUI 

$ )6,3 18,600 

58,295,032 

17,311 ,957 

4,563,154 

27,296,284 

2,765,000 

774,407 

13,544,283 

22.58% 

36.24% 

10.76% 

2.84% 

16.97% 

1.72% 

0.00% 

0.48% 

8.42% 

$ 21,%7,597 

52,646,894 

21.573,945 

5.208,427 

22, )24,895 

2,645,000 

896,365 

20,697,182 

$ 14,35 1,003 

5,648, 138 

(4,26 1,988) 

(645.273) 

5,171,389 

120,000 

( 121.958) 

(7, 152.899) 

65.33% 

10.73% 

-19.76% 

-1239% 

23.37% 

4.54% 

-13.61% 

-34.56% 

Totals $ 160,868.717 100.00% $ 147.760,305 $ 13,108,412 8.87% 

The increase of S l3. 1 M in to ta l expenditures was primarily due 10 an increase of $ 14.6M in genera l 
government , $5 .6M in public safety, as well as culture and recreat ion functions, $S.2M, offset by a 
decrease ofS4.3M in highways and streets and a decrease of$645K in health and welfa re. Add itionally, 
expenditures slightly inc reased in : princ ipal payments-Sl 20K a nd decreased in interest and fi scal 
payments-SI22K . As indicated , transfe rs-o ut decreased by $7. 1 M compared to last year-primarily due 
10 a decrease of transfers: from General Fund-$S.9M to Ca pital Improvement Fund; from C ivic Center 
and Convention Center Funds-$I.OM to Capital Improvement Fund; and to a lesser extent S 300K 
wjthjn govemmental funds. 

Fund Balances 

The governmental fund ba lances increased by $42M, from $87M in the prior year to $129M in the current 
year, which is anributed to the general obligation and certificate of obligation proceeds received for street 
improvements, sports facility complex, and the new Performing Arts faci li ty. Fu nd balances by major 
funds nre discussed below. 
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General Fund 

As a result of th is year's operations, tota l fund balance decreased by $45K- to $43.8M. Fund ba lance 
categories renect S2. 1 M in non-spendable, $447K in restricted, leaving $4 1 M unassigned. During fi scal 
year 1997-98, the City adopted, by resolution, a financial policy requiring a minimum of 140 days of 
operating expenses in fund balance. Based upon next year's operating budget, exclusive o f capital outlay 
and transfers-out, unassigned fund balance represents 150 days, which is 10 days in excess of the 
minimum requirement. 

Development Corp Fund 

The fund balance in the Development Corporat ion Fund reflected a decrease of $9.8M, leav ing the ending 
restricted fund ba lance at $15M . 

Capital Improvement Fund 

The Capita l Improvemen t Fu nd ended the year with a net decrease, amounting to $4.4M, leaving the 
assigned fund balance at $4.7M. 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

(Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds) 


Enterprise Funds 

The City's enterprise operations consist of the McAllen Public Utility (Water and Sewer Funds). 
Sanitation Fund. Palm View Golf Course Fund, Transit Terminal Fund, McA ll en IntemntionaJ Civic 
Center Fund, McAllen Convenfion Center, McAllen Internationa l Airport Fund, McA llen Express Transit 
Fund, McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund and the Anzalduas International Crossing Fund. III the 
aggregate, the proprietary funds reported a $4M increase to net position. Of that amount, the Water and 
Sewer Funds accounted for approx imately -$200K; the SaniTation Fund, $JM; the McA llen International 
Airport, $3M: !.he McA llen Intemalional Toll Bridge's, $ 1 M. The Convent ion Center Fu nd, the 
Anza lduas rntemational Cross in g, and non-major proprietary funds combined generated a neT decrease 
amounting to SIM. 

MCAlleo Public UtillHes (MPU) - Water and Sewer Funds 

Waler Fund 
Operating revenues decreased by 2.6% as compared to last yea r. With ope rating expenses held to last 
year's tota ls, the decrease to net posit ion amounted to $IAM. Combine Water and Sewer Fund working 
capital is in excess of the board po licy of 120 days of operating expenses. 

Sewer Fund 

Since sewer revenues are impacted by water consumptions and as noted above, operating revenues 
increased by 1% from last year. Opemting expenses increased 12% over last year. mainly due to an 
increase in depreciation. The net im pact to net position was an increase of $1 .2M, leav ing combined 
Water and Sewer Fund working cap ital in excess of the board policy of 120 days of operati ng expenses. 
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Sanitation Fund 

This year's operating revenues, representing charges for services, s lightly increased $230K or 1.4% over 
prior year, which primarily represents a sma ll increase in growth in the customer base. As a whole, 
operating expenses increased $68 1 K or 5% over last year-leaving an operating income of $ 1.4M. The 
effect of non-operating revenues and ca pital con tributions were minimal. Consequently, the net position 
increased by $1.2M. Working capita l as of year-end amounted to $9.4M. 

Co nventio n Center Fuod 

Operating revenues were $2.2M and operating expenses we re $5.6M, leaving an operating loss of$3.4M, 
which was partia lly covered by transfers-in from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund in the amount of $2.4M 
and $1.8M in ga in from sa le of capi tal assets leaving a decrease in net position of $1.3M, after a transfer 
out of $2.0M. Working capital is now reported at $2. 1 M. 

McAllen International Airpor1 Fund 

Operating revenues margin ally increased thi s year by 9% from last year's levels. Operating expenses 
increased by 9%. As a result, the loss amounted to $1 .5M before capital contributions and transfers out. 
Capital contributions from the Passenger Faci li ty Charge as well as the FAA amounted to $5.6M. 
Transfers-out to the C ity amolillted to $ IM to reimburse for public safety personnel assigned to the 
Airport. As a resu lt, nn increase in net position of $3M is reported. This years' working capital is 
reflected at $S.4M, not considering liabilities payab le from restricted assets, which are included in current 
liabilities. 

McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund 

The table in the following page reflects four types of cross ings for 2013, as well as 2012. With the 
exception of truck crossings, all other categories reflect decreases. 

Increase % Increase 
Catego!! FY 13-14 FY 12-13 (Decrease~ (Decrease) 

ea" 2,834,249 2,908, 166 (73,9 17) -2.50010 
Trucks 13,075 9. 11 9 3,956 43.40010 
Buses 19,933 16, 160 3,773 23.30% 
Passe ngers in cars 7,085.623 7,270,4 15 (184 ,792) -2.500.10 

Despite a decline in southbound car crossings of 74K or 2.5%, revenues came in at $ 1 O.6M or a sl ight 
increase ofS373K over last year. Renta l and other income remained re lati vely nat. Operating expenses 
increased slightly by $ 180K over last year. After considering all o ther non-operating revenues and 
expenses, changes in this year's increase in net position totaled $1.OM. 

Net pos ition, and its components, over lime serve as a meaningful measure of the Bridge's financia l 
position. The Bridge' s assets exceed liabi lities by S32M at Septembe r 30, 20 14 . Working capital, not 
considering liabilities payable from restricted assets, which are included in c urre nt liabilities, at year end 
amounted to $ 1.4M. 
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An1..alduas International Crossing 

The table below reflects four types of crossings for 2014, as well as 2013. With the exception of truck 
crossings, all other categories of crossings reflect increases. 

Increase % Increase 
Category FY 13-14 FY 12-13 ~Decrease) (Decrease2 

Can; 950,143 933,694 16,449 1.80% 
Trucks 859 960 (101) -10.52% 
Buses 1,922 4,417 (2,495) -56.50% 
Passengers in cars 2,375,358 2,334,235 41,123 1.76% 

Southbound car crossings increased 16K or 2.0% with revenues coming in at $3.0M or a slight increase of 
$165K over last year. Operating expenses increased slightly by $48K over last year. After a transfer in 
of$947K and implementation ofGASB Statement 65, the change in net position was a negative $543K. 
This resulted in an ending net position deficit of $700K. 

Unrestricted net position is reflected as a deficit in the amount of $14.8M, largely the consequence of 
advances made to it by the McAllen International TaU Bridge Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

During the year the City Commission amended the budget several times. The increase from the original 
appropriations to the final budget appropriations was approximately $1.5M. This increase was primarily 
to cover: personnel services-$643K; miscellaneous services-$507K; and another $350K for other 
agencIes. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capilal Assets 

AI the end oflhe fiscal year, the City had $678M in net capital assels. 

Capital Asse ts at Year-end 
(Net ofOepreciation, in Millions) 

Total 
Govemmenlal Business-Iype Primary 

Activ ities Activ ities (bvemme nl 
70 t4 2013 20 t4 2013 20 14 2013 

Land $ 59 $ 49 $ 21 $ 21 $ 80 $ 70 
Buildings and improvements 90 92 301 276 391 368 
Equipment 22 21 19 18 41 39 
Infrastruclure 86 90 86 90 
Construction in progress 24 13 49 64 73 77 
Capita lized interest 1 8 1 8 
Water rights 6 6 6 6 

Totals $ 281 $ 265 $ 397 $ 393 $ 678 $ 658 

This year's major additions included the following projects (in millions): 

Ciry hall improvements $ I 

Public safety building improvements 2 

Street projects financed by the City directly and dedicated by developers 2 

Drainage projects 2 

Water and sewer improvement project s 7 

Airport projects 2 


Total m 
For more detailed infonnation on capital asset activity, refer to the notes to financial statements (refer to 
pages 75 and 77). 
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Debt 

AI the end of the fi scal year, the City had $2 12M in bonds outstanding-as shown in the fo llowing table: 
Outstanding Debt aI Year-end 

(in Millions) 
Total 

Go..emmentaJ Business-type Primary 
Activities Activities Go-..ernmenl 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 201 3 

General/ce rti ficate of obi igation 
bonds/note (backed by the City) $ 3 I $ 22 $ $ 3 I S 22 
Re\'€nue bonds backed by 

Specific tax and fee revenues 42 139 146 181 146 

Totals S 73 $ 22 $ 139 $ 146 $ 2 12 $ 168 

For more detailed infonnation on long term debt activity, refer to the notes to financial statements (refer 
10 page 90). 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

During the budget process for fiscal yea r 20[4-15 the elected and appointed officia ls considered many 
factors including the fo rces dri ving th e economy- among w hich we re s lowing of j ob growth, lack of 
growth in new housing, bank deposits, reta il sa les growth, the unemployment rate, and innation. AS:1 
resu lt of the deliberations, within the Genera l Fund, revenues budgeted to increase from this year's actual 
by $2.43M or more than 3%. Expenditures were budgeted with a $ 1.1M increase or 2% over thi s year's 
actua l. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

Thi s financial report is designed to inform the citizens, taxpayers and custome rs of the City ofMcA[len as 
well as its investors and creditors about the City's finances and to provide accountability for the public 
support that it receives. If yo u have any questions about the report or need additional financial 
information, contact the Finance Director's Office at the City of McA llen, 1300 Houston, McAllen, Texas 

,
7850~ 
~y&q

Roel~ , 
C ity Manager 

s~,~

Interim·Finance Director 
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Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

 

ASSETS

Cash 1,717,022$                     3,450,126$                 5,167,148$                   

Certificates of deposits 47,203,040 2,380,140 49,583,180

Investments 116,909,536 25,734,747 142,644,283

Receivables, net 20,023,506 6,840,475 26,863,981

Internal balances (1,821,872) 1,821,872 -

Inventories - 487,373 487,373

Notes receivable - 168,702 168,702

Restricted assets:

 Cash - 1,599,305 1,599,305

 Investments - 84,116,419 84,116,419

 Receivables - 3,684,885 3,684,885

 Due from governments - 1,150,390 1,150,390

Capital assets not being depreciated:

 Land 59,311,047 21,027,005 80,338,052

 Construction in progress 24,504,725 49,439,369 73,944,094

  Water rights (perpetual) - 4,923,100 4,923,100

  Goodwill - 609,713 609,713

Capital assets being depreciated:

  Buildings and systems 84,276,241 273,844,906 358,121,147

  Equipment 79,809,206 55,869,714 135,678,920

  Improvements 48,760,671 220,276,078 269,036,749

  Infrastructure 201,402,089 - 201,402,089

  Water rights - 2,200,000 2,200,000

    Accumulated depreciation (216,429,855) (231,150,144) (447,579,999)

Other long term assets 1,918,716 - 1,918,716

Deferred outflows of resources-

  Deferred charges on refundings - 611,692 611,692

 Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 467,584,072$                 529,085,867$              996,669,939$               

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 4,539,631$                     11,730,590$               16,270,221$                 

Unearned revenues 583,633 2,331,756 2,915,389

Other 8,028,241 388,149 8,416,390

Non-current liabilities:

 Due within one year 9,966,653 7,847,805 17,814,458

 Due in more than one year 77,549,157 139,009,638 216,558,795

 Net pension obligation 1,131,455 - 1,131,455

 Net OPEB obligation 814,623 - 814,623

Deferred inflows of resources 12,332,889 - 12,332,889

 Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 114,946,282 161,307,938 276,254,220

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 261,002,031 263,527,417 524,529,448

Restricted for:

  Economic development 15,189,766 - 15,189,766

  Capital projects - 44,221,773 44,221,773

  Federal and state grant awards 4,458,546 - 4,458,546

  Hotel-Tourism 1,994,638 - 1,994,638

  Parks 963,184 - 963,184

  Debt service 296,800 5,405,400 5,702,200

  Distribution of net surplus revenues - 5,148,916 5,148,916

  Other purposes 430,720 - 430,720

  Unrestricted 68,302,105 49,474,423 117,776,528

Total net position 352,637,790 367,777,929 720,415,719

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 467,584,072$                 529,085,867$              996,669,939$               

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION  

 September 30, 2014

 

Primary Government
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Expenses
Charges for 

Services
Operating Grants 
and Contributions

Capital Grants 
and Contributions

Functions/Programs

   Governmental activities:

     General government 35,315,069$         1,918,951$             1,251,467$             -$                            

     Public safety 58,432,712 4,366,315 500,492 3,119,278

     Highways and streets 20,457,888 1,160,689 160 2,035,699

     Health and welfare 4,604,866 271,722 970,755 -

     Culture and recreation 20,996,431 1,213,111 13,726 148,458

     Interest on long-term debt 816,650 - - -

     Total governmental activities 140,623,616 8,930,788 2,736,600 5,303,435

   Business-type activities:

     Water services 17,474,327 15,689,054 - 90,369

     Sewer services 15,251,999 14,976,046 - 1,194,153

     Sanitation services 15,756,027 16,968,558 - -

     Golf course services 1,401,051 1,152,130 - -

     Civic center services 438,233 357,716 - -

     Convention center services 5,591,643 2,105,417 - -

     Airport services 7,385,213 5,771,738 - 5,638,758

     Transit services 965,054 142,420 1,125,504 1,597,244

     Bus services 3,973,485 984,508 462,295 -

     Bridge services--Anzalduas bridge 4,558,948 3,053,711 - -

     Bridge services--Toll bridge 6,530,689 12,694,038 - -

       Total business-type activities 79,326,669 73,895,336 1,587,799 8,520,524

Total primary government 219,950,285 82,826,124 4,324,399 13,823,959

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

   Franchise taxes

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 

Program Revenues

General revenues:

   Property taxes

   Hotel occupancy tax

   Sales taxes

            Change in net position

 Net position - at beginning of year, as restated

 Net position - ending

   Unrestricted investment earnings

   Royalties

   Sale of Property

   Miscellaneous

Transfers

          Total general revenues and transfers
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Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities Total

(32,144,651)$        -$                          (32,144,651)$        

(50,446,627) - (50,446,627)

(17,261,340) - (17,261,340)

(3,362,389) - (3,362,389)

(19,621,136) - (19,621,136)

(816,650) - (816,650)

(123,652,793) - (123,652,793)

- (1,694,904) (1,694,904)

- 918,200 918,200

- 1,212,531 1,212,531

- (248,921) (248,921)

- (80,517) (80,517)

- (3,486,226) (3,486,226)

- 4,025,283 4,025,283

- 1,900,114 1,900,114

- (2,526,682) (2,526,682)

- (1,505,237) (1,505,237)

- 6,163,349 6,163,349

- 4,676,990 4,676,990

(123,652,793) 4,676,990 (118,975,803)

35,037,958 - 35,037,958

5,343,765 - 5,343,765

61,331,004 - 61,331,004

6,707,787 - 6,707,787

944,609 467,440 1,412,049

938,877 - 938,877

- 2,098,640 2,098,640

718,857 288,076 1,006,933

4,158,872 (4,158,872) -

115,181,729 (1,304,716) 113,877,013

(8,471,064) 3,372,274 (5,098,790)

361,108,854 364,405,655 725,514,509

352,637,790$       367,777,929$       720,415,719$       

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position

Primary Government
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General
Development 

Corp.

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

 Cash 370,496$              63,402$                

 Certificates of deposit - 975,100

 Investments 44,390,879 14,585,069

 Receivables, net:

  Taxes 11,916,253 2,554,971

  Accounts 1,789,882 28,750

  Accrued interest 98,516 29,694

  Other 652,639 -

 Due from other funds 1,156,673 -

 Due from other governments 49,315 -

 Prepaids 51,826 -

 Advances to other funds 190,000 -

 Board advances 1,918,717 -

  Total assets 62,585,196$         18,236,986$         

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Liabilities:

 Accounts payable 3,216,028$           1,285,781$           

 Accrued liabilities 3,076,870 398,616

 Due to other funds - -

 Unearned revenues 566,325 -

 Advances from other funds - -

 Other 943,224 -

 Total liabilities 7,802,447 1,684,397

Deferred inflows of resources 10,952,968 1,358,215

  Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 18,755,415 3,042,612

Fund balances:

 Nonspendable 2,160,543 -

 Restricted 447,859 15,194,374

 Committed - -

 Assigned - -

 Unassigned 41,221,379 -

 Total fund balances 43,829,781 15,194,374

  Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances 62,585,196$         18,236,986$         

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 September 30, 2014
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Capital 
Improvement

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

452,875$              486,713$              1,373,486$           

700,000 44,217,820 45,892,920

5,002,685 31,093,941 95,072,574

- 21,706 14,492,930

- 394,925 2,213,557

11,839 33,179 173,228

4,244 600 657,483

- - 1,156,673

1,607,213 509,703 2,166,231

- - 51,826

352,716 - 542,716

- - 1,918,717

8,131,572$           76,758,587$         165,712,341$       

1,240,117$           2,539,881$           8,281,807$           

119,510 446,551 4,041,547

- 729,541 729,541

- 17,308 583,633

2,035,009 190,000 2,225,009

- 7,085,017 8,028,241

3,394,636 11,008,298 23,889,778

- 21,706 12,332,889

3,394,636 11,030,004 36,222,667

- - 2,160,543

- 64,336,217 79,978,450

- 387,626 387,626

4,736,936 1,004,740 5,741,676

- - 41,221,379

4,736,936 65,728,583 129,489,674

8,131,572$           76,758,587$         165,712,341$       
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Total governmental fund balances (refer to page 23)  129,489,674$     

266,574,111        

franchise taxes-$5,406,299; weed and lot cleaning-$769,336; others; $661,185; and Mission repay-
ment on Series B Bridge bonds, $1,918,717. 12,332,890           

34,295,945           

(90,054,830)        
($814,623), and net OPEB obligation, ($1,131,455).

Net position of governmental activitie  352,637,790$     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in 
the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and therefore are deferre
in the funds.  The amount consists of the following:  property taxes-$3,577,352; sales and

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as fleet 
management and insurance, to individual funds.  The assets and liabilities of certain internal service funds 
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore a
not reported in the funds, including unpaid compensated absences, ($10,270,983), sales tax revenue
bonds payable, ($100,000), accrued interest, ($625,208),  certificate of obligations, ($30,845,000),
general obligations, ($42,380,000), premium, ($3,887,561), Firemen's pension obligation, 

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of the Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
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General
Development 

Corp

REVENUES

Taxes 87,011,170$          15,332,751$          

Licenses and permits 1,432,814 -

Intergovernmental 774,044 -

Charges for services 4,034,571 -

Fines and forfeitures 1,580,780 -

Investment earnings 313,838 120,876

Net increase (decrease)  in the fair value of investments 69,455 41,551

Other 1,284,641 1,153

Total revenues 96,501,313 15,496,331

EXPENDITURES

Current:

 General government 19,274,383 13,219,392

 Public safety 51,596,339 69,001

 Highways and streets 12,318,457 784,839

 Health and welfare 2,090,442 1,501,957

 Culture and recreation 16,550,251 5,116,189

 Debt service:

  Principal - 25,000

  Interest and fiscal charges - 6,444

 Total expenditures 101,829,872 20,722,822

 Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (5,328,559) (5,226,491)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,790,207 636,884

  Transfers out (4,507,424) (5,224,304)

  Issuance of debt - -

  Bond premium - -

  Net other financing sources (uses) 5,282,783 (4,587,420)

  Net change in fund balances (45,776) (9,813,911)

Fund balances at beginning of year 43,875,557 25,008,285

Fund balances at end of year 43,829,781$          15,194,374$          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Capital 
Improvement

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

-$                           5,351,609$            107,695,530$        

- 14,898 1,447,712

1,562,399 5,040,406 7,376,849

- 1,185,814 5,220,385

- 976,124 2,556,904

38,178 129,790 602,682

26,194 3 137,203

94,715 404,010 1,784,519

1,721,486 13,102,654 126,821,784

1,408,546 2,416,279 36,318,600

691,009 5,938,683 58,295,032

2,895,568 1,313,093 17,311,957

- 970,755 4,563,154

2,323,242 3,306,603 27,296,285

- 2,740,000 2,765,000

- 767,963 774,407

7,318,365 17,453,376 147,324,435

(5,596,879) (4,350,722) (20,502,651)

1,150,000 7,126,064 18,703,155

- (3,812,555) (13,544,283)

- 54,230,001 54,230,001

- 3,493,907 3,493,907

1,150,000 61,037,417 62,882,780

(4,446,879) 56,686,695 42,380,129

9,183,815 9,041,888 87,109,545

4,736,936$            65,728,583$          129,489,674$        
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Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds (refer to page 27) 42,380,129$           

6,703,437               

386,127                   

2,765,000               

(1,158,265)              

(1,823,585)              

(57,723,907)            

Change in net position of governmental activities (8,471,064)$            

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of activities the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.  This is the 
amount by which capital outlays $21,104,192 exceeded depreciation, net of  depreciation ($14,400,755) in 
the current period.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as 
revenues in the funds.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and 
therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds of which ($848,144) is compensated 
absences, ($521,772) accrued interest expense, bond amortization expense, $479,518, and ($267,867) 
Firemen's Fund net pension obligation.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as fleet 
management and insurance, to individual funds.  The net revenue (expense) of certain internal service funds 
reported with governmental activities.

Certificates of obligations, ($11,850,000), premium, ($464,567),  general obligations, ($42,380,000), and 
premium, ($3,029,340), provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt 
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended September 30, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

REVENUES

 Taxes:

 Property 34,482,076$      34,482,076$      34,305,130$      (176,946)$          

 Sales 47,479,064 47,479,064 45,998,253 (1,480,811)

 Franchise 6,514,000 6,514,000 6,707,787 193,787

  Total taxes 88,475,140 88,475,140 87,011,170 (1,463,970)

Licenses and permits:

 Business licenses and permits 55,750 55,750 58,693 2,943

 Occupational 252,225 252,225 257,062 4,837

 Non-business licenses and permits 1,139,150 1,139,150 1,117,059 (22,091)

  Total licenses and permits 1,447,125 1,447,125 1,432,814 (14,311)

Intergovernmental revenues:

 State shared revenues 560,000 560,000 774,044 214,044

  Total intergovernmental revenues 560,000 560,000 774,044 214,044

Charges for services:

 General government 1,592,420 1,592,420 1,575,701 (16,719)

 Public safety 715,400 715,400 728,177 12,777

 Highways and streets 500 500 4,875 4,375

 Health 586,200 586,200 579,316 (6,884)

 Culture and recreation 1,293,500 1,293,500 1,146,502 (146,998)

  Total charges for services 4,188,020 4,188,020 4,034,571 (153,449)

Fines and forfeitures:

 Corporations court 1,650,000 1,686,507 1,514,171 (172,336)

 Other fines 50,000 50,000 66,609 16,609

  Total fines and forfeitures 1,700,000 1,736,507 1,580,780 (155,727)

Investment earnings 265,001 265,001 313,838 48,837

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

Net increase in fair value of investments -$                       -$                       69,455$             69,455$             

Other:

 Royalties 1,000,000 1,000,000 938,877 (61,123)

 Rents and concessions 20,000 20,000 6,906 (13,094)

 Other 24,800 24,800 338,857 314,057

  Total other revenues 1,044,800 1,044,800 1,284,640 239,840

  Total revenues 97,680,086 97,716,593 96,501,312 (1,215,281)

EXPENDITURES

 General government:

  City commission 163,309 164,941 208,725 (43,784)

  Special service 871,800 1,046,800 1,015,136 31,664

  City manager 1,112,059 1,129,128 1,476,829 (347,701)

  City secretary 474,024 485,001 483,052 1,949

  Vital statistics 158,441 161,699 165,328 (3,629)

  Passport facility 86,773 88,187 83,717 4,470

  Audit office 206,768 211,844 262,150 (50,306)

  Municipal court 1,330,522 1,397,023 1,263,452 133,571

  Finance 1,185,073 1,216,694 1,087,718 128,976

  Budget & management 295,151 295,151 275,290 19,861

  Tax office 964,676 971,571 899,214 72,357

  Purchasing and contracting 510,105 584,967 475,968 108,999

  Legal 1,251,003 1,625,338 1,781,255 (155,917)

  Grant administration 405,525 414,260 413,072 1,188

  Right of way 191,806 195,234 170,083 25,151

  Human resources 793,989 909,545 877,983 31,562

  Risk management 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

  Planning 1,121,919 1,142,232 869,398 272,834

  Information technology 2,565,550 2,605,594 2,379,524 226,070

  Public information office 594,166 608,626 483,739 124,887

  311 Call center 173,473 173,473 162,796 10,677

  City hall 633,978 636,532 589,516 47,016

  Development Center 89,527 89,527 37,408 52,119

  Building maintenance 627,161 638,808 650,711 (11,903)

  Non-departmental activities 2,150,435 2,150,435 2,510,558 (360,123)

  Contingency 446,712 (958,068) - (958,068)

  Total general government 19,055,706 18,636,303 19,274,383 (638,080)
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Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Public safety:

  Police 30,713,744$      31,356,655$      30,382,930$      973,725$           

  Animal control 359,710 364,245 256,186 108,059

  Communication technology 323,343 328,700 230,306 98,394

  Fire 16,643,591 16,821,501 17,505,025 (683,524)

  Traffic operations 2,341,756 2,374,305 2,212,115 162,190

  Building code compliance 1,024,022 1,045,289 1,009,777 35,512

  Total public safety 51,406,166 52,290,695 51,596,339 694,356

Highways and streets:

 Engineering services 1,934,132 1,972,404 1,667,860 304,544

 Street cleaning 430,011 434,354 407,055 27,299

 Street maintenance 6,185,034 6,212,841 6,070,042 142,799

 Street lighting 1,977,001 2,277,001 2,575,771 (298,770)

 Sidewalk construction 338,424 343,160 335,194 7,966

 Drainage 1,359,562 1,403,738 1,262,535 141,203

  Total highways and streets 12,224,164 12,643,498 12,318,457 325,041

Health and welfare:

 Health code compliance 1,117,923 1,143,405 1,220,210 (76,805)

 Graffiti cleaning 165,342 167,850 171,348 (3,498)

 Other agencies 267,662 617,662 698,884 (81,222)

  Total health and welfare 1,550,927 1,928,917 2,090,442 (161,525)

Culture and recreation:

 Parks and recreation administration 540,199 551,262 533,686 17,576

 Parks 6,604,364 6,678,495 6,253,133 425,362

 Recreation 1,583,946 1,621,873 1,301,843 320,030

 Pools 855,715 881,241 821,178 60,063

 Las palmas community center 425,442 432,519 347,422 85,097

 Recreation center-Lark 507,113 511,886 465,988 45,898

 Recreation center-Palmview 509,091 517,422 509,730 7,692
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Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Quinta mazatlan 525,939$           534,779$           511,969$           22,810$             

 Library 3,275,824 3,333,267 3,117,514 215,753

 Library branch-Lark 432,741 442,556 456,411 (13,855)

 Library branch-Palmview 428,880 437,991 443,718 (5,727)

 Other agencies 995,259 995,259 995,258 1

 Museums 792,400 792,400 792,400 -

  Total culture and recreation 17,476,913 17,730,950 16,550,250 1,180,700

  Total expenditures 101,713,876 103,230,363 101,829,871 1,400,492

  Excess of revenues over expenditures (4,033,790) (5,513,770) (5,328,559) 185,211

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,630,300 9,630,300 9,790,207 159,907

  Transfers out (4,507,424) (4,507,424) (4,507,424) -

  Net other financing sources (uses) 5,122,876 5,122,876 5,282,783 159,907

Net change in fund balances 1,089,086 (390,894) (45,776) 345,118

Fund balances at begining of year 43,876,557 43,876,557 43,876,557 -

Fund balances at end of year 44,965,643$      43,485,663$      43,830,781$      345,118$           

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

REVENUES

 Sales tax 15,826,355$      15,826,355$      15,332,751$      (493,604)$          

 Intergovernmental revenues 1,020,265 1,020,265 - (1,020,265)        

 Investment earnings 100,000 100,000 120,876 20,876              

 Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 41,551 41,551              

 Other - - 1,153 1,153                

  Total revenues 16,946,620 16,946,620 15,496,331 (1,450,289)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 14,366,583 20,273,123 13,219,392 7,053,731

  Public safety 100,000 100,000 69,001 30,999

  Highways and streets 2,627,749 2,627,749 784,839 1,842,910

  Health and welfare 1,502,000 1,502,000 1,501,957 43

  Culture and recreation 7,518,819 7,610,719 5,116,189 2,494,530

Debt service:

  Principal 25,000 25,000 25,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 5,906 5,906 6,444 (538)

  Total expenditures 26,146,057 32,144,497 20,722,822 11,421,675

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenditures (9,199,437) (15,197,877) (5,226,491) 9,971,380

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - - 636,884 636,884

  Transfers out (5,718,323) (5,718,323) (5,224,304) 494,019

  Total other financing uses (5,718,323) (5,718,323) (4,587,420) 1,130,903

  Net changes in fund balances (14,917,760) (20,916,200) (9,813,911) 11,102,283

Fund balances--beginning 25,008,285 25,008,285 25,008,285 -

Fund balances--ending 10,090,525$      4,092,085$        15,194,374$      11,102,283$      

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

McAllen 
International 

Airport

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash 401,972$             459,488$             345,246$             75,389$               204,789$             

Certificate of deposit 487,550 105,000 700,000 - 557,550

Investments 3,099,700 718,746 7,737,108 2,730,066 4,778,828

Receivables, net:

 Accounts 1,682,398 1,679,886 1,966,678 37,306 413,593

 Accrued interest 6,036 2,259 13,974 4,031 8,382

 Other 2,419 12,117 197 50,455 -

Due from other funds - - - 184,760 -

Due from other governments - - - - 157,044

Inventories, at cost 40,246 - - - -

Restricted assets:

  Cash and cash equivalents 188,934 715,742 8,663 950 559,276

  Total current assets 5,909,255 3,693,238 10,771,866 3,082,957 6,679,462

Noncurrent assets:

 Restricted assets:

   Investments 13,608,571 45,182,299 8,771,122 1,213,459 5,995,725

   Interfund loan receivable 3,684,885 - - - -

   Other - 21,933 - - 1,128,457

  Total noncurrent restricted assets 17,293,456 45,204,232 8,771,122 1,213,459 7,124,182

Capital assets:

 Land 3,039,265 1,983,995 1,101,490 5,909,420 3,251,781

 Buildings and systems 57,450,720 104,387,880 2,241,785 56,281,224 32,480,501

 Improvements other than buildings 60,079,592 37,561,736 461,219 6,733,381 54,443,243

 Machinery and equipment 7,426,813 7,321,280 22,978,150 2,873,219 2,658,783

 Construction in progress 7,497,585 13,171,453 9,153 - 27,675,809

 Goodwill - - - - -

 Water rights 7,123,100 - - - -

   Less accumulated depreciation

    and amortization (59,429,074) (61,360,486) (17,478,120) (12,138,300) (48,845,068)

 Total capital assets (net of
    accumulated depreciation and amortization) 83,188,001 103,065,858 9,313,677 59,658,944 71,665,049

Other noncurrent assets

 Loans receivable 84,351 84,351 - - -

 Board advances - - - - -

Advances to other funds - - - - -

  Total other noncurrent assets 84,351 84,351 - - -

  Total noncurrent assets 100,565,808 148,354,441 18,084,799 60,872,403 78,789,231

  Total assets 106,475,063 152,047,679 28,856,665 63,955,360 85,468,693

Deferred outflows of resources- deferred 

charge on refunding 383,431 228,261 - - -

Total asssets and deferred outflows of resources 106,858,494$      152,275,940$      28,856,665$        63,955,360$        85,468,693$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2014
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Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

476,144$             84,066$            390,946$          2,438,040$              1,355,622$       

- - 530,040 2,380,140 1,310,120

1,879,533 971,348 3,819,418 25,734,747 21,836,962

1,485 - 6,476 5,787,822 278,103

- - 5,110 39,792 36,533

- - - 65,188 8,506

- - 46,190 230,950 -

150,985 - 584,754 892,783 -

- - - 40,246 447,127

55,934 19,200 50,606 1,599,305 -

2,564,081 1,074,614 5,433,540 39,209,013 25,272,973

7,062,508 1,671,462 611,272 84,116,418 -

- - - 3,684,885 -

- - - 1,150,390 -

7,062,508 1,671,462 611,272 88,951,693 -

573,798 2,936,598 2,230,658 21,027,005 9,381,216

10,698,086 2,997,470 7,285,171 273,822,837 -

3,422,281 47,783,199 9,599,256 220,083,907 214,238

1,844,042 937,579 9,236,734 55,276,600 22,851,087

869,930 54,659 160,780 49,439,369 -

609,713 - - 609,713 -

- - - 7,123,100 -

(9,961,478) (7,248,012) (14,235,490) (230,696,028) (17,033,291)

8,056,372 47,461,493 14,277,109 396,686,503 15,413,250

- - - 168,702 -

15,821,468 - - 15,821,468 -

- - - - 2,035,009

15,821,468 - - 15,990,170 2,035,009

30,940,348 49,132,955 14,888,381 501,628,366 17,448,259

33,504,429 50,207,569 20,321,921 540,837,379 42,721,232

- - - 611,692 -

33,504,429$        50,207,569$      20,321,921$      541,449,071$          42,721,232$      

Continued

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

McAllen 
International 

Airport

Business Type Activities-Enterprise Funds

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2014

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

 Accounts payable 876,036$             1,237,739$          871,497$             357,018$             1,119,690$          

 Accrued expenses 498,518 476,601 222,629 77,059 1,112,286

 Due to other funds 657,649 - - - -

 Due to other government agencies - - - - -

 Customer deposits payable 2,443,512 - - 59,390 -

 Compensated absences 338,173 228,344 255,202 68,467 89,633

 Current portion of revenue bonds 1,583,751 3,594,249 - - 385,000

 Other 16,684 100,000 300 239,492 31,634

  Total current liabilities 6,414,323 5,636,933 1,349,628 801,426 2,738,243

Other noncurrent liabilities:

 Advances from other funds - - - - -

 Revenue bonds payable, net 19,308,076 73,362,000 - - 8,365,000

 Compensated absences 122,570 116,523 108,932 38,609 1,462

 Interfund notes payable - - - - 3,684,885

 Unearned revenues 163,678 1,197,093 451,132 109,973 -

 Board advances - - - - -

  Total other noncurrent liabilities 19,594,324 74,675,616 560,064 148,582 12,051,347

   Total liabilities 26,008,647$        80,312,549$        1,909,692$          950,008$             14,789,590$        

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 62,864,008 37,126,189 9,313,677 59,658,944 59,307,804

Restricted for:

 Capital projects 12,943,355 22,346,860 - 1,214,410 5,303,080

 Debt service 525,700 3,191,890 - - 286,019

 Distribution of net surplus revenues - - - - -

Unrestricted 4,516,784 9,298,452 17,633,296 2,131,998 5,782,200

  Total net position 80,849,847 71,963,391 26,946,973 63,005,352 70,679,103

   Total liabilities and net position 106,858,494$      152,275,940$      28,856,665$        63,955,360$        85,468,693$        

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statements.
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Governmental

Activities
McAllen 

International 
Toll Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal 

Service Funds

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

49,783$              22,144$            410,886$          4,944,793$              1,663,269$       

46,376 154,857 128,646 2,716,972 2,901,083

433 - - 658,082 -

925,525 - - 925,525 -

- - - 2,502,902 -

36,904 - 18,082 1,034,805 -

- 1,250,000 - 6,813,000 -

- - 39 388,149 -

1,059,021 1,427,001 557,653 19,984,228 4,564,352

- - 352,716 352,716 -

- 33,641,417 - 134,676,493 -

68,056 16,347 148,758 621,257 59,270

- - - 3,684,885 -

322,845 - 87,035 2,331,756 -

- 15,821,468 - 15,821,468 -

390,901 49,479,232 588,509 157,488,575 59,270

1,449,922$          50,906,233$      1,146,162$       177,472,803$          4,623,622$       

8,056,372 12,570,076 14,277,109 263,174,179 15,413,250

1,466,250 647,320 300,498 44,221,773 -

502,844 898,947 - 5,405,400 -

5,148,916 - - 5,148,916 -

16,880,125 (14,815,007) 4,598,152 46,026,000 22,684,360

32,054,507 (698,664) 19,175,759 363,976,268 38,097,610

33,504,429$        50,207,569$      20,321,921$      541,449,071$          42,721,232$      

Concluded
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Fund equity - total proprietary funds (page 39) 363,976,268$         

are included with business-type activities. 3,801,661               

Net position of business-type activities 367,777,929$         

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net 
position are different because certain internal service fund assets and liabilities 

CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement of Net Position of the Proprietary Funds

to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2014
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Water Sewer Sanitation
Convention 

Center

Operating revenues

 Charges for services 15,327,198$         14,555,861$       16,885,461$          950,214$               

 Rentals - - - 1,094,350

 Other 821,858 420,185 83,098 160,853

Total operating revenues 16,149,056 14,976,046 16,968,559 2,205,417

Operating expenses

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 5,896,419 3,844,685 5,575,308 1,564,178

 Supplies 3,025,504 687,718 258,656 83,899

 Contractual and other services 2,627,653 3,101,264 4,348,963 2,066,425

 Repairs and maintenance 765,817 504,832 3,233,325 342,023

 Depreciation and amortization 4,182,203 5,754,548 2,162,719 1,580,750

 Self insurance claims - - - -

  Total operating expenses 16,497,596 13,893,047 15,578,971 5,637,275

   Operating income (loss) (348,540) 1,082,999 1,389,588 (3,431,858)

Non operating revenues (expenses)

 Investment earnings 95,266 142,014 91,900 19,114

 Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 25,798 10,684 10,202 3,467

 Interest expense (1,237,641) (1,231,629) - -

 Interest on board advances - - - -

 Capitalized interest - - - -

 Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets (3,915) 185 10,175 1,805,282

 Other 3,029 - - -

  Net non-operating revenues (expenses) (1,117,463) (1,078,746) 112,277 1,827,863

  Income (loss) before contributions and transfers (1,466,003) 4,253 1,501,865 (1,603,995)

Capital contributions 90,369 1,194,153 - -

Transfers in - - - 2,374,937

Transfers out - - (270,000) (2,098,640)

  Change in net position (1,375,634) 1,198,406 1,231,865 (1,327,698)

Total net position at beginning of year, restated 82,225,481 70,764,985 25,715,108 64,333,050

Total net position at end of year 80,849,847$         71,963,391$       26,946,973$          63,005,352$          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXASCITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Governmental

Activities

McAllen 
International 

Airport

McAllen 
International Toll 

Bridge

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing

Other 
Proprietary 

Funds Total
Internal Service 

Funds

2,535,607$            10,673,408$           2,998,333$         1,631,511$         65,557,593$           5,867,929$         

2,862,939 1,892,738 18,276 93,800 5,962,103 -

373,192 127,892 37,102 911,463 2,935,643 13,188,886

5,771,738 12,694,038 3,053,711 2,636,774 74,455,339 19,056,815

1,678,543 1,191,046 427,126 2,661,824 22,839,129 1,437,216

54,543 90,115 16,994 167,551 4,384,980 23,344

1,587,136 956,369 292,872 1,461,647 16,442,329 5,702,719

383,219 213,699 60,812 997,648 6,501,375 1,368,134

3,553,819 606,661 1,543,678 1,396,178 20,780,556 1,816,394

- - - - - 12,608,493

7,257,260 3,057,890 2,341,482 6,684,848 70,948,369 22,956,300

(1,485,522) 9,636,148 712,229 (4,048,074) 3,506,970 (3,899,485)

52,006 1,591 870 13,996 416,757 179,708

4,257 - - (3,725) 50,683 25,015

(414,038) - (1,652,502) - (4,535,810) -

- 550,445 (550,445) - - -

348,230 - - - 348,230 -

- - - 21,510 1,833,237 14,521

- (3,428,995) - - (3,425,966) 2,085,382

(9,545) (2,876,959) (2,202,077) 31,781 (5,312,869) 2,304,626

(1,495,067) 6,759,189 (1,489,848) (4,016,293) (1,805,899) (1,594,859)

5,638,758 - - 3,185,043 10,108,323 -

- - 947,075 1,860,614 5,182,626 -

(1,103,965) (5,718,893) - (150,000) (9,341,498) (1,000,000)

3,039,726 1,040,296 (542,773) 879,364 4,143,552 (2,594,859)

67,639,377 31,014,211 (155,891) 18,296,395 359,832,716 40,692,469

70,679,103$          32,054,507$           (698,664)$          19,175,759$       363,976,268$         38,097,610$       

Business Type Activites-Enterprise Funds
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Change in net position - total proprietary funds (page 43) 4,143,552$                                          

service funds is reported  with business-type activities. (771,278)                                             

Net position of business-type activities 3,372,274$                                          

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities are 
different because the net revenue (expense) of  certain internal 

CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS
Reconciliation of the Statement Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position of the Proprietary Funds

to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities
For The Year Ended September 30, 2014
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McAllen
Convention

Water Sewer Sanitation Center

Cash flows from operating activities:
  Receipts from customers 16,041,530$           15,128,029$           16,974,614$        2,140,425$            
  Payments to employees (5,838,890)              (3,798,693)             (5,514,831)           (1,538,549)            
  Payments to suppliers (5,823,012)              (5,497,743)             (7,500,834)           (2,269,378)            

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 4,379,628               5,831,593               3,958,949            (1,667,502)            

Cash flows from noncapital financing
  activities:
   Transfers from other funds -                              -                           2,374,937              
   Transfers to other funds -                              -                             (270,000)              (2,098,640)            
   Subsidy from federal grant -                              -                             -                           -                            
   Board advances -                              -                             -                           -                            
   Distribution of income to City of Hidalgo -                              -                             -                           -                            

    Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
     financing activities -                              -                             (270,000)              276,297                 

Cash flows from capital and related
  financing activities:
   Capital contributions -                              1,181,575               -                           -                            
   Purchases of  capital assets (4,525,064)              (4,904,266)             (1,813,535)           (246,274)               
   Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                              -                             10,175                 2,098,640              
   Proceeds interfund loan -                              -                             -                           -                            
   Interfund loan disbursed (3,465,376)              -                             -                           -                            
   Proceeds from  loan forgiveness -                              2,165,000               -                           -                            
   Principal repayments-bonds and notes (1,514,610)              (3,313,390)             -                           -                            
   Interest paid (1,223,383)              (1,397,476)             -                           -                            

    Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
      related financing activities (10,728,433)            (6,268,557)             (1,803,360)           1,852,366              

Cash flows from investing activities:
   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  7,253,496               5,599,830               998,274               (719,241)               
   Purchase of investments (1,041,357)              (6,063,643)             (2,769,479)           -                            
   Receipt of interest 112,336                  129,857                  89,535                 19,913                   

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     investing activities 6,324,475               (333,956)                (1,681,670)           (699,328)               

    Net increase (decrease) in cash (24,330)                   (770,920)                203,919               (238,167)               

    Cash at beginning of year 615,236                  1,946,150               149,990                314,506                 

    Cash at end of year  590,906$                 1,175,230$              353,909$              76,339$                 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Business Type Activities
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Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Anzalduas Other Internal
International International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Crossing Funds Total Funds

5,865,357$            12,570,459$             3,053,711$           2,627,846$               74,401,971$       19,168,169$              
(1,656,092)            (1,193,722)                (419,280)               (2,653,776)                (22,613,833)        (1,375,506)                
(3,227,779)            (1,313,010)                (372,659)               (2,411,598)                (28,416,013)        (18,790,169)              

981,486                 10,063,727               2,261,772             (2,437,528)                23,372,125         (997,506)                   

-                            1,860,614                 4,235,551           -                                
(1,103,965)            (4,772,635)                -                            (150,000)                   (8,395,240)          (1,000,000)                

-                            -                                -                            2,679,739                 2,679,739           -                                
-                            (947,075)                   947,075                -                                -                          -                                
-                            (3,274,663)                -                            -                                (3,274,663)          -                                

(1,103,965)            (8,994,373)                947,075                4,390,353                 (4,754,613)          (1,000,000)                

6,212,325              -                                -                            -                                7,393,900           -                                
(9,920,336)            (179,383)                   (55,817)                 (1,691,366)                (23,336,041)        (11,262,927)              

-                            -                                -                            21,510                      2,130,325           49,086                       
3,465,376              -                                3,465,376           -                                

-                            -                                -                            -                                (3,465,376)          -                                
-                            -                                -                            -                                2,165,000           -                                

(375,000)               -                                (1,200,000)            -                                (6,403,000)          -                                
(402,583)               -                                (1,686,895)            -                                (4,710,337)          -                                

(1,020,218)            (179,383)                   (2,942,712)            (1,669,856)                (22,760,153)        (11,213,841)              

3,672,396              17,035,234               3,509,890             7,813,035                 45,162,914          20,451,890                
(2,472,524)            (17,883,191)              (3,804,977)            (7,964,072)                (41,999,243)        (7,365,936)                

49,146                   1,593                        870                       6,241                        409,491              200,258                     

1,249,018              (846,364)                   (294,217)               (144,796)                   3,573,162           13,286,212                

106,321                 43,607                      (28,082)                 138,173                    (569,479)             74,865                       

 657,744                  488,471                     131,348                303,379                    4,606,824            1,280,757                  

 764,065$                532,078$                   103,266$              441,552$                   4,037,345$          1,355,622$                

Continued
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McAllen
Convention

Water Sewer Sanitation Center

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
  net cash provided by operating activities
Operating income (loss)  (348,540)$               1,082,999$             1,389,588$          (3,431,858)$          
Adjustment to reconcile operating income
  (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating
  activities:
   Depreciation and amortization  4,182,203               5,754,458               2,162,719            1,580,750              
   (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (108,137)                 (23,824)                  6,259                   (11,427)                 
   (Increase) decrease in intergovernmental receivables -                              178,067                  -                           -                            
   (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                              -                             -                           (21,728)                 
   (Increase) decrease in prepaid items (2,419)                     (2,200)                    (197)                     (31,837)                 
   (Increase) decrease in inventories (26,494)                   -                             -                           -                            
   Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 34,083                    75,675                    320,907               157,595                 
   Increase (decrease) in customer deposits payable 54,016                    -                             -                           41,055                   
   Increase (decrease) in compensated abscences payable 21,649                    13,666                    34,655                 12,757                   
   Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 70,573                    (87,484)                  25,822                 24,638                   
   Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 553,176                  -                             -                           -                            
   Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities -                              59,881                    -                           (26,270)                 
   Increase (decrease) in unearned revenues (50,482)                   (1,219,645)             19,196                 38,823                   

Total adjustments 4,728,168               4,748,594               2,569,361            1,764,356              

    Net cash provided by (used) by

      operating activities 4,379,628$             5,831,593$             3,958,949$          (1,667,502)$          

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Contributions of capital assets 90,369                    12,577                    -                           -                            
Decrease in fair value of investments 25,798                    10,684                    10,202                 3,467                     

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-(Continued)
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014
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Governmental
Activities

McAllen McAllen Anzalduas Other Internal
International International International Proprietary Service

Airport Toll Bridge Crossing Funds Total Funds

(1,485,522)$          9,636,148$               712,229$              (4,048,074)$               3,506,970$          (3,899,485)$              

3,553,819              606,661                    1,543,678             1,396,178                  20,780,466         1,816,829                  
(10,854)                 (152,470)                   -                            (3,497)                       (303,950)             (11,225)                     

-                            -                                -                            -                                178,067              -                                
104,473                 -                                -                            (5,432)                       77,313                -                                

-                            -                                -                            -                                (36,653)               -                                
-                            -                                -                            -                                (26,494)               (100,235)                   

(1,738,779)            (52,826)                     5,865                    196,634                    (1,000,846)          582,077                     
-                            -                                -                            -                                95,071                -                                

15,070                   (7,741)                       -                            (6,174)                       83,882                3,152                         
534,194                 -                            34,037                      601,780              611,381                     

-                            -                                -                            -                                553,176              -                                
9,085                     5,065                        -                            -                                47,761                -                                

-                            28,890                      -                            (1,200)                       (1,184,418)          -                                

2,467,008              427,579                    1,549,543             1,610,546                 19,865,155         2,901,979                  

981,486$               10,063,727$             2,261,772$           (2,437,528)$              23,372,125$       (997,506)$                 

-                            -                                -                            -                                102,946              -                                
4,257                     -                                -                            (1,145)                       53,263                25,015                       

Concluded

Business Type Activities
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Pension Trust
Firemen's Relief 
and Retirement

Fund Agencies

 

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 850,969$            1,652,167$        

Receivables:

Interest 39,439                4,668                

Other -                         13,074              

Investments, at fair value:

TexPool -                         715,287            

Certificates of deposit -                         487,550            

Domestic and international equities 26,473,203         -                        

Treasury and corporate bonds 11,105,348         1,749,925         

Alternative investments 6,814,878           -                        

Total investments 44,393,429         2,952,762         

Total assets 45,283,837         4,622,671         

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable -                         848,257            

Due  agency -                         807,480            

Escrow payables -                         2,966,934         

  Total liabilities - 4,622,671$        

NET POSITION

Held in trust for pension benefits 45,283,837$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
 September 30, 2014
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Pension Trust
Firemen's Relief 
and Retirement

Fund

ADDITIONS

Contributions:

 Member 1,214,786$             

 Employer 1,435,293

  Total contributions 2,650,079

Investment earnings:

 Interest and dividends 946,178

 Gain on sale of investments 578,714

 Net appreciation in fair value of investments 1,333,576

 Total investment earnings 2,858,468

  Less: investment expense 332,517

  Net investment earnings 2,525,951

  Total additions 5,176,030

DEDUCTIONS

  Benefits 2,210,191

  Refund of contributions 26,742

  DROP payments 351,653

  Administrative expense 23,959

  Total deductions 2,612,545

    Changes in net fidiciary position 2,563,485

Net fidiciary position--beginning 42,720,352

Net fidiciary position--ending 45,283,837$           

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

- 51 -



Pension Trust
Firemen's Relief 
and Retirement

Fund

ADDITIONS

Contributions:

 Member 1,214,786$             

 Employer 1,435,293

  Total contributions 2,650,079

Investment earnings:

 Interest and dividends 946,178

 Gain on sale of investments 578,714

 Net appreciation in fair value of investments 1,333,576

 Total investment earnings 2,858,468

  Less: investment expense 332,517

  Net investment earnings 2,525,951

  Total additions 5,176,030

DEDUCTIONS

  Benefits 2,210,191

  Refund of contributions 26,742

  DROP payments 351,653

  Administrative expense 23,959

  Total deductions 2,612,545

    Changes in net fidiciary position 2,563,485

Net fidiciary position--beginning 42,720,352

Net fidiciary position--ending 45,283,837$           

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this statement.
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I.    Summary of significant accounting policies 
 

(A) Reporting entity 
 

The City of McAllen, Texas (the City) is a municipal corporation, which was incorporated 
February 20, 1911 under Article XI, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution.  The City operates 
under the commission-manager form of government and provides a full range of municipal 
services as authorized by its charter.  The governing body consists of an elected mayor and a six-
member commission.  Services provided include those typically provided by general-purpose 
local governments, namely public safety (principally police and fire,) highways and streets, 
health and welfare, culture and recreation (principally library, parks and recreation).  Other 
services provided include water and sewer utilities, sanitation, civic center, convention center, 
international airport, international toll bridge linking Hidalgo, Texas with downtown Reynosa, 
Tamaulipas, Mexico, international toll bridge linking south of the City of Mission with the west 
side of Reynosa, Tamaulipas, Mexico, golf course, bus transit system, and intermodal transit 
terminal.   

  
 The accompanying financial statements present the reporting entity, which consists of the 

primary government.  Financial reporting standards also require the City to include, if any, 
legally-separate entities or organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable and other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but 
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are 
such that exclusion could cause the City’s basic financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 
 
Financial accountability exists if a primary government appoints a voting majority of an 
organization’s governing Board and either is able to impose its will on that organization or 
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose 
specific financial burdens on, the primary government.  A primary government may also be 
financially accountable for governmental organizations with a separately elected governing 
Board, a governing Board appointed by another government, or a jointly appointed Board that 
is fiscally dependent on the primary government. 

 
Applying these tests to other entities and activities for possible inclusion in the reporting entity, 
the City has determined that the Development Corporation meets the financial accountability 
tests and, therefore is included as a blended component unit.  Its Board is appointed by the City 
Commission and serves as an advisory board to the City Commission. 
 
The City of McAllen issues separate publicly available audited financial statements of the 
McAllen International Toll Bridge and the Anzalduas International Crossing, which may be 
obtained by writing to City of McAllen Finance Department, 1300 Houston, P.O. Box 220, 
McAllen, Texas  78505. 
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The Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund is included as a pension trust fund, and reported as 
a fiduciary fund in the accompanying financial statements. 

 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP) applicable to states 
and local governments.  US GAAP for local governments include those principles prescribed 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”), the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of State and Local 
Governments.   
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued the following pronouncement, which is 
relevant to the City, became effective this fiscal year and has been implemented: 
 
GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. 
 
This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as 
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or 
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.  For 
the City, this affects the presentation of debt issuance costs as an expense versus a capitalized 
cost.  See Note 12 for the impact to beginning net position. 
 
The following statements will become effective in future years.  Management has not yet 
determined the effect of these statements, however, the impact is expected to be significant as 
it related to GASB 68, as this statement will require the recognition of a previously 
unrecorded liability. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an 
amendment of GASB Statement No.27 
 
The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by 
state and local governments for pensions.  It also improves information provided by state and 
local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that is provided by other 
entities.  This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing 
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and inter-period equity, 
and creating additional transparency. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2014.  
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GASB Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government 
operations 
 
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing accounting and 
financial reporting for government combinations and disposals of government operations.  
The term government combinations is used in this Statement to refer to a variety of 
arrangements including mergers and acquisitions.  Government combinations also include 
transfers of operations that do not constitute entire legally separate entities and in which no 
significant consideration is exchanged.  Transfers of operations may be present in shared 
service arrangements, reorganizations, redistricting, annexations, and arrangements in which 
an operation is transferred to a new government created to provide those services.  This 
Statement is effective for government combinations and disposals of government operations 
occurring in financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013.   
 
GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees 
 
Some governments extend financial guarantees for the obligations of another government, a 
not-for-profit organization, a private entity, or individual without directly receiving equal or 
approximately equal value in exchange (a nonexchange transaction). As a part of this 
nonexchange financial guarantee, a government commits to indemnify the holder of the 
obligation if the entity or individual that issued the obligation does not fulfill its payment 
requirements.  Also, some governments issue obligations that are guaranteed by other entities 
in a nonexchange transaction.  The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange 
financial guarantees.  The provisions of the Statement are effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2013.  Earlier application is encouraged.  Except for disclosures 
related to cumulative amounts paid or received in relation to a nonexchange financial 
guarantee, the provisions of this Statement are required to be applied retroactively.  
Disclosures related to cumulative amounts paid or received in relation to a nonexchange 
financial guarantee may be applied prospectively. 
 
 GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68 
 
The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition 
provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  The issue 
relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government 
employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the 
measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability.  This Statement 
amends paragraph 137 of Statement 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a 
beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent 
to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability.  Statement 68, as amended, 
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continues to require that beginning balances for other deferred outflows or resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions be reported at transition only if it is practical 
to determine all such amounts.  The provisions of this Statement are required to be applied 
simultaneously with the provisions of Statement 68. 
 

The more significant accounting policies of the City are described below. 
 
(B) Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net position, a statement 
of financial position, and the statement of activities, a statement of results of operations. These 
statements report information on all the activities of the reporting entity with the exception of 
fiduciary activity.  Generally, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from these 
statements.  Governmental activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which primarily rely on fees 
and charges. 
 
The statement of activities reflects the extent to which direct expenses of each function are 
offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are attributable to a specific 
function and are clearly identifiable.  Program revenues include charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by 
a specific function as well as grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a specific function.  Taxes and other items not 
appropriately included with program revenues are shown as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
In addition to and apart from the government-wide financial statements, fund financial 
statements are presented for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.  In 
each of these financial statements, major funds are presented in separate columns. 
 
(C) Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting; consistent with the presentation of the 
proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements, with the exception that agency funds 
do not have a measurement focus.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, without regard to the timing of the related cash flows.  
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period.  The City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days 
of the end of the current fiscal period, except for property taxes, which is 60 days required by 
GAAP.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, consistent with 
accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as those related to 
compensated absences and claims and judgments are recognized only when payment is made. 
 
Revenues derived from federal or state grants are recognized when earned at the end of the 
current fiscal year and are reflected as due from other governments.  Because of their nature, 
the availability period has a longer duration of six months to a year. 
 
Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and interest associated with the current fiscal 
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues 
of the current fiscal period. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available 
only when cash is received by the government. 
 
The City reports the following governmental fund types and related major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund.  It accounts for all of the financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 
 
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources, other than for debt service or major capital projects that are legally 
restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes.  The only special revenue 
fund reported as a major fund is the Development Corp. Fund, a blended component unit. 
It is used to account for the additional ½¢ sales tax for economic development. 
 
The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned for the payment of principal, interest and related costs 
on general long-term debt paid primarily from taxes levied by the City.  The fund balance 
of the Debt Service fund is restricted to signify the amounts that are restricted exclusively 
for debt service expenditures. 
 
The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed or assigned for the acquisition and/or construction of capital 
facilities except those financed by proprietary fund types.  The Capital Improvement Fund 
is the only fund of this type that is reported as a major fund.  

 



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2014 
 
 

- 58 - 
 

The governing body has adopted the policy that the Development Corp. Fund and the Capital 
Improvement Fund are to be considered major funds, without regard to the major fund criteria, 
due to them being particularly important to the users of these financial statements. 

 
The City reports the following major proprietary fund types and related funds: 

 
The following enterprise funds are used to account for City operations for which a fee is 
charged to external users for goods or services.  These funds must be used for activities, 
whose debt is backed solely by fees and charges or there is a legal requirement to recover 
cost, including capital cost, or a policy decision has been made to recover cost, including 
capital cost.  Enterprise funds, which are reported as major funds include: 
 
The Water Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s water system. 
  
The Sewer Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer system. 
 
The Sanitation Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City-owned residential and 
commercial garbage and brush collection as well as recycling systems. 
 
The Convention Center Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City’s convention 
center. 
 
The McAllen International Airport Fund, which accounts for the activities of the City-
owned international airport. 
 
The McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund, which accounts for the operations of the 
City-owned international bridge connecting the City of Hidalgo, Texas with downtown 
Reynosa, Mexico. 

 
The Anzalduas International Crossing Fund, which accounts for the operations of the 
international bridge connecting south of the City of Mission, Texas with the west side of 
Reynosa, Mexico. 

 
The City also reports, although not as major funds, the internal service funds as proprietary 
funds.  These fund types were established to finance and account for goods and services 
provided to various departments of the City, and on a limited basis to other local agencies, on a 
cost-reimbursement basis.  They account for fleet management, health insurance, retiree health 
insurance, and general insurance services provided to other operating funds of the City, as well 
as a general depreciation fund for rolling stock used within departments of the General Fund. 
In the statement of net position, only fleet management is reported in the business-type 
column, because the predominant user is determined to be the Sanitation Fund, a proprietary 
fund. 
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The City reports fiduciary fund types, in which the City accounts for assets received and held 
by the City in the capacity of trustee, agent or custodian. Expenditures are made only in 
accordance with the purpose for which the assets are received and cannot be used to support 
the City’s programs.  Within this category of fund types, the pension trust fund accounts for the 
activities of the Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund, this accumulates resources for pension 
benefit payments to qualified firefighters.  It also accounts for developers’ contributions for 
future infrastructure development in the Developers’ Fund, an agency fund.  Additionally, it 
accounts for Communications Group Fund, an agency fund, which was established for the 
purpose of accounting for the operations and maintenance of a consolidated regional public 
safety services communication system. The City also includes the Payroll Fund as an agency 
fund. 
 
Generally, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements.  Exceptions to this general statement are charges between the City’s water 
and sewer function and various other functions of the City.  Eliminating these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported by the respective functions. 
 
Amounts reported in program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital 
grants and contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues, 
which include all taxes, as opposed to program revenues. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses typically are the result from activities specific to a particular 
proprietary fund’s operations.  Operating revenues include charges for services.  Operating 
expenses include costs of services as well as materials, contracts, personnel and depreciation.  
All other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net 
position is available, the City typically first applies restricted resources, as appropriate 
opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use thereof to a future project 
or replacement equipment acquisition. 
 
(D) Assets, liabilities, and net position 

 
(1) Deposits and investments 
 
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be all cash in its operating accounts 
and money market accounts with an original maturity date of 90 days or less for the 
statements of cash flows.  The Public Funds Investment Act for the state of Texas allows 
municipalities to invest in the following: 

 
 Obligations of, or guaranteed by governmental entities, including: 



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2014 
 
 

- 60 - 
 

o Obligations of the United States or its agencies or instrumentalities 
o Direct obligations of this state or its agencies and instrumentalities 
o Collateralized mortgage obligations directly issued by a federal agency or 

instrumentality of the United States, the underlying security for which is 
guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United States. 

o Other obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally 
guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith and credit of, this state 
or the United States or their respective agencies and instrumentalities 

o Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political 
subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally 
recognized investment rating firm not less than A or its equivalent 

o Bonds issued, assumed, or guaranteed by the State of Israel 
 

 Certificates of deposit 
 Fully collateralized repurchase agreements 
 Bankers’ acceptances 
 Commercial paper 
 No-load mutual funds 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 
 Investment pools 
 
The City’s investment policy further restricts investments to the following: 
 
 U.S. Treasury obligations and government agency securities, specifically those issued 

by the Federal Home Land Bank, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and the Federal Farm Credit Bank, 
excluding mortgage-backed securities (i.e., those issued by the Government National 
Mortgage Association (Ginnie Mae), Student Loan Marketing Association (Sallie Mae) 
and Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA). 
 

 Certificates of Deposit 
 Local government investment pools 
 
The City’s investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.  Fair value 
is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 
between willing parties.   
 

(2)  Receivables and payables 
 
Lending/borrowing between funds that results in amounts outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds”.  
“Due to/from other funds” represents the current portion of interfund loans.  “Advances 
to/from other funds” represents the non-current portion of interfund loans.  With respect to the 
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government-wide financial statements, any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported as “internal balances.” 
 
Advance receivables between funds, reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a 
restricted category of fund balance in the applicable governmental fund(s) to indicate that they 
are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 
 
All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible. 
 
Property taxes are levied on October 1 based on the assessed value of property as listed on the 
previous January 1, on which date a tax lien attaches.  Assessed values are an approximation 
of market value.  A valuation of all property must be made at least every three (3) years.  
However, due to growth, the appraisal district conducts annual valuation by property 
category. Property taxes at the fund level are recorded as receivables and deferred revenues at 
the time the taxes are levied.  Revenues are recognized as the related ad valorem taxes are 
collected.  Additional amounts estimated to be collectible in time to be a resource for payment 
of obligations incurred during the fiscal year and, therefore, susceptible to accrual in 
accordance with GAAP have been recognized as revenue.  Taxes are due on October 1, the 
levy date, and are delinquent after the following January 31. Tax liens are automatic on 
January 1 each year. The tax lien is part of a lawsuit for property that can be filed any time 
after taxes become delinquent (February 1). The City usually waits until after May 1 and July 
1 to file suits on business personal property and real property, respectively. 

 
(3)  Inventories and prepaid items 
 

Inventories for all governmental funds are valued at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, 
first-out basis.  The consumption method is used to account for inventories.  Under the 
consumption method, all inventory purchases are recorded as inventory acquisitions (current 
assets) at the time of purchase and expended when used. 
 
Inventories of proprietary funds are valued at the lower of cost or market on the first-in, first-
out basis as well. 
 
Payments to vendors, reflecting costs applicable to future accounting periods, are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 

(4) Restricted assets 
 

Proceeds from the issuance of bonds, primarily related to enterprise funds and sales tax 
revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as 
restricted assets on the balance sheet due to their use being limited by applicable bond 
covenants.  The “revenue bond current debt service” account is used to report segregated 
assets accumulated for debt service payments over the next twelve months.  The “revenue 
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bond contingency” account is used to report resources set aside to subsidize potential 
deficiencies from the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund and/or the Anzalduas 
International Crossing Fund operation that could adversely affect debt service payments.  In 
addition to assets restricted by bond covenants, others are restricted by enabling legislation for 
replacement and/or acquisition of capital assets. 
 

 
 
(5) Capital assets 

 
Capital assets, which includes property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are 
defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $2,500 or more and an estimated 
useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost.  Donated assets 
are reflected at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or 
materially extend the assets life are not capitalized. 

 
 Gains or losses on dispositions of capital assets are included in income within the proprietary 
fund financial statements and in the governmental activities and business-type activities 
columns of the government-wide financial statements. In the governmental fund financial 
statements only the proceeds from the disposition are reported. Within the proprietary funds, 
interest cost, less interest earned on investments acquired with proceeds of related borrowing, 
is capitalized during the construction of capital projects when material. The Airport Fund has 
incurred $927K of capitalized interest and will be re-classed at the end of the next fiscal year. 
Interest expense is not capitalized on general capital assets.    
 

Depreciation of capital assets used by proprietary funds, including those acquired by 
contributed capital, is charged as an expense against their operations in the fund financial 
statements as well as the government-wide financial statements.  Depreciation of general 
capital assets used by funds categorized as governmental activities is not provided in the fund 
financial statements, however is included in the gross expense by function in the government-
wide Statement of Activities.  Capital assets, accumulated depreciation as well as the net 
amount are reported on proprietary fund balance sheets and in both the governmental activities 
and business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets. 
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.  
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 
 

Buildings and improvements  10 – 50 years
Equipment  5 – 15 years
Infrastructure  15 – 40 years



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2014 
 
 

- 63 - 
 

 
(6) Compensated absences 

 
Accumulated unpaid compensated absences are accrued when incurred in all funds reported 
within the proprietary fund financial statements as well as the governmental activities and 
business-type activities columns of the government-wide statements. The expense is 
recognized in the governmental fund financial statements when paid or expected to be paid 
with current financial resources.  

 
 
(7) Long-term obligations 

 
    In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund 

financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities 
in the governmental/business-type activities or the specific proprietary fund to which each 
relates, as applicable.  Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds.  
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  Premiums received on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources and discounts are reported as other 
financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from debt proceeds, are reported as 
debt service expenditures. 

 
 
 
(8)  Fund balances 

 
Fund balance, reported in governmental funds, which has some level of constraint placed on it, 
is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned.  The amount remaining, 
which can be spent for any lawful purpose is classified as unassigned.  Amounts classified as 
restricted have constraints placed on the use by law, regulations of other governments, 
creditors, grantors or by enabling legislation.  Those classified as committed are constrained 
by the City Commission through an ordinance for specific purposes, but are neither restricted 
nor committed.  Reversing a commitment would require City Commission approval through an 
ordinance.  Non-spendable amounts cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  The City 
Commission has delegated the authority to make assignments to the City Manager with 
Commission direction.  For the purposes of classifying governmental fund balances, the City 
typically considers expenditure to be made from the most restrictive first when more than one 
classification is available, however reserves the right to selectively defer the use thereof to 
future expenditure.  During the budget process, the City Manager designates the assignment of 
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fund balances and makes recommendations to the City Commission for their consent and 
approval. 
 
 
The table below outlines the composition of the City’s governmental fund balances 
classifications. 
 

Non-major
Development Capital Funds

General Corp. Improvements Other Total

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Board advances 1,918,717$   -$                    -$                   -$                    1,918,717$      
Advances to other funds 190,000         -                      -                     -                      190,000            
Prepaids 51,826           -                      -                     -                      51,826              

Restricted for:
Law enforcement -                      -                      -                     4,476,724      4,476,724        
Debt service -                      -                      -                     292,192         292,192            
Economic development -                      15,194,374   -                     4,095             15,198,469      
Tourism -                      -                      -                     2,019,554      2,019,554        
Capital improvements -                      -                      -                     56,580,468   56,580,468      
Public access network 447,859         -                      -                     -                      447,859            
Parks -                      -                      -                     963,184         963,184            

Committed to:
Downtown services parking -                      -                      -                     387,626         387,626            

Assigned to:
Information technology projects -                      -                      -                     1,004,740      1,004,740        
Other capital projects -                      -                      4,736,936     -                      4,736,936        

Unassigned 41,221,379   -                      -                     -                      41,221,379      

Total fund balances 43,829,781$ 15,194,374$ 4,736,936$  65,728,583$ 129,489,674$  

Major Funds

(9)  Minimum fund balance policy 
 

In order to maintain a margin of safety in the General Fund balance in anticipation of 
economic downturns or natural disasters, the City Commission has adopted an ordinance, 
requiring a minimum fund balance of 140 days of expenditures. 
 

(10)  Deficit Unrestricted Net Position 
 

The unrestricted portion of net position reflects a deficit in the amount of $14,815,009 
primarily as a result of advances from the Hidalgo Bridge, as authorized by the board of 
trustees.  These advances supported the annual debt service requirements and interest on the 
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advances.  The Hidalgo Bridge Board of trustees has no intention of calling these advances, 
which will be repaid once the resources are available. In addition, the Employee Benefits 
Fund reflects a deficit fund balance in the amount of $1,070,528.  It is estimated that this 
temporary shortfall will be covered by a health insurance premium rate increase in addition 
to a transfer in from the General Insurance Fund during the next fiscal year.  
 

 
(11)  Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement 
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies 
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  The City only has one item that qualifies for reporting in 
this category.  It is the deferred charges on refundings reported in the government-wide 
statement of net position.  A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the 
carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  This amount is deferred and 
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or refunding debt. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial 
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that 
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) 
until that time.  At the governmental fund level, revenues that have been billed but not yet 
collected or collected within the availability period are reported as unavailable revenues.  
These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the 
amounts become available. The City has five categories that qualifies as deferred inflows of 
resources.  The following table describes the items and amounts: 

  

Deferred Inflows Amount

Property taxes 3,577,352$   

Weedy lots 769,336         

Mission Repayment on Series B 1,918,717      

Sales taxes 5,412,939      

Other 654,545         

Totals 12,332,889$ 
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(12)  Restatement of Net Position at Beginning of Year 
 

As a result of implementing GASB Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities, debt issuance costs in the amount of $1,911,167 were eliminated from the 
statement of activities, thus resulting in a restatement of prior year net position. The 
following governmental activities and business type activities were impacted:  
governmental-$241,743; Water Fund-$318,075; Sewer Fund-$410,778; Airport Fund 
-$150,137; and Anzalduas International Crossing-$790,434.   

Government

Wide

Water Sewer

McAllen 
International 

Airport

Anzalduas 
International 

Crossing
Governmental 

Activities

82,543,556$    71,175,763$   67,789,514$    634,543$       361,350,597$     

Change in reporting debt issuance costs (318,075)          (410,778)         (150,137)         (790,434)        (241,743)             

Restated net position at 10/01/2013 82,225,481$    70,764,985$   67,639,377$    (155,891)$      361,108,854$     

Net position, as previously reported at 
10/01/2013

Fund Level 

 
II.  Stewardship, compliance and accountability 

 
(A)  Budgetary information 
 

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected 
in the basic financial statements: 

 
1. Prior to August 1 of each year, the City Manager is required to submit to the City 

Commission a proposed budget for the fiscal year beginning on the following 
October 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means 
of financing them. 

 
2.   Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. 

 
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted by the City Commission through 

passage of an ordinance. 
 
4. The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between accounts 

within any department; however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of 
any department must be approved by the City Commission.  Budgeted amounts 
include transfers and revisions to the original appropriations ordinance. 
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5. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental funds with the 
exception of less significant grants, which are included in the Miscellaneous 
Government Grants fund. 

 
6.   The budget and actual comparisons include the General Fund and the    

Development Corp Fund. Budgets for these funds are adopted on a basis consistent 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US 
GAAP) applicable to state and local governments.  Budgets for proprietary funds 
have been prepared on a non-US GAAP basis, which excludes depreciation but 
includes capital outlay and debt principal payments. 

 
7. Annual budgeted expenditures are adopted at the department level within funds.  As 

previously noted, the City Manager is authorized to make transfers within a 
department.  Accordingly, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed 
appropriations is the department level.  During the year, several supplementary 
appropriations were necessary. 

 
(B)  Excess of expenditures over appropriations 

 
For the year ended September 30, 2014, expenditures in certain general fund departments 
exceeded appropriations.  These expenditures over appropriations are the result of 
underestimating actual expenditures for the year.  Revenue sufficient to provide for the excess 
was made available through the use of available surplus from current and prior years. The 
related departments and the excess of expenditures over appropriations are reflected in the 
table that follows:   
 
    

   

Department:  

  City commission 43,784$            

  City manager 347,701            

  Vital statistics 3,629                

  Audit office 50,306              

  Legal 155,917            

  Building maintenance 11,903              

  Non-departmental activities 360,123            

  Fire 683,524            

  Street lighting 298,770            

  Health code compliance 76,805              

  Graffiti cleaning 3,498                

  Library - Lark 13,855              

  Library - Palmview 5,727                

    Total general fund 2,055,542$        
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III.  Detailed notes on all funds 

 
(A)  Deposits and investments 
 

It is the City’s policy as well as a requirement in its Depository Agreement for deposits plus 
accrued interest thereon to be 110% secured by collateral valued at fair value, less the amount 
of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance.  At September 30, 2014, the City’s 
deposits were entirely covered by federal deposit insurance or were secured by collateral held 
by the City’s agent in the City’s name pursuant to the City’s Investment Policy and its 
Depository Agreement.   
 

Investments at fair value, including accrued interest, as of September 30, 2014 are reflected in 
the table that follows: 

  
 

Fair Value 1 or less 2 3+

Tex Pool 77,032,963$     77,032,963$    -$                -$                 
Money Market 7,524,561         7,524,561      -                        -                          
Certificates of deposit 54,514,629       40,514,511     14,000,118  -                          
U.S. Government
   securities 137,509,201     19,760,606     14,997,560  102,551,703    

276,581,354$   144,832,641$  28,997,678$ 102,551,703$  

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
Public funds investment pools 

Public funds investment pools in Texas (“Pools”) are established under the authority of the 
Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 79 of the Texas Government Code and are subject to the 
provisions of the Act, Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

In addition to other provisions of the Act designed to promote liquidity and safety of principal, 
the Act requires Pools to:  (1) have an advisory board composed of participants in the pool and 
other persons who do not have a business relationship with the pool and are qualified to advise 
the pool; (2) maintain a continuous rating of no lower than AAA or AAAm or an equivalent 
rating by at least one nationally recognized rating service; and (3) maintain the fair value of its 
underling investment portfolio within one half of one percent of the values of its shares. 
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The City’s investments in Pools are reported at an amount determined by the fair value per 
share of the pool’s underlying portfolio, unless the pool is 2a7-like, in which case they are 
reported at amortized cost.  A 2a7-like pool is one which is not registered with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as an investment company, but nevertheless has a policy 
that it will, and does, operate in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment 
Company Act of 1940. 
 

TexPool is a public funds investment pool created pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 
Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Act.  The State Comptroller of Public 
Accounts exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool.  Oversight includes the ability to 
significantly influence operations, designation of management, and accountability for fiscal 
matters.  Additionally, the State Comptroller of Public Accounts has established an Advisory 
Board composed both of participants in TexPool and of other persons who do not have a 
business relationship with TexPool.  The Advisory Board members review the investment 
policy and management fee structure. 
 
The City believes TexPool operates in a manner consistent with the SEC’s Rule 2a-7 of the 
Investment Company Act of 1940.  As such, TexPool uses amortized cost to report net assets 
and share prices since that amount approximates fair value.  The City believes that TexPool 
operates as a 2a-7 like pool as described in GASB Statement No. 59, Financial Instrument 
Omnibus. 
 
Interest rate risk. The investment policy states that no investment shall exceed seven years 
in maturity.  By limiting the exposure of its investments by no more than three years as 
reflected in the schedule below, the City reduces its risk to rising interest rates.  The table 
in the following page reflects the allocation of the investment portfolio. 
  

  

Government Certificates
Agencies of  Deposit

< 1 Year 19,760,606$         40,514,511$           
1-3 Years 117,748,595         14,000,118             

Total 137,509,201$       54,514,629$           

 Weighted
Average Maturity 757 Days 271 Days

 
 
 
Credit risk.  As of September 30, 2014, the investments in the State’s investment pool was 
rated AAAm by Standards and Poor’s.  Available funds were invested in certificates of 
deposit, all of which are under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit, as well as 
with the City’s depository bank, PlainsCapital Bank, an independently owned bank.  
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However, the collateral pledged against the certificates of deposit with PlainsCapital Bank 
is comprised of government securities, which carry AAA rating from Moody’s and AA+ 
from S&P.  The government securities consist of instruments issued by the Federal Home 
Loan Bank and Federal National Mortgage Association, both of which are rated AAA 
Moody’s Investors Service and AA+ by S&P.  The City’s investment policy limits 
authorized investments to TexPool, certificates of deposits, U.S. Treasuries and federal 
government agencies, excluding Student Loan Marketing Association and Tennessee 
Valley Authority and mortgage backed securities.   
 
Concentration of credit risk.  The certificate of deposits holdings at September 30, 2014 
represents 19.73% of the total portfolio.  The U.S. government agencies category represents 
49.66% of the total portfolio.  Within this category, securities issued by the Federal Home  
Loan Bank represent 30% of the portfolio, those issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation represent 63%, and those issued by Federal National Mortgage Association 
represent 7%.  The investment policy is silent in the concentration of holding in the various 
types of securities and investments. 
 
 
Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund Investments 
 

 The Firemen’s Relief and Retirement Fund Investments (Plan) are recorded at fair value as of 
September 30, 2014.  The table below reflects the composition of these investments. 

 

  

Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund Investments: Investment Policy

Asset
Fair Value % of Portfolio Allocation

Equities:

   Domestic 20,426,727$  46.01% 30-60%

   International 6,046,476     13.62% 10-30%

Equities total 26,473,203    

Fixed income

Treasury/corporate bonds 11,105,348    

Fixed income total 11,105,348    25.02% 20-50%

 

Alternative investments 6,814,878 15.35% 0-20%

Total portfolio 44,393,429$  100.00%
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Because of the complexity of the portfolio, the firemen’s board of trustees relies on its 
consultant to provide the necessary guidance to accomplish the Plan’s objectives.  The Board 
also understands that return objectives can be achieved while assuming “market” volatility.  
The Board is willing to forgo potential return in strong markets in return for protection against 
a severe decline during weak periods. 
 

Concentration of credit risk.  As noted in the above schedule, none of the sectors exceed 
their percentage of asset allocation.     The Plan is well diversified; with no one issue 
exceeding 5%.  With the exception of the alternative investments, the portfolio can be 
liquidated within one to two days if so desired.  Alternative investments can only be 
liquidated quarterly.   
 
Interest rate risk.  Only the fixed income securities of the Plan are subject to interest rate 
risk due to the possibility that prevailing interest rates could change before the securities 
reach maturity.  Securities that are subject to interest rate risk as of September 30, 2014 
amount to $10,071,089 and have weighted-average duration of 2.47 years.  Durations is 
defined as the change in the value of a fixed income security that will result from a 1% 
change in interest rates.  Duration is stated in years.  For example, 5 year duration means the 
bond will decrease in value by 5% if interest rates rise 1% and increase in value by 5% if 
interest rates fall 1%.  Securities that are subject to interest rate risk are shown in the 
following table.  The investment policy is silent on the subject. 
  

Weighted-Average
Percentage Duration

Investment Type Fair Value of Total (Years)

Corporate bonds 3,550,582$      35.26% 3.90

Government agencies 1,392,936       13.83% 1.87

Government bonds 1,613,507       16.02% 5.03

Government MBS 514,687          5.11% 5.61

Sub-pranationals 6,103             0.06% 0.02

Municipal & derivatives 2,993,274       29.72% 0

Total interest rate sensitive bonds 10,071,089$    100.00% 2.47

 
Credit risk.  Using Standard and Poor’s rating system for fixed income securities as of 
September 30, 2013 the Plan’s bonds were rated as noted below. The investment policy is 
silent on the subject. 
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Percentage S&P
Fair Value of Total Rating

2,159,162$     21.44% AAA
373,268         3.71% AA

2,624,380      26.06% A
838,232         8.32% BBB

1,546,878      15.36% BB
2,099,523      20.85% B

361,012         3.58% CCC
68,634           0.68% Not rated

Total credit sensitive bonds 10,071,089$   100.00%

 
Foreign currency risk.  The Plan has one equity investment manager that has direct foreign 
currency exposure.  The table in the following page represents a summary of the 
country/currency allocations as of September 30, 2014.  The investment policy is silent on 
the subject. 
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Percentage
Country Fair Value of Total

Australia 136,271$         2.2%
Austria 10,192              0.2%
Brazil 135,599            2.2%
Canada 587,450            9.5%
China 375,355            6.1%
Denmark 48,358              0.8%
Egypt 15,722              0.3%
France 279,912            4.5%
Germany 185,674            3.0%
India 151,321            2.4%
Indonesia 68,782              1.1%
Ireland 264,527            4.3%
Italy 88,910              1.4%
Japan 114,065            1.8%
Korea 290,851            4.7%
Luxemburg 99,321              1.6%
Malaysia 68,782              1.1%
Mexico 112,017            1.8%
Netherlands 226,668            3.7%
Norway 3,547                0.1%
Phillippines 41,269              0.7%
Poland 13,756              0.2%
Russia 84,504              1.4%
South Africa 172,938            2.8%
Spain 96,717              1.6%
Sweden 69,176              1.1%
Switzerland 455,512            7.4%
Taiwan 251,547            4.1%
Thailand 104,156            1.7%
Turkey 78,608              1.3%
United States 28,408              0.5%
United Kingdom 885,481            14.3%
Other Developed Markets 193,320            3.1%
Other Emerging Markets 168,613            2.7%
Cash 272,969            4.4%

Totals 6,180,298$      100%
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(B) Receivables 
 

 
Receivables for the City’s governmental activities and business type activities at year end are 
reflected in the following table: 

  
 

Inter- Net
Accounts Taxes Interest governmental Other Receivables

Governmental activities:
General 1,789,882$    11,916,253$ 98,516$       49,315$        704,465$    14,558,431$  
Development corp. 28,750            2,554,971      29,694         -                     -                    2,613,415       
Capital Improvement -                       -                      11,839         1,607,213    4,244           1,623,296       
Nonmajor governmental -                     
and internal services 618,137          21,706           69,712         509,703        9,106           1,228,364       

Total governmental 2,436,769$    14,492,930$ 209,761$     2,166,231$  717,815$    20,023,506$  

Business-type activities:
Water 1,682,398$    -$                    6,036$         -$                  2,419$         1,690,853$    
Sewer 1,679,886       -                      2,259           21,933          12,117         1,716,195       
Sanitation 1,966,678       -                      13,974         -                     197              1,980,849       
Convention center 37,306            -                      4,031           -                     50,455         91,792            
McAllen international 
airport 413,593          -                      8,382           1,285,501    -                    1,707,476       
McAllen international 
toll bridge 1,484              -                      150,985        -                    152,469          
Nonmajor enterprise and 
fleet 61,367            -                      5,110           584,754        -                    651,231          

Total business type 5,842,712$    -$                    39,792$       2,043,173$  65,188$       7,990,865$    

 
Within the City’s water, sewer, and sanitation funds, an estimated amount has been recorded for 
services rendered but not yet billed as of the close of the year.  The receivable was determined by 
prorating the cycle billings sent to customers in October 2014 based on the number of days 
applicable to the prior fiscal year.  The receivable balances in the water, sewer, and sanitation have 
been reduced by estimated allowances for doubtful accounts.  Water accounts were reduced by 
$57,109; sewer accounts by $52,364; and sanitation accounts by $68,046. 
 
Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources in connection with receivables for 
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. 
Governmental funds defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been 
received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of 
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deferred inflows of resources and unearned revenue reported in the fund financial statements are 
reflected below: 
 
 

Unavailable Unearned

Governmental funds:

Delinquent property taxes receivable (general fund) 3,577,352$      -$                    

Sales tax (general fund) 4,054,724        -                      

Sales tax (development corp fund) 1,351,575        -                      

Other 3,349,238        583,633         

Total deferred/unearned revenues for governmental funds 12,332,889$   583,633$       
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(C) Capital assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Ending

Governmental activities: Balance Increases Retirement Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 49,271,274        $ 10,039,773      -                    $ 59,311,047         

Construction in progress 13,244,155        11,260,570      -                    24,504,725         

Total capital assets, not being

depreciated 62,515,429        21,300,343      -                    83,815,772         

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 129,830,071      3,206,840        -                    133,036,911       

Equipment 75,416,120        5,541,104        (1,148,018)    79,809,206         

Infrastructure 199,164,675      2,237,414        -                    201,402,089       

Total capital assets being depreciated 404,410,866      10,985,358      (1,148,018)    414,248,206       

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (38,560,321)      (4,387,642)       -                    (42,947,963)        

Equipment (54,121,146)      (5,123,406)       1,113,249      (58,131,303)        

Infrastructure (108,711,229)    (6,639,360)       -                    (115,350,589)      

Total accumulated depreciation (201,392,696)    (16,150,408)     1,113,249      (216,429,855)      

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 203,018,170      (5,165,050)       (34,769)         197,818,351       

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 265,533,599      $ 16,135,293      $ (34,769)         $ 281,634,123       
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Depreciation expense, exclusive of $1,113,249 in depreciation retirement, was charged to 
governmental functions as follows: 
 

General government 1,484,729$           

Public safety 2,513,395             

Highways and streets, which includes the depreciation of

 general infrastructure assets 6,918,766             

Health and welfare 14,178                  

Culture and recreation 3,469,490             

In addition, depreciation on capital assets held by the City's

 internal service funds is charged to the various functions

 based on their usage of the assets 1,749,850             

Total depreciation-governmental activities 16,150,408$         
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Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Retirements Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 21,147,150         $ 173,213            $ (293,358)            $ 21,027,005          
Construction in progress 63,926,008         18,430,619       (32,917,258)       49,439,369          
Water rights (perpetual) 4,923,100           -                        -                         4,923,100            
Goodwill 609,713              -                        -                         609,713               
Total capital assets, not being
depreciated 90,605,971         18,603,832       (33,210,616)       75,999,187          

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and systems 281,649,220       171,709            32,810,566        314,631,495        
Improvements other than buildings 170,848,747       1,141,710         -                         171,990,457        
Machinery and equipment 52,669,618         4,873,670         (1,592,157)         55,951,131          
Development cost 7,417,616           -                        -                         7,417,616            
Water rights (non-perpetual) 2,200,000           -                        -                         2,200,000            

Total capital assets being depreciated 514,785,201       6,187,089         31,218,409        552,190,699        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and systems (99,305,203)        (8,439,586)        -                         (107,744,789)       
Improvement other than buildings (77,050,664)        (7,785,553)        -                         (84,836,217)         
Machinery and equipment (34,211,513)        (4,326,958)        1,592,156          (36,946,315)         
Development cost (694,886)             (185,440)           -                         (880,326)              
Water rights (632,499)             (109,999)           -                         (742,498)              

Total accumulated depreciation (211,894,765)      (20,847,536)      1,592,156          (231,150,145)       

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 302,890,436       (14,660,447)      32,810,565        321,040,554        

Business-type activities 
Capital assets net $ 393,496,407       $ 3,943,385         $ (400,051)            $ $ 397,039,741        
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Depreciation expense, exclusive of $1,592,157 in depreciation retirement, was charged to 
business type activity functions as follows: 
 

  

Water 4,182,203$      

Sewer 5,754,548       

Sanitation 2,162,719       

Golf course 318,774          

Civic center 70,856            

Convention center 1,580,750       

McAllen international airport 3,553,819       

McAllen express 669,795          

Transit terminal 336,753          

McAllen international toll bridge 606,661          

Anzalduas international crossing 1,543,678       

In addition, depreciation on capital assets held by the City's

 Fleet management funds is charged to the various functions

 based on their usage of the assets 66,980            

Total depreciation-business type activities 20,847,536$    

 
 
At September 30, 2014, the City had the following significant remaining contractual 
commitments for various construction and improvement projects:    

 

Remaining
Project Description Commitment Financing Sources

Paving and drainage 887,797$     Local and grant
Public safety building renovation 1,538,679    Local
Sewer improvements 1,973,458    Local
Park improvements 867,500       Local 
Water improvements 106,534       Local 

Airport improvements 157,710       
Local, bond funds 
and grants

City hall renovations 422,004     Local
Roof restorations 225,600     Local
Performing arts center 42,855,576   Local and grant
Minor repairs 4,940           Local

49,039,798$ 
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(D)  Interfund receivables/loans, advances and transfers 
 

The compositions of inter-fund balances as of September 30, 2014 are reflected below.  
Receivable Fund: Payable Fund: Amount

General Fund Non-Major Governmental Funds 498,591$        
Water  Fund 657,649          
McAllen Bridge Fund 433                 

Total Governmental Funds 1,156,673$     

Civic Center Fund Non-Major Governmental Fund 46,190$          

Convention Center Fund Non-Major Governmental Fund 184,760$        

Airport Fund Water Fund 3,684,885$     

Total Proprietary Funds 3,915,835$     

Combined totals 5,072,508$     

 
 

A loan arrangement between the Water Fund and the Airport Fund for the airport building 
expansion was agreed in the amount of $4,500,000.  The prior year the ending “note payable” 
was $219,509.  This year the Water Fund issued an additional amount of $3,465,376, thus the 
current outstanding amount is $3,684,885.   The previous amount of $219,509 was reflected in 
the long-term liabilities section (F).  It is now disclosed in this section of the notes, since it is 
not a third party transaction. Payment terms and conditions of this arrangement are to be 
determined later. 
 
The due to/from other funds primarily represent temporary short-term borrowings for working 
capital, which are intended to be satisfied soon after year end. 
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Advances to/from other funds: 
 

 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund EB-5 Fund 190,000$    
General Insurance Fund Capital Improvement Fund 2,035,009   
Capital Improvement Fund Transit Terminal Fund 352,716       

Total 2,577,725$ 

 
The General Fund advanced to the EB-5 Fund $190,000 to finance the initial funding for 
operations.   
   
The General Insurance Fund advanced to the Capital Improvement Fund $2,035,009 to assist 
in funding the preliminary expenditures of the performing arts facility. The Capital 
Improvement Fund advanced the Transit Terminal Fund $352,716 to assist in funding the 
acquisition and construction of the transit terminal building.   
 
Transfers are used to 1) provide unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance 
various programs accounted for in other funds, and 2) move revenues from the fund that the 
budget requires to collect them to the fund that the budget requires to expend them.  The table 
below reflects the transfer activity at year end. 

 

Capital Imprv

and Anzalduas Int 'l

General Development Convention Nonmajor Nonmajor Crossing

Fund Corp. Center Governmental Proprietary Fund Total

Transfer out:

General fund -$                  1,000,000$ -$                3,507,424$  -$                  -$                4,507,424$       

Development corp. 3,707,424     -                 -                  250,000       1,266,880      -                  5,224,304         

Nonmajor prop. funds -                    150,000      -                  -                   -                    -                  150,000            

Nonmajor gov. funds 207,000        636,884      2,374,937   -                   593,734         -                  3,812,555         

Convention center fun -                    -                 -                  2,098,640    -                    -                  2,098,640         

General insurance fund -                    -                 -                  1,000,000    -                    -                  1,000,000         

Sanitation fund -                    -                 -                  270,000       -                    -                  270,000            

McAllen int 'l toll bridg 4,771,818     -                 -                  -                   -                    947,075       5,718,893         

McAllen int 'l airport 1,103,965     -                 -                  -                   -                    -                  1,103,965         

Total 9,790,207$   1,786,884$ 2,374,937$ 7,126,064$  1,860,614$    947,075$     23,885,781$     

T ransfer In:
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During the year, the General Fund transferred $1,000,000 of surplus revenues to the Capital 
Improvement Fund to assist in funding some major projects contemplated in next year’s 
budget.  It also provided funding in the amount of $3,507,424 to the Debt Service Fund, a non 
major governmental fund. This funding is to cover the debt service requirements of the existing 
Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2010.  
 
The Development Corporation provided funding for operating costs to the McAllen Express 
Fund and Transit System Fund in the amounts of $921,127 and $345,753 respectively, as 
reflected in the non-major proprietary column.  It also transferred $3,707,424 to the General 
Fund for operating expenditures associated with the public safety building, which was 
originally a project of the Development Corporation Fund, as well as $250,000 to the EB-5 
Fund to cover startup costs of the fund. 
 
The transfers of $2,374,937 and $593,734 from the Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund, a non-major 
governmental fund, to the Convention Center and Civic Center.  The transfer of $207,000 from 
the Downtown Service Parking Fund, a non-major governmental fund, to the General Fund is a 
reimbursement for debt service requirements on the debt related to the downtown parking 
garage.  The transfer of $636,884 from the Certificate of Obligation Library Construction 
Fund, a non-major governmental fund, to the Development Corporation Fund, represents the 
final closing of the Certificate of Obligation Library Construction fund.  
 
The General Insurance Fund and the Sanitation Fund transferred $1,000,000 and $270,000, 
respectively, to the Information Technology Fund, a non-major governmental fund, to cover 
the costs associated with the purchase of technology equipment and software.  
 
The transfer of $1,103,965 from the Airport Fund to the General Fund represents 
reimbursement for public safety personnel assigned to the airport. 
 
The Convention Center Fund transferred $2,098,640 to the Performing Arts-General 
Obligation Fund for funding expenditures related to the Performing Arts Center. 
 
The Civic Center Depreciation Fund, a non-major proprietary fund, transferred $150,000 to the 
Capital Improvement Fund for expenditures related to the Performing Arts Center. 
 
The amount reflected from the McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund to the General Fund of 
$4,771,818 represents the City’s share of surplus net revenue from operation of the 
international toll bridge.  Additionally, it transferred $947,075 to the Anzalduas International 
Crossing Fund for debt service requirements on the International Toll Bridge System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2007B. 
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(E) Operating leases 
 

The McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund leases property and buildings to the United 
States Government, the State of Texas, and various commercial dealers under operating 
leases.  The leases range from monthly leases with commercial dealers to a 15-year lease with 
the General Service Administration (GSA).  
Estimated future minimum lease payments to be received under the non-cancellable operating 
lease with GSA are as follows: 
 

  

Year Ending Amount

2015 2,118,988$   

2016 2,118,988      

2017 2,118,988      

2018 2,118,988      

2019 2,118,988      

2020-2024 10,594,940   

2025-2029 10,594,940   

Totals 31,784,820$ 

 
 
 
 
 

(F) Long-term liabilities 
 

(1)  General obligation bonds and other   
 
The City issues general obligation bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of major 
capital facilities, generally for governmental activities and are direct obligations, for which the 
City has pledged the full faith and credit of the government.  These bonds generally are serial 
bonds and carry a term of 20 years or more with varying amounts of principal maturing each 
year.  All outstanding general obligation bonds have been retired, leaving only sales tax 
revenue bonds and combination tax and revenue certificates of obligation bond indebtedness. 

  
The schedule that follows presents an analysis of general long-term debt outstanding, followed 
by a schedule of the debt service requirements on those bonds. 
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Governmental activities

$25,000,000 Development Corporation of McAllen, Inc.
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1998  due in annual installments of
$25,000 per year through February 15, 2018; interest
at 4.80% to 5.25% 100,000$        

  $29,030,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
    Series 2010 due in annual installments ranging from $2,170,000 to
    $3,450,000 per year through February 15, 2020, with a final installment
    of $3,450,000; interest at 2.00% to 5.00% 18,995,000      

  $42,380,000 General Obligation Bonds,
    Series 2014 due in annual installments ranging from $600,000 to
    $3,085,000 per year through February 15, 2034, with a final installment
    of $3,085,000; interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 42,380,000      

  $11,850,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
    Series 2014 due in annual installments ranging from $205,000 to
    $840,000 per year through February 15, 2034, with a final installment
    of $840,000; interest at 3.00% to 4.00% 11,850,000      

Unamortized bond premium 3,887,561       

Net OPEB obligation 1,131,455       

Net pension obligation 814,623          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 10,303,250      

Total general long-term liabilities 89,461,889$    

 
 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity on sales tax bonds payable and combination tax 
and revenue certificates of obligation as of September 30, 2014, including interest, are reflected in 
following page.  



CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

September 30, 2014 
 
 

- 85 - 
 

  

Year Ending Principal Interest

2015 3,695,000      3,846,685         

2016 4,935,000      2,602,401         

2017 5,115,000      2,418,263         

2018 5,295,000      2,241,400         

2019 5,450,000      2,059,457         

2020-2024 15,670,000     7,850,244         

2025-2029 15,015,000     4,993,197         

2030-2034 18,150,000     1,855,756         

Totals 73,325,000$   27,867,403$      

 
 
 
(2) Revenue bonds and other 
 
The City also issues bonds, for which it pledges revenue, derived from the activity using the bond-
financed assets, to pay debt service.  The following schedule is an analysis of the business-type 
activity long-term debt, including related revenue bonds.  

  

Payable from Water Fund:

$14,263,200 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue

and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 due in annual installments from 

$30,000 to $2,005,000 through February 1, 2030: interest at 3.00% to 5.25% 11,261,600$    

$12,029,050 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue

and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 due in annual installments from $685,000

to $1,960,000 through February 1, 2031: interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 9,004,559       

Unamortized bond premium 625,668          

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 460,743          

Total water fund 21,352,570$    
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Payable from Sewer Fund:

$11,206,800 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue

and Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 due in annual installments from $30,000

to $2,005,000 through February 1, 2030: interest at 3.00% to 5.25% 8,848,400$      

$26,525,950 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue

and Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 due in annual installments from $685,000 

to $1,960,000 through February 1, 2031: interest at 3.00% to 5.00% 21,470,441      

$39,485,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2009

due in annual installments from $1,090,000 to $1,350,000

 through February 1, 2040: with no interest 35,125,000      

$1,190,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue

Series 2012 due in annual installments from $95,000 to $1,135,000 

through February 1, 2022: interest at 0.240% to 0.850%; with interest 

commencing  February 1, 2019 995,000          

$6,655,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013

due in annual installments from $175,000 to $285,000

 through February 1, 2043: interest at 1.60%. 6,480,000       

$217,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A

due in annual installments from $18,000 to $25,000

 through February 1, 2043: interest at 2.43%. 199,000          

$2,995,000 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B

due in annual installments from $270,000 to $310,000

 through February 1, 2043: interest at 0.52%. 2,725,000       

Unamortized bond premium 1,113,406       

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 344,867          

Total sewer fund 77,301,114$    
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Payable from Sanitation Fund:

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 364,134$       

Payable from Palm View Golf Course Fund:

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 76,041$         

Payable from  Convention Center Fund:

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 107,076$       

Payable from McAllen International Airport Fund:

$9,820,000 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificate of Obligation

Bonds, Series 2011 due in annual installments from $325,000 

to $710,000 through September 30, 2031: interest at 2.00% to 4.75% 8,750,000$     

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 91,095           

Total airport fund 8,841,095$     

Payable from McAllen Express Fund:

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 81,756$         

Payable from Transit System Fund:

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 9,043$           

Payable from McAllen International Toll Bridge Fund:

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 104,960$       
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Payable from Anzalduas International Crossing Fund:

$26,000,000 International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A

due in annual installments from $415,000 to $1,895,000 through

March 1, 2032: interest at 4.50% to 4.65% 23,135,000$    

Payable from Anzalduas International Crossing Fund (Continued):

$13,160,000  International Toll Bridge System Revenue Bonds, Series 2007B

due in annual installments from $340,000 to $915,000 through 11,310,000      

March 1, 2032: interest at 4.00% to 5.00%

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 16,347            

Unamortized bond premium 446,417          

Total Anzalduas International Crossing Fund 34,907,764$    

Payable from Fleet Materials Management Fund (an internal service fund 
treated as BTA):

Unpaid accumulated compensated absences 27,003$          

Total Proprietary Fund Debt 143,172,556$  
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The table below reflects the revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity. 

 

Year Ending Principal Interest

2015 6,813,000$     4,728,161$       

2016 7,141,000      4,537,645         

2017 7,381,000      4,287,368         

2018 7,652,000      4,024,982         

2019 7,977,000      3,744,822         

2020-2024 35,565,000     14,656,105       

2025-2029 34,445,000     6,827,328         

2030-2034 21,870,000     1,137,127         

2035-2039 8,010,000      168,929            

2040-2043 2,450,000      43,954              

Total bonds  
outstanding 139,304,000$ 44,156,421$      

 
 
 
Defeased Bonds Outstanding 
 
In prior years, the City issued refunding bonds to defease certain outstanding bonds for the purpose 
of consolidation and to achieve debt service savings.  The City had placed the proceeds from the 
refunding issues in irrevocable escrow accounts with a trust agent to ensure payment of debt service 
on the refunded bonds. 
 
Accordingly, the trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the 
City’s financial statements.  Although defeased, the refunded debt from these earlier issues will not 
be actually retired until the call dates have come due or until maturity if they are not callable issues.  
On September 30, 2014, $16,130,000 of Combination and Tax and Revenue Certificates of 
Obligation bonds and $18,960,400 of Waterworks and Sewer System Improvement Revenue bonds 
outstanding are considered defeased. 
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(3)  Changes in long-term liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2014 is shown in the table below: 
 

Additional
Balance at Obligations Retirement Balance at Amounts

September 30, and Net and Net September 30, Due Within
2013 Increases Decreases 2014 One Year

Governmental activities:

Sales tax revenue bonds 125,000$             -$                      (25,000)$             100,000$             25,000$             

Certificates of obligation 21,735,000          11,850,000        (2,740,000)          30,845,000          3,070,000          
General obligation bonds -                          42,380,000        -                          42,380,000          600,000             
Bond premium 873,183               3,082,885          (68,507)               3,887,561            1,432,653          
Compensated absences 9,454,720            5,816,764          (4,968,234)          10,303,250          4,839,000          
Net OPEB obligation 1,131,455            -                        -                          1,131,455            -                        
Net pension obligation 546,756               267,867             -                          814,623               -                        

Total general long-term 33,866,114          63,397,516        (7,801,741)          89,461,889          9,966,653          

Business-Type activities:
Revenue bonds payable 145,707,002        -                        (6,403,002)          139,304,000        6,813,000          
Compensated absences 1,590,781            1,286,269          (1,193,985)          1,683,065            1,034,805          
Bond premium 2,432,444            -                        (246,953)             2,185,491            -                        

Total proprietary fund debt 149,949,736        1,286,269          (7,843,940)          143,172,556        7,847,805          

Total debt 183,815,850$      64,683,785$      (15,645,681)$      232,634,445$      17,814,458$      

 
With respect to governmental activities, compensated absences and net OPEB obligation are 
liquidated by the General Fund.  The exception to this is net pension obligation, which is 
reflected as $814,623. Under business-type activities, a note payable of $219,509 was reflected 
at the end of September 30, 2013.  This was an inter-fund transaction between Airport Fund 
and Water Fund.  This amount of $219,509 and an additional amount of $3,465,376, which 
totals $3,648,885, is now reflected in section (D) interfund receivables/loans, advances, and 
transfers.   
 
 

(4) Debt covenants 
 

The City is required to comply with various provisions included in the trust indenture for issued 
bonds (including bonds issued through the Texas Water Development Board).  The City has 
complied with all significant provisions of the trust indenture.  
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Bonds issued by the City for the construction of the toll bridge located in the City of Mission are 
secured by the net revenues of both international bridges.   Also, bonds issued by the City for 
water and sewer improvements are secured by pledging the net revenues of the water and sewer 
utilities systems. 
 

 
IV.  Other information 
 
(A)  Risk Management 
 
 The City is exposed to various risks or torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 

injuries to employees, citizens and the general public; and natural disasters.  During fiscal 
year 2014, the City self-funded group health insurance, life insurance, general liability 
insurance, and workmen’s compensation insurance.  The City purchased insurance coverage 
for fire and extended coverage on buildings and contents; and fire, lightning, and windstorm 
insurance for its vehicles for damages in excess of certain limits. 
 
The group health insurance program is reported in the Employee Benefits Fund, an internal 
service fund.  General liability and workmen’s compensation insurance programs are reported 
in the General Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, and the Retiree Health Insurance 
Fund, an internal service fund. 

  
 The health insurance excess coverage policy covers individual claims in excess of $150,000.  

Third-party coverage is currently maintained for workmen’s compensation claims in excess of 
$400,000.  Third-party coverage is also currently maintained for general liability claims in 
excess of $10,000. 

  
 The City estimates the liabilities for its self-funded insurance programs on a case-by-case 

basis based on historical claims experience.  A liability for a claim is established if 
information indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the 
financial statements and the amount of loss is reasonably estimable.  Accruals for claims are 
adjusted on a regular basis based on the latest information available on each case.  Claims 
incurred but not reported have been considered in determining the accrual for claims, and City 
management believes adequate accruals have been provided at September 30, 2014.  Inter-
fund premiums are based primarily on claims experience and are reported as interfund 
services provided and used. 

 
 There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year by 

major category of risk.  In addition, there were no insurance settlements exceeding insurance 
coverage in any of the past three years. Changes in claims payable amounts for the most 
recent two years are reflected in the following page. 
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Retiree
Employee Health General
Benefits Insurance Insurance Total

Claims payable at      
September 30, 2012 (1,750,000)$ (240,000)$   (367,475)$   (2,357,475)$ 

Current period claims and changes
in estimate (7,860,316)   (1,129,610)  (1,098,620)  (10,088,546) 

Current period claims paid 7,860,316     1,129,610   1,054,917    10,044,843  

Claims payable at     
September 30, 2013 (1,750,000)   (240,000)     (411,178)     (2,401,178)   

Current period claims and changes
in estimate (9,053,786)   (1,049,307)  (3,131,226)  (13,234,319) 

Current period claims paid 9,053,786     1,049,307   3,212,046    13,315,139  

Claims payable at     
September 30, 2014 (1,750,000)$ (240,000)$   (330,358)$   (2,320,358)$ 

 
(B) Contingent liabilities  

 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by 
grantor agencies, principally the federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including 
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.  The amount, if 
any of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, 
although the City expects such amounts, if any to be immaterial. 
 
The City is a defendant in various lawsuits.  Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not 
presently determinable, in the opinion of the City’s management and legal counsel the 
resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of 
the City. 
 
The City has been granted authority from U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Service to operate 
an EB-5 Visa (also known as the Employment Based 5th Preference Visa) Regional Center, 
which attracts foreign investment for jobs creation in exchange for expediting applicants for 
permanent residency.  This activity is accounted for in a non-major governmental fund.  
Under this program a foreign national deposits with the City—in addition to $10,000 
application fee, $540,000, which is held in deposit pending approval of permanent residency, 
at which time $40,000 is released to the City as an administrative fee and the remaining 
$500,000 to the investment project selected by applicant.  As of September 30, 2014, the  
deposit amount totaled $7,085,000.   
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(C)  Accounting for post-employment benefits other than pensions 
 
Prior to the implementation of GASB 45 “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers 
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”, the City reported retiree’s health benefits 
in the Employee Benefits Fund.  The City created an internal service fund entitled “Retiree 
Health Insurance Fund” to accommodate the provisions of GASB 45. 
 

(1) Plan Description: The City provides post-employment health care benefits for eligible 
retirees and their dependents.  To be eligible to elect retiree medical coverage, a City 
employee retiring at age 60 or over must have at least 10 years of service with the 
City.  City employees retiring before age 60 must have at least 25 year of service with 
the City. Members of the City’s Fire Department are eligible to retire on or after age 
50 with at least 20 years of service with the City. 
 
Effective October 1, 2008, spouses must have been covered for at least three years 
prior to retirement, Retirees less than age 65 will have a one-time option to drop 
coverage and to be reinstated once the retiree reached age 65 and has enrolled in 
Medicare Parts A and B. Retirees are required to pay 100% of the blended (active and 
retiree) premium cost for both single and dependent coverage.  However, police 
officers who retired prior to October 1, 2010 with 25 or more years of service pay 
50% of the blended premium cost for both single and dependent coverage.  As of year 
end, there were 116 employees who had retired: 59 with single coverage; 38 single 
coverage with one dependent; and 19 with family coverage. 

 
(2) Funding Policy:  The policy of the City is to fund the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.   

 
(3) Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation:  The Retiree Health Insurance Fund’s 

(Fund) ARC is actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB 
Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension.  The ARC represents a level of funding 
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to 
exceed 30 years. The most current actuarial valuation was October 1, 2012. The 
following table shows the Fund’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually 
contributed to the plan, and changes in the Fund’s net OPEB obligation.  This net 
OPEB obligation in the amount of $1,131,455 is recorded in the governmental 
activities column of the statement of net position.   
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Annual required contribution 859,964$        
Interest on net OPEB obligation 57,710            
Adjustment to annual required contribution (72,214)           

Annual OPEB cost 845,460          
Contributions made (763,275)         

Increase in net OPEB obligation 82,185            

Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year (revised) 1,049,270       

Net OPEB obligation at end of year 1,131,455$     

Net OPEB Obligation

 
 

The City’s annual OPEB cost and the percentage cost contributed to the plan for the 
year ended September 30, 2014 is as follows: 

   

Annual Percentage of Net OPEB
Year Ended OPEB Annual OPEB Obligation (Asset)

September 30, Cost Cost Contributed at Year End

2008 548,770$  136.6% (201,098)$         
2009 551,544    96.2% (179,896)           
2010 882,368    51.5% 248,430            
2011 882,368    62.2% 572,194            
2012 862,625    44.7% 1,049,270         
2013 845,460    90.3% 1,131,455          

  
 

(4) Funded Status and Funding Progress:  The funding of the plan was based on the 
actuarial valuation dated October 1, 2012.  The study reported the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability (UAAL) at $7,165,857 with an annual required cost of $859,964. The 
actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an UAAL of $7,165,857.  The City 
contributed $736,157 at year end. The City will also be required to have an actuarial 
valuation performed at least every two years. The next actuarial valuation will be 
performed at the end of September 30, 2014.  The table in the following page reflects 
the funding progress.  
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Actuarial 
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/08 -$               7,253,404$     7,253,404$     0.0% 60,443,815$      12.0%
10/01/10 -                 8,076,583       8,076,583       0.0% 62,858,165        12.8%
10/01/12 -                 7,165,857       7,165,857       0.0% 71,155,679        10.1%

 
(5) Actuarial Methods and Assumptions:  Projections of benefits for financial reporting 

purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer 
and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing the benefits costs between the employer 
and the plan members to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in 
actuarial accrued liabilities consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations.  For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, the actuarial valuation 
date was October 1, 2012.  The actuarial method used was the “projected unit credit” 
method, the amortization method used was the “level dollar open” method, and the 
remaining amortization period was 30 years.  The asset valuation method was market 
value and the assumed investment rate of return was 5.5%.  The healthcare initial 
inflation rate was 9%, with an ultimate goal of 5.0%.  Assumptions such as projected 
salary increases and post-retirement benefit increases are not applicable to the plan. 

 
(D) Retirement Plans  
 

   (1) Texas Municipal Retirement System 
 

a). Plan Description     
 

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible employees, except City 
Fire Department personnel, for whom there is a separate retirement plan, through 
a non-traditional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefit plan in the state-wide 
Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS), an agent multiple-employer public 
employee retirement system.  The plan provisions that have been adopted by the 
City are within the options available in the governing state statutes of TMRS.  
TMRS issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for 
TMRS; the report also provides detailed explanations of the contributions, benefits 
and actuarial methods and assumptions used the System.  This report may be 
obtained by writing to Texas Municipal Retirement System, P.O. Box 149153, 
Austin, Texas 78714-9153 or by calling 800-924-8677; in addition, the report is 
available on TMRS’ website at www.TMRS.com. 
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The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City, within the 
options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.  Plan provisions for the 
City were as follows: 
 
 Plan Year 2012 Plan Year 2013 
Employee deposit rate 7.0% 7.0% 
Matching ratio (city to employee) 2 to 1 2 to 1 
Years required for vesting 10 10 
Service retirement eligibility 
(expressed as age/years of service) 

60/10,0/20 60/10,0/20 

Updated Service Credit 0% 100%, Transfers  
Annuity Increase (to retirees) 0% of CPI 0% of CPI 
 

 b). Contributions 
 

Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is 
determined annually by the actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial cost 
method.  This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service 
cost contribution rate, which is calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year 
to-year.  The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of an active 
member’s projected benefit allocated annually; the prior service contribution rate 
amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the applicable 
period for that city.  Both the normal cost and prior service contribution rates 
include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating benefits, such as 
Updated Service Credits and Annuity increases. 
 
The City contributes to the TMRS Plan at an actuarially determined rate.  Both the 
employees and the City make contributions monthly.  Since the City needs to 
know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes, there is a one-year 
delay between the actuarial valuation that serves as the basis for the rate and the 
calendar year when the rate goes into effect.   For the current year the contribution 
rate was 6.64%   The annual pension cost and the net pension obligation/ (asset) 
are reflected in the table below. 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

Annual 
Pension 

Cost 

Actual 
Contribution 

Percentage 
of APC 

Contributed 

Net Pension 
Obligation/(Asset)

09/30/2012 $3,414,628 $3,414,628 100% $0 
09/30/2013 $3,559,374 $3,559,374 100% $0 
09/30/2014 $4,011,094 $4,011,094 100% $0 
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The required contribution rates for fiscal year 2014 were determined as part of the 
December 31, 2011 and 2012 actuarial valuations. Additional information as of 
the latest actuarial valuation, December 2012, is reflected below. 
 

   

Actuarial Valuation Date 12/31/12
 

Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Level Percent of Payroll

GASB 25 Equivalent Single 3.4 Years 
Amortization period Closed period

Amortization Period for new 
Gains/Losses 25 Years 

Asset valuation method 10-yr Smoothed Market
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.0%
Projected salary increases – Varies by 

age and service
includes inflation at 3.0%

cost-of-living adjustments None
 

Actuarial value of assets $174,613,086
 

Actuarial accrued liability $175,375,668

Percentage funded 99.6%

Unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (asset) (UAAL) $762,582

Annual covered payroll $57,320,330

UAAL as a percentage of covered
payroll 1.3%

 
The funded status as of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date 
is as follows (unaudited): 
 
Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $175,375,668 
Actuarial value of Assets 174,613,086 
  

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (Asset) 
(UAAL) 

$ 762,582 

Funded ratio (actuarial value of Assets/AAL) 99.6% 
Annual covered payroll $57,320,330 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 1.3% 
 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplementary 
Information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year end 
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information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.   

  
(2) Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund 

 
a). Plan Description     

 
Firemen’s Relief & Retirement Fund, a single-employer defined benefit plan (the 
“Plan”), was created pursuant to the Texas Local Fire Fighter’s Retirement Act 
(“TLFFRA”) and is administered by the Board of Trustees of the fund.  The fund 
provides pension, disability, death, and severance benefits to employees of the 
City’s fire department and former volunteer firemen eligible to receive benefits. 
 
The City issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the Firemen’s Relief & 
Retirement Fund.  This financial report may be obtained by writing to the City of 
McAllen Finance Director, P.O. Box 220, McAllen, Texas 78505-0220 or by calling 
(956) 681-1064. 

 
b).  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Basis of Accounting – The financial statements of the Firemen’s Relief & 
Retirement Fund are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  Employee and 
employer contributions are recognized as revenues when due, pursuant to formal 
commitments, as well as statutory or contractual requirements.  Benefits and refunds 
are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan 
document. 
 
Plan Benefits – Benefit provisions are established under authority of the TLFFRA.  
Specific plan provisions are governed by a Plan document and a trust agreement 
executed by the Board of Trustees.  The Plan document may be amended as 
provided in Section 7 of the TLFFRA (Article 6243e. V.T.C.S.)  Amending the Plan 
requires approval of any proposed change by an eligible actuary and a majority of 
the participating members of the Plan.  Both the City and the members of the Plan 
have specific authority to appoint members of the Board under TLFFRA. 

 
Pension Benefits – Pension benefits become fully vested after 20 years of credited 
service.  Employees may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service (“normal 
retirement age”).  A partially vested benefit is also provided for employees who 
terminate employment with at least 10 but less than 20 years of service.  The 
monthly benefit at normal retirement age, payable in an annuity, is equal to 58% of 
the compensation base, as defined, plus $58.00 per month for each year of service in 
excess of 20 years. 
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Death Benefits – Duty related death benefits payable to a member’s spouse equals 
the sum of 38.67% of the member’s compensation base, as defined, plus two-thirds 
of the member’s accrued retirement benefit at death.  Non-duty related benefits will 
equal the duty related death benefit to which the member’s beneficiary was eligible 
multiplied by the member’s vested percentage based on the member’s years of 
service at death.  In addition to the spouse’s benefit, each unmarried child of the 
member under age 18 will receive a monthly benefit of 7.73% of the firefighter’s 
average monthly salary.  The sum of all benefits payable as a result of the death of 
an active plan member may not exceed the disability or retirement benefit such 
member had earned as of the date of death. 

 
Severance Benefits – Members who terminate employment with less than 10 years 
of service will be entitled to the return of the excess of his/her contributions to the 
fund over the amount of any benefits received from the Plan.  Such refunds will not  
include any interest on the member’s contribution.  If a member terminates on or 
after the date of completing 10 years of service but prior to the date of completing 
20 years of service, he/she will be entitled to receive a monthly benefit, starting on 
the date he/she would have both completed 20 years of service and attained age 50, 
had he/she remained in the service of the fire department.  The amount the member 
will receive will equal the monthly service retirement benefit accumulated on the 
date the member separated from service with the fire department, multiplied by the 
member’s vested percentage. 
 
Method Used to Value Investments – Fund investments are reported at fair value.  
Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value.  The fair 
value of the Fund’s investments is based on the quoted value of each investment on 
the last business day of the Fund year.  The Plan’s investments are stated at fair 
value and, accordingly, unrealized appreciation and depreciation are reported in the 
statements of changes in plan net position.  The fair values of United States 
Government securities, corporate and foreign bonds, common stocks, and foreign 
equities are based on quoted market prices.  Plan values in investments in alternative 
investments is based on its percentage investment in each such fund.  The estimated 
fair value of each fund is based on market conditions and information reported by 
the fund managers, and is generally based on the estimated fair value of each funds’ 
underlying investments at the end of the reporting period.  No investment in any one 
organization (other than the U.S. Government or mutual funds) represents 5% or 
more of Fund assets.   
 
Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis and, 
accordingly, the related receivables and payables for any unsettled trades are 
recorded.  Interest income and dividends are recorded on the accrual basis. 
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c). Annual Pension Cost 
 

For 2010, the City’s annual pension cost was equal to the City’s actual and required 
contributions.  The required contribution was established as part of the September 30, 
2012 actuarial valuation using the entry-age actuarial cost method.  The actuarial 
assumptions included (a) 8% investment rate of return, compounded annually 
(b) projected salary increases of 4.25% per year, compounded annually, (c) inflation 
rate of 3.00% and (d) the amortization period is calculated from the rate contributed 
by the City.  The plan receives a fixed percentage of pay contribution from the City 
each year.  Thus, the City’s contribution is not expressed as a dollar amount.  This 
procedure is permitted under the Guide to Implementation of GASB Statements 25, 26 
and 27 on Pension Reporting and Disclosure by State and Local Government Plans 
and Employers.  The investment rate of return and the projected salary increases both 
used the same assumptions with regard to inflation.  The actuarial value of assets was 
determined using the smoothed market value technique, a technique that smoothes the 
effect of short-term volatility in the market value over a four-year period.  The 
unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected 
payrolls on an open basis.  The net pension obligation and the annual pension cost 
were developed using a 30-year amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability.  The most recent actuarial valuation was done as of September 30, 2012 with 
update disclosures under governmental accounting standards board statement number 
25, number 27, and number 50 as of September 30, 2014. The amounts of the 
actuarial value of assets represent estimates based upon the assumptions described 
above.  Changes in those estimates will result in changes in such estimates in the 
future.  The amount of benefits ultimately to be paid could differ materially from the 
current estimates.   
 
The schedule of actuarial funding progress is presented in the following page.  
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` 

Actuarial Valuation Date 09/30/12
 

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Level Percent of Projected Payroll
Remaining amortization period 30 Years open period
Asset valuation method 5yr Smooth Market Value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8%
Projected salary increases – 

includes inflation at 4.25%
cost-of-living adjustments None

 
Actuarial value of assets $37,857,152

 
Actuarial accrued liability $57,217,569

Percentage funded 66.2%

Unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) $19,360,417

Annual covered payroll $9,361,646

UAAL as a percentage of covered
payroll 206.8%

Schedule of Actuarial Funding Progress

   
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the profitability of occurrence of events far into the 
future.  Examples include assumptions about future rates of retirement, mortality, 
and salary increases.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual 
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are 
made about the future.  The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required 
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents 
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets are 
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits.  The accompanying Schedule of Employer Contributions presents trend 
information about the amount contributed to the Plan by the employer in 
comparison to the annual required contributions (“ARC”), an amount that is 
actuarially determined. 
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Annual pension cost 09/30/14 09/30/13 09/30/12

Annual required contribution (ARC) 1,609,159$  1,602,925$  1,376,033$  

Interest on NPO 43,740          22,041          14,610          

Adjustments to the ARC 50,261          (15,807)         10,478          

Total annual pension cost (APC) 1,703,160$  1,609,159$  1,380,165$  

Percentage of annual pension
cost contributed 84.3% 83.1% 93.3%

Contributions made 1,435,293$  1,337,910$  1,287,288$  
Increase in NPO 267,867$      271,249$      92,877$        
NPO at the end of the period 814,623$      546,756$      275,507$     

Schedule of Employer Contributions

 
 
d). Contributions 

 
The Plan’s minimum required contribution provisions are established under Title 8, 
Subtitle A, Chapter 802, Subchapter B, Section 802.101 of the Texas Government 
Code and under Texas Pension Review Board Guidelines for Actuarial Soundness.  
Specific Plan contribution rates are governed by the Plan document.  Changes in the 
members’ or the City’s contribution rate requires a plan amendment. 
 
The contribution rates of the Plan members and the City are established under the 
terms of the Plan.  An actuarial valuation is performed biennially to verify that Plan 
benefits and Plan contributions are in balance.  Costs of administering the fund are 
paid from Plan assets. 
 
Pursuant to the Plan document, a legal instrument binding both the City and its 
firefighters, the City of McAllen is required to match employee contributions.  
Benefits paid to former volunteer firefighters are funded by the City when paid to the 
former volunteer firefighters or beneficiaries.  The City’s contribution rate for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 was 13.00% of annual compensation.  
Contributions required and paid into the fund as of September 30, 2014 were 
members, $1,214,786 and employer, $1,435,293. 

 
e). Other pension information 
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In September 2003, Texas voters approved an amendment to the Texas Constitution, 
which provided that once certain benefits are granted to retirees, those benefits may 
not be subsequently reduced.  It was codified as Article XVI, Section 66, of the Texas 
Constitution.  The amendment applies only to the City of McAllen Firefighters’ Relief 
and Retirement Plan.  It further provided that the City and the retirement system that 
finance benefits under the retirement system are jointly responsible for ensuring that 
benefits are not reduced or otherwise impaired, which could potentially require the 
City to involuntarily increase its funding due to under-performing investments, plan 
improvements as well as other factors outside the control of the City.  The amendment 
also permitted the City to be exempt from its requirements upon holding an election in 
which the majority of the votes favored the exemption.  On May 15, 2004, a special 
City election was held, in which the majority of the voters voted in favor of exempting 
the City of McAllen and the McAllen Firefighters’ Relief and Retirement Plan from 
the application of this amendment, Article XVI, Section 66 of the Texas Constitution.   

 
(E) Subsequent events  
 

 A parcel of land was sold to a local hospital at a sale price of $4,453,211 for anticipated 
expansion by the hospital.  Land was originally purchased during the current fiscal year from 
the General Insurance Fund in anticipation of a medical school. The development of a state of 
the art research facility and student housing complex located on the campus is expected to 
have a local economic impact for the area after development of the land. 
  

 The City refunded two long term issues:  Refunding Series 2010 Certificate of Obligations 
and Refunding Water & Sewer Series 2005.  The current outstanding principal for the Series 
2010 is $18,995,000 and the estimated interest is $2,053,913.   The current outstanding 
principal for the Series 2005 is $20,110,000 and the estimated interest is $7,409,248.  The 
potential interest savings after the reissuance is estimated to be $1,119,104 for the 2010 Series 
and $3,932,078 for the 2005 Series. 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON-(Unaudited)

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

12/31/07 90,516,206$    91,916,258$           1,400,052$  98.5% 47,258,770$   3.0%
12/31/08 97,604,499      100,472,137           2,867,638   97.1% 53,770,371    5.3%
12/31/09 105,016,856    118,250,995           13,234,139 88.8% 57,440,380    23.0%
12/31/10 149,600,330    148,677,672           (922,658)     100.6% 58,890,846    -1.6%
12/31/11 161,885,479    159,194,692           (2,690,787)  101.7% 56,625,910    -4.8%
12/31/12 174,613,086    175,375,668           762,582      99.6% 57,320,330    1.3%

Refer to page 92 of the notes to financial statements for the actuarial assumptions of the plan.  These are a required part of RSI.
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON-(Unaudited)

FIREMEN'S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

09/30/02 21,116,716$   28,141,949$           7,025,233$  75.0% 5,190,836$  135.3%
09/30/04 25,443,339     33,227,793             7,794,454   76.6% 5,818,893   133.8%
09/30/06 29,226,476     38,659,974             9,433,498   75.6% 6,817,267   138.4%
09/30/08 34,588,465     45,073,090             10,484,625 76.7% 8,199,849   127.9%
09/30/10 36,651,357     51,565,906             14,914,549 71.1% 8,996,407   165.8%
09/30/12 37,857,152     57,217,569             19,360,417 66.2% 9,361,646   206.8%

Refer to page 101 of the notes to financial statements for the actuarial assumptions of the plan.  These are a required part of RSI

The next actuarial valuation will be performed as of September 30, 2012.

The City issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial
 statements and required supplementary information for the Firemen's Fund.

This financial report may be obtained by writing to the City of McAllen Finance
 Director, P.O. Box 220, McAllen, Texas 78505-0220 or by calling (956) 681-1064.
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON-(Unaudited)

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

10/01/06 -$                    4,568,795$             4,568,795$  0.0% 51,690,160$   8.8%
10/01/08 -                      7,253,404               7,253,404   0.0% 60,443,815    12.0%
10/01/10 -                      8,076,583               8,076,583   0.0% 62,858,165    12.8%
10/01/12 -                      7,165,857               7,165,857   0.0% 71,155,679    10.1%

Refer to page 95 of the notes to financial statements for the actuarial assumptions of the plan.

This is a "single-employer" plan and no separate financial report is issued by the City.
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The Debt Service Fund was established to retired general government debt.

Capital Projects Funds:

Certificate of Obligation Reservior Fund was established to account for all expenses related to the 
improvements of  and extensions to the City's Waterworks System.

Certificate of Obligation Library Fund was established to account for all expenses related to the 
construction of the City's Main Library.

The McAllen EB5 Regional Center Fund was established to account for revenues and expenditures 
to operate an EB-Regional Center under the U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services (USCIS).

The PD Seized Fund was established to account for court awarded funds and use for purchase of 
police department capital assets .

Information Technology Fund was established to account for all expenses related to the 
implementation of strategic technology projects.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for resources allocated to specific purposes.  A special revenue 
fund continues in existence as long as governmental resources are allocated to its specific purposes:

The Park Development Fund was established to account for land acquired for future park 
development.

The Community Development Fund was established to account for receipt and disbursement of 
Federal Program revenues.

The Miscellaneous Government Grants Fund was established to account for all grant programs 
applicable to the City for which a separate fund is not established.

The Hotel Occupancy Tax Fund was established to account for the hotel-motel occupancy tax 
levied.  This tax revenue is allocated to the promotion of tourism and conventions, promotion of 
the arts, support of convention center and civic center management, and other expenditures.

The Hotel Venue Tax Fund was established to account for funding under Ordinance 2012-69 for a  
2%  Hotel Occupancy tax for a Performing Arts Facility.



Hotel 
Occupancy Tax

Hotel Venue 
Project

McAllen EB-5 
Regional 
Center

Park 
Development

Community 
Development

Miscellaneous 
Government 

Grants

Downtown 
Services 
Parking

ASSETS

Cash 15,911$             5,308$               207,403$           56,807$             -$                      67,166$             35,943$             

Certificate of deposit - - - 487,550 - - 97,510

Investments 25,171 1,901,569 7,078,892 418,598 - - 301,682

Receivables:

 Accounts 307,164 87,761 - - - - -

 Taxes - - - - - - -

 Accrued interest - - - 229 - - 46

 Other - - - - - - 600

Due from other governments - - - - 116,008 393,695 -

   Total assets 348,246 1,994,638 7,286,295 963,184 116,008 460,861 435,781

Deferred outflows of resources - - - - - - -

Total assets and deferred outflows 348,246$           1,994,638$        7,286,295$        963,184$           116,008$           460,861$           435,781$           

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 92,380$             -$                      -$                      -$                      66,888$             33,404$             23,990$             

Accrued liabilities - - 7,200 - 11,051 - 24,148

Due to other funds 230,950 - - - 38,069 391,971 -

Unearned revenues - - - - - 17,308 -

Advances from other funds - - 190,000 - - - -

Other liabilities - - 7,085,000 - - - 17

  Total liabilities 323,330 - 7,282,200 - 116,008 442,683 48,155

Deferred inflows of resources - - - - - - -

Total liablities and deferred inflows 323,330 - 7,282,200 - 116,008 442,683 48,155

FUND BALANCES

Restricted 24,916 1,994,638 4,095 963,184 - 18,178 -

Commited - - - - - - 387,626

Assigned - - - - - - -

Total fund balances 24,916 1,994,638 4,095 963,184 - 18,178 387,626

Total liabilities and fund balances 348,246$           1,994,638$        7,286,295$        963,184$           116,008$           460,861$           435,781$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

 September 30, 2014

Special Revenue
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PD Seized Total Debt Service
Information 
Technology

Certificate of 
Obligation 

Library
Street 

Improvements
Performing 
Arts-G.O.

Performin Arts-
C.O.

Sports 
Facilities

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds

79,072$             467,610$           200$                 -$                          -$                      -$                      5,764$               6,994$               6,145$               486,713$           

975,100 1,560,160 - 97,510 - 10,839,150 13,780,200 7,840,800 10,100,000 44,217,820

4,249,020 13,974,932 500,168 1,279,915 - 4,139,778 2,579,948 4,259,217 4,359,983 31,093,941

- 394,925 - - - - - - - 394,925

- - 21,706 - - - - - - 21,706

8,647 8,922 - 400 - 5,277 4,104 6,606 7,870 33,179

- 600 - - - - - - - 600

- 509,703 - - - - - - - 509,703

5,311,839 16,916,852 522,074 1,377,825 - 14,984,205 16,370,016 12,113,617 14,473,998 76,758,587

- - - - - - - - - -

5,311,839$        16,916,852$      522,074$           1,377,825$            -$                      14,984,205$      16,370,016$      12,113,617$      14,473,998$      76,758,587$      

761,875$           978,537$           -$                      320,107$               -$                      851$                 1,238,996$        562$                 828$                 2,539,881$        

91,418 133,817 208,176 - - - 104,558 - - 446,551

- 660,990 - 52,978 - 15,573 - - - 729,541

- 17,308 - - - - - - - 17,308

- 190,000 - - - - - - - 190,000

- 7,085,017 - - - - - - - 7,085,017

853,293 9,065,669 208,176 373,085 - 16,424 1,343,554 562 828 11,008,298

- - 21,706 - - - - - - 21,706

853,293 9,065,669 229,882 373,085 - 16,424 1,343,554 562 828 11,030,004

4,458,546 7,463,557 292,192 - - 14,967,781 15,026,462 12,113,055 14,473,170 64,336,217

- 387,626 - - - - - - - 387,626

- - - 1,004,740 - - - - - 1,004,740

4,458,546 7,851,183 292,192 1,004,740 - 14,967,781 15,026,462 12,113,055 14,473,170 65,728,583

5,311,839$        16,916,852$      522,074$           1,377,825$            -$                      14,984,205$      16,370,016$      12,113,617$      14,473,998$      76,758,587$      

 

Special Revenue Capital Projects
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Hotel 
Occupancy Tax

Hotel Venue 
Project

McAllen EB-5 
Regional 
Center

Park 
Development

Community 
Development

Miscellaneous 
Government 

Grants

Downtown 
Services 
Parking

REVENUES

Hotel taxes 4,156,141$        1,187,625$        -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Property taxes - - - - - - -

Licenses and permits - - - - - - 14,898

Intergovernmental - - - - 1,581,605 3,458,801 -

Charges for services - - 30,000 - - - 1,155,814

Fines and forfeitures - - - - - - 195,092

Investment earnings 8 369 - 3,012 - - 619

Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments - - - - - - -

Other - - - 85,123 - 225,636 8,859

Total revenues 4,156,149 1,187,994 30,000 88,135 1,581,605 3,684,437 1,375,282

EXPENDITURES

Current:

 General government 1,187,469 - 97,925 - 342,367 - -

 Public safety - - - - - 3,600,010 -

 Highways and streets - - - - 190,730 - 935,446

 Health and welfare - - - - 970,755 - -

 Culture and recreation - - - - 77,753 84,430 -

 Debt service:

  Principal - - - - - - -

  Interest and fiscal charges - - - - - - -

 Total expenditures 1,187,469 - 97,925 - 1,581,605 3,684,440 935,446

 Excess (deficency) of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 2,968,680 1,187,994 (67,925) 88,135 - (3) 439,836

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - - 250,000 - - - -

  Transfers out (2,968,671) - - - - - (207,000)

  Debt issuance - - - - - - -

  Bond premium - - - - - - -

  Net other financing sources (uses) (2,968,671) - 250,000 - - - (207,000)

  Net change in fund balances 9 1,187,994 182,075 88,135 - (3) 232,836

Fund balances (deficits) at beginning of year 24,907 806,644 (177,980) 875,049 - 18,181 154,790

Fund balances (deficits) at end of year 24,916$             1,994,638$        4,095$               963,184$           -$                      18,178$             387,626$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

Special Revenue

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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PD Seized Total Debt Service
Information 
Technology

Certificate of 
Obligation 

Library
Street 

Improvements
Performing 
Arts-G.O.

Performing 
Arts-C.O.

Sports 
Facilities

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds

-$                      5,343,766$        -$                      -$                          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      5,343,766$        

- - 7,843 - - - - - - 7,843

- 14,898 - - - - - - - 14,898

- 5,040,406 - - - - - - - 5,040,406

- 1,185,814 - - - - - - - 1,185,814

781,032 976,124 - - - - - - - 976,124

37,609 41,617 278 3,000 154 23,013 22,856 16,202 22,670 129,790

- - - 3 - - - - - 3

- 319,618 - 83,313 1,079 - - - - 404,010

818,641 12,922,243 8,121 86,316 1,233 23,013 22,856 16,202 22,670 13,102,654

- 1,627,761 - 788,518 - - - - - 2,416,279

2,338,673 5,938,683 - - - - - - - 5,938,683

- 1,126,176 - - - 186,917 - - - 1,313,093

- 970,755 - - - - - - - 970,755

- 162,183 - - 4,516 4,762 2,231,481 217,714 685,947 3,306,603

- - 2,740,000 - - - - - - 2,740,000

- - 767,963 - - - - - - 767,963

2,338,673 9,825,558 3,507,963 788,518 4,516 191,679 2,231,481 217,714 685,947 17,453,376

(1,520,032) 3,096,685 (3,499,842) (702,202) (3,283) (168,666) (2,208,625) (201,512) (663,277) (4,350,722)

- 250,000 3,507,424 1,270,000 - - 2,098,640 - - 7,126,064

- (3,175,671) - - (636,884) - - - - (3,812,555)

- - - - - 14,126,667 14,126,667 11,850,000 14,126,667 54,230,001

- - - - - 1,009,780 1,009,780 464,567 1,009,780 3,493,907

- (2,925,671) 3,507,424 1,270,000 (636,884) 15,136,447 17,235,087 12,314,567 15,136,447 61,037,417

(1,520,032) 171,014 7,582 567,798 (640,167) 14,967,781 15,026,462 12,113,055 14,473,170 56,686,695

5,978,578 7,680,169 284,610 436,942 640,167 - - - - 9,041,888

4,458,546$        7,851,183$        292,192$           1,004,740$            -$                      14,967,781$      15,026,462$      12,113,055$      14,473,170$      65,728,583$      

 

Special Revenue Capital Projects
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These funds are used to account for City operations that are financed and/or operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises.  Included in this category are:  Palm View Golf Course; Civic Center; 
Transit Terminal; and McAllen Express.

The Palm View Golf Course Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the City's golf course.

The Civic Center Fund is utilized to account for the operations of a cultural center.

The Transit Terminal Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the Intermodal Transportation System

The McAllen Express Fund is utilized to account for the operations of the Bus Transportation System.



Palm View 
Golf Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash 70,844$            154,391$          124,690$          41,021$             390,946$          
Certificate of deposit 237,510 97,510 195,020 - 530,040
Investments 388,908 1,269,073 924,108 1,237,329 3,819,418
Receivables, net:
  Accounts 24 - 5,584 868 6,476
  Accrued interest 969 1,914 1,593 634 5,110
Due from other funds - 46,190 - - 46,190

Due from other governments - - 104,644 480,110 584,754

  Total currents assets 698,255 1,569,078 1,355,639 1,759,962 5,382,934

Restricted assets:
Cash 50,606 - - - 50,606
Investments 310,774 300,498 - - 611,272

   Total restricted assets 361,380 300,498 - - 661,878

Capital assets:
Land 187,995 358,070 - 1,684,593 2,230,658
Buildings and systems 228,345 1,454,607 - 5,602,219 7,285,171
Improvements other than buildings 7,717,383 1,283,398 468,923 129,552 9,599,256
Machinery and equipment 1,259,908 552,758 5,341,003 2,083,065 9,236,734
Construction in progress - - 20,220 140,560 160,780

  Total capital assets 9,393,631 3,648,833 5,830,146 9,639,989 28,512,599
    Less accumulated depreciation (6,074,770) (2,532,161) (3,112,193) (2,516,366) (14,235,490)

    Net capital assets 3,318,861 1,116,672 2,717,953 7,123,623 14,277,109

    Total assets 4,378,496 2,986,248 4,073,592 8,883,585 20,321,921

Deferred outflows of resources - - - - -

 Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 4,378,496$        2,986,248$        4,073,592$        8,883,585$        20,321,921$      

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2014
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Palm View 
Golf Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2014

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 63,533$            137,381$          116,157$          93,815$             410,886$          

Accrued expenses 29,954 - 74,071 24,621 128,646

Compensated absences 18,082 - - - 18,082
Other - 39 - - 39

  Total current liabilities 111,569 137,420 190,228 118,436 557,653

Other noncurrent liabilities:

Unearned revenues 72,507 14,528 - - 87,035

Unpaid compensated absences 57,959 - 81,756 9,043 148,758

Advances from other funds - - - 352,716 352,716

  Total other noncurrent liabilities 130,466 14,528 81,756 361,759 588,509

Total liabilities 242,035 151,948 271,984 480,195 1,146,162

Deferred inflows of resources - - - - -

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 242,035$           151,948$           271,984$           480,195$           1,146,162$        

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 3,318,861 1,116,672 2,717,953 7,123,623 14,277,109

Restricted for improvements - 300,498 - - 300,498

Unrestricted 817,600 1,417,130 1,083,655 1,279,767 4,598,152

Total net position 4,136,461 2,834,300 3,801,608 8,403,390 19,175,759

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 4,378,496$        2,986,248$        4,073,592$        8,883,585$        20,321,921$      
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Palm View Golf 
Course Civic Center

McAllen 
Express 
Transit

Transit 
Terminal Total

 

Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 842,872$           248,794$           526,778$       13,067$             1,631,511$     

 Rentals - 93,800 - - 93,800

 Other 309,258 15,122 457,730 129,353 911,463

  Total operating revenues 1,152,130 357,716 984,508 142,420 2,636,774

Operating expenses:

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 706,348 - 1,862,851 92,625 2,661,824

 Supplies 109,031 14,397 44,123 - 167,551

 Contractual and other services 156,146 333,282 715,659 256,560 1,461,647

 Repairs and maintenance 89,682 18,296 614,629 275,041 997,648

 Depreciation and amortization 318,774 70,856 669,795 336,753 1,396,178

  Total operating expenses 1,379,981 436,831 3,907,057 960,979 6,684,848

  Operating loss (227,851) (79,115) (2,922,549) (818,559) (4,048,074)

Nonoperating revenues:

 Investment earnings 1,827 3,923 6,271 1,975 13,996

 Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (240) (1,220) (1,290) (975) (3,725)

 Other - - 21,510 - 21,510

  Nonoperating revenues 1,587 2,703 26,491 1,000 31,781

  Loss before contributions and transfers (226,264) (76,412) (2,896,058) (817,559) (4,016,293)

Capital contributions - - 462,295 2,722,748 3,185,043

Transfers in - 593,734 921,127 345,753 1,860,614

Transfers out - (150,000) - - (150,000)

    Change in net position (226,264) 367,322 (1,512,636) 2,250,942 879,364

Total net position--beginning 4,362,725 2,466,978 5,314,244 6,152,448 18,296,395

Total net position--ending 4,136,461$        2,834,300$        3,801,608$    8,403,390$        19,175,759$   

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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McAllen  
International McAllen  

Palm View Civic  Express Transit  
Golf Course Center Transit Terminal Total

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Receipts from customers 1,152,231$          352,285$          978,923$        144,407$              2,627,846$       

  Payments to employees (705,355)              -                        (1,799,335)      (149,086)               (2,653,776)        

  Payments to suppliers (390,207)              (247,636)           (1,331,724)      (442,031)               (2,411,598)        

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 56,669                  104,649            (2,152,136)      (446,710)               (2,437,528)        

Cash flows from noncapital financing

  activities:

   Transfers from other funds -                            593,734            921,127          345,753                1,860,614         

   Transfers to other funds -                            (150,000)           -                      -                            (150,000)           

   Subsidy from federal grant -                            -                        427,596          2,252,143             2,679,739         

    Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities -                            443,734            1,348,723       2,597,896             4,390,353         

Cash flows from capital and related

  financing activities:

   Payments for capital acquisitions -                            -                        -                      (1,691,366)            (1,691,366)        

  Gain on sale of capital assets -                            -                        21,510            -                            21,510              

     Cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activ -                            -                        21,510            (1,691,366)            (1,669,856)        

Cash flows from investing activities:

   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 601,269               2,059,255         3,557,503       1,595,008              7,813,035         

   Purchase of investments (740,232)              (2,530,441)        (2,668,247)      (2,025,152)            (7,964,072)        

   Receipt of interest 652                       916                    3,907              766                        6,241                

  Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (138,311)              (470,270)           893,163          (429,378)               (144,796)           

    Net increase (decrease)  in cash (81,642)                78,113              111,260          30,442                  138,173            

    Cash  at beginning of year 203,092                76,278              13,430            10,579                   303,379            

    Cash at end of year 121,450$              154,391$          124,690$        41,021$                 441,552$          

Continued

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For  the Year Ended September 30, 2014
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McAllen
International McAllen  

Palm View Civic  Express Transit  
Golf Course Center Transit Terminal Total

Reconciliation of operating loss to 

  net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating  loss (227,851)$            (79,115)$           (2,922,549)$    (818,559)$              (4,048,074)$      

Adjustment to reconcile operating 

  loss to net cash provided (used) by operating

  activities:

   Depreciation 318,774               70,856              669,795          336,753                 1,396,178         

   Accounts receivable 102                       -                        (5,584)             1,985                    (3,497)               

   Due from other funds -                            (5,432)               -                      -                            (5,432)               

   Accounts payable (32,012)                116,203            42,686            69,757                  196,634            

   Compensated absences payable (847)                     -                        32,678            (38,005)                 (6,174)               

   Accrued expenses 1,840                    -                        30,838            1,359                    34,037              

   Unearned revenue (3,337)                  2,137                -                      -                            (1,200)               

     Total adjustments 284,520               183,764            770,413          371,849                1,610,546         

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 56,669$               104,649$          (2,152,136)$    (446,710)$             (2,437,528)$      

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments (240)                     (1,220)               1,290              (975)                      (1,145)               

Concluded

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
For  the Year Ended September 30, 2014

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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The Internal Service Funds were established to finance and account for services, materials, and supplies 
furnished to the various departments of the City, and on a limited basis, to other local governmental 
agencies.  These services are provided on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Employee Benefits Fund was established to account for all expenses related to health insurance 
premiums and claims for City employees.  Primary funding sources are transfers in from General Fund and 
Enterprise Funds.

The General Insurance Fund was established to account for all expenses related to workmen's 
compensation claims and general liability insurance.  Primary funding sources are transfers in from General 
Fund and Enterprise Funds.

The General Depreciation Fund which was established for the sole purpose of replacing fixed assets of the 
General Fund.  Funding has been provided by a rental charge to the appropriate department in the General 
Fund

The Fleet Materials Management Fund sales and services are accounted for in two Interdepartmental 
Service Fund departments:  Fleet Operations and Materials Management. 

The Retiree Health Insurance Fund was established to account for all expenses related to health insurance 
premiums and claims for retired City employees.



Fleet Materials 
Management

Employee 
Benefits

Retiree Health 
Insurance

ASSETS

Current assets:

 Cash 1,012,086$        58,584$             19,589$             

 Certificates of deposit - 195,020 -

 Investments - 891,544 2,153,736

 Receivables, net:

  Accounts 54,891 43,142 8,566

  Accrued interest - 2,891 4,910

  Other - 8,506 -

 Inventories 447,127 - -

 Total current assets 1,514,104 1,199,687 2,186,801

 Capital assets 807,353 40,998 -

 Less accumulated depreciation (454,115) (7,020) -

  Net capital assets 353,238 33,978 -

Advances to other funds - - -

  Total assets 1,867,342$        1,233,665$        2,186,801$        

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

 Accounts payable 606,225$           506,559$           51,046$             

 Accrued expense 34,169 1,778,645 240,000

  Total current liabilities 640,394 2,285,204 291,046

Other non-current liabilities:

 Accumulated unpaid compensated absences 27,003 18,989 -

  Total other non-current liabilities 27,003 18,989 -

  Total liabilities 667,397 2,304,193 291,046

NET POSITION

Net investment  in capital assets 353,238 33,978 -

Unrestricted 846,707 (1,104,506) 1,895,755

 Total net position 1,199,945 (1,070,528) 1,895,755

  Total liabilities and net position 1,867,342$        1,233,665$        2,186,801$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE  FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

 September 30, 2014
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General 
Insurance

General 
Depreciation Total

259,944$           5,419$               1,355,622$        

975,100 140,000 1,310,120

4,090,773 14,700,909 21,836,962

171,504 - 278,103

5,285 23,447 36,533

- - 8,506

- - 447,127

5,502,606 14,869,775 25,272,973

9,399,405 22,198,785 32,446,541

(18,189) (16,553,967) (17,033,291)

9,381,216 5,644,818 15,413,250

2,035,009 - 2,035,009

16,918,831$      20,514,593$      42,721,232$      

245,188$           254,251$           1,663,269$        

848,269 - 2,901,083

1,093,457 254,251 4,564,352

13,278 - 59,270

13,278 - 59,270

1,106,735 254,251 4,623,622

9,381,216 5,644,818 15,413,250

6,430,880 14,615,524 22,684,360

15,812,096 20,260,342 38,097,610

16,918,831$      20,514,593$      42,721,232$      
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Fleet Materials 
Management

Employee 
Benefits

Retiree Health 
Insurance

Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 3,761,917$        -$                       -$                       

Contributions - 8,800,682 489,242

Total operating revenues 3,761,917 8,800,682 489,242

Operating expenses:

 Salaries, wages and employee benefits 873,182 269,736 -

 Supplies and materials 16,226 3,106 -

 Contractual and other services 2,708,414 1,456,494 82,351

 Repairs and maintenance 31,887 - -

 Depreciation and amortization 66,980 5,320 -

 Self insurance claims - 9,083,296 313,151

  Total operating expenses 3,696,689 10,817,952 395,502

  Operating income (loss) 65,228 (2,017,270) 93,740

Non operating revenues (expenses):

 Investment earnings - 13,865 12,390

 Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - (3) (704)

 Other 17,085 105,495 -

  Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 17,085 119,357 11,686

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 82,313 (1,897,913) 105,426

Transfers out - - -

Change in net position 82,313 (1,897,913) 105,426

Total net position-beginning 1,117,632 827,385 1,790,329

Total net position--ending 1,199,945$        (1,070,528)$       1,895,755$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE  FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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General 
Insurance

General 
Depreciation Total

-$                       2,106,012$           5,867,929$        

3,898,962 - 13,188,886

3,898,962 2,106,012 19,056,815

294,298 - 1,437,216

4,012 - 23,344

1,455,460 - 5,702,719

1,336,247 - 1,368,134

- 1,744,094 1,816,394

3,212,046 - 12,608,493

6,302,063 1,744,094 22,956,300

(2,403,101) 361,918 (3,899,485)

64,983 88,470 179,708

13,572 12,150 25,015

1,962,802 14,521 2,099,903

2,041,357 115,141 2,304,626

(361,744) 477,059 (1,594,859)

(1,000,000) - (1,000,000)

(1,361,744) 477,059 (2,594,859)

17,173,840 19,783,283 40,692,469

15,812,096$      20,260,342$         38,097,610$      
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Fleet Retiree
Materials Employee Health

Management Benefits Insurance

Cash flows from operating activities:

  Receipts from customers 3,758,284$            8,915,103$                485,219$          

  Payments to employees (868,443)                (267,526)                    -                        

  Payments to suppliers (2,714,534)             (10,571,659)               (377,910)           

  Net cash provided (used)  by operating activities 175,307                 (1,924,082)                 107,309            

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

  Tansfer to other funds -                             -                                 -                        

Cash provided by non-capital financing activities -                             -                                 -                        

Cash flows from capital and related
 financing activities:
  Payments for capital acquisitions (81,416)                  (14,471)                      -                        
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets -                             -                                 -                        

  Net cash used by capital and
related financing activities (81,416)                  (14,471)                      -                        

Cash flows from investing

 activities:

   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments -                             4,783,323                  2,762,330         

   Purchase of investments -                             (2,939,999)                 (2,868,022)        
   Receipt of interest -                             12,372                       7,482                

    Net cash provided (used) by 
     investing activities -                             1,855,696                  (98,210)             

    Net increase (decrease) in cash 93,891                   (82,857)                      9,099                

Cash at beginning of year 918,195                 141,441                     10,490              

Cash at end of year 1,012,086$            58,584$                     19,589$            
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General General
Insurance Depreciation Totals

3,903,551$         2,106,012$         19,168,169$         

(239,537)             -                          (1,375,506)            

(5,344,067)          218,001              (18,790,169)          

(1,680,053)          2,324,013           (997,506)               

(1,000,000)          -                          (1,000,000)            

(1,000,000)          -                          (1,000,000)            

(9,381,216)          (1,785,824)          (11,262,927)          
-                          49,086                49,086                  

(9,381,216)          (1,736,738)          (11,213,841)          

12,350,318         555,919              20,451,890           

(327,544)             (1,230,371)          (7,365,936)            
89,815                90,589                200,258                

12,112,589         (583,863)             13,286,212           

51,320                3,412                  74,865                  

208,624              2,007                  1,280,757             

259,944$            5,419$                1,355,622$           

Continued
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Fleet Retiree

Materials Employee Health

Management Benefits Insurance

Operating income (loss) 65,228$                 (2,017,270)$               93,740$            

Adjustments to reconcile operating
 income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
  by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization 66,980                   5,320                         -                        

  Accounts receivable (20,718)                  8,927                         (4,023)               
  Inventories (100,235)                -                                 -                        
  Accounts payable 159,313                 71,656                       17,592              
  Compansated absences payables 2,767                     2,189                         -                        
  Accrued expense 1,972                     5,096                         -                        

Total adjustments 110,079                 93,188                       13,569              

    Net cash provided (used) by 

     operating activities 175,307$               (1,924,082)$               107,309$          

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments -                             (3)                               (704)                  
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General General

Insurance Depreciation Totals

(2,403,101)$        361,918$            (3,899,485)$          

-                          1,744,529           1,816,829             

4,589                  -                          (11,225)                 
-                          -                          (100,235)               

115,950              217,566              582,077                
(1,804)                 -                          3,152                    

604,313              -                          611,381                

723,048              1,962,095           2,901,979             

(1,680,053)$        2,324,013$         (997,506)$             

13,572                12,150                25,015                  

Concluded
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Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments and/or funds.

Agency Fund: - to account for funds which are custodial in nature and for which the City is acting as an 
agent.  The City has established the following agency fund based upon the above definition:

The Developers Fund was established to account for developers' contributions for future infrastructure 
development.

The Communications Group was established to account for operation and maintenance of a consolidated 
regional public safety services communications system.

The Payroll Fund was established to account for the processing of employees payroll.



Communication
Developers Group Payroll

Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9,504$                           808,170$            834,493 1,652,167$     
Receivables:
  Accounts - - 13,074 13,074
  Interest 4,669 - - 4,669
Investments, at fair value:
 TexPool 715,287 - - 715,287
 Certificate of deposits 487,550 - - 487,550
 US government securities 1,749,925 - - 1,749,925

    Total assets 2,966,935$                     808,170$            847,567$                   4,622,672$     

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -$                                   690$                   847,567$                   848,257$        
Due agency - 807,480 - 807,480
Escrow payables 2,966,935 - - 2,966,935

  Total liabilities 2,966,935$                    808,170$           847,567$                   4,622,672$    

CITY OF McALLEN , TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AGENCY FUNDS

 September 30, 2014
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
AGENCY FUND

DEVELOPER'S FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2014

Balance Balance
09/30/13 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/14

Assets:

Cash and equivalents 3,189$               3,430,730$        3,424,415$         9,504$                
Investments:
 Tex-pool 718,111             1,611,201         1,614,025           715,287              
 Certificate of deposits 487,550             -                        -                         487,550              
 Government securities 1,496,316          1,504,207         1,250,598           1,749,925           
Receivables:
  Accrued interest 2,479                 19,725              17,536                4,668                  

    Total current assets 2,707,645$        6,565,863$       6,306,574$        2,966,934$        

Liabilities:

  Escrow payables 2,707,645$        642,335$          901,624$            2,966,934$         

    Total liabilities 2,707,645$        642,335$         901,624$            2,966,934$        
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
AGENCY FUND

 COMMUNICATIONS GROUP
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2014

Balance Balance
09/30/13 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/14

Assets:

Cash and equivalents 287,068$           537,294$          16,192$              808,170$            

    Total current assets 287,068$          537,294$         16,192$              808,170$           

Liabilities:

Payables 224$                  9,909$              10,375$              690$                   
Due Agency 286,844             520,636            807,480              

    Total liabilities 287,068$          530,545$         10,375$              808,170$           
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS
AGENCY FUND

PAYROLL FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Year Ended September 30, 2014

Balance Balance
09/30/13 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS 09/30/14

Assets:

Cash and equivalents 817,740$           144,289,955$       144,273,202$      834,493$            
Receivables:
  Other 14,855               113,306                115,087              13,074                

    Total current assets 832,595$          144,403,261$      144,388,289$     847,567$           

Liabilities:

  Payables 832,595$           49,469,823$         49,454,851$        847,567$            

    Total liabilities 832,595$          49,469,823$        49,454,851$       847,567$           
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

REVENUES

 Taxes:

 Property 34,482,076$      34,482,076$      34,305,130$      (176,946)$         

 Sales 47,479,064 47,479,064 45,998,253 (1,480,811)

 Franchise 6,514,000 6,514,000 6,707,787 193,787

  Total taxes 88,475,140 88,475,140 87,011,170 (1,463,970)

Licenses and permits:

 Business licenses and permits 55,750 55,750 58,693 2,943

 Occupational 252,225 252,225 257,062 4,837

 Non-business licenses and permits 1,139,150 1,139,150 1,117,059 (22,091)

  Total licenses and permits 1,447,125 1,447,125 1,432,814 (14,311)

Intergovernmental revenues:

 State shared revenues 560,000 560,000 774,044 214,044

  Total intergovernmental revenues 560,000 560,000 774,044 214,044

Charges for services:

 General government 1,592,420 1,592,420 1,575,701 (16,719)

 Public safety 715,400 715,400 728,177 12,777

 Highways and streets 500 500 4,875 4,375

 Health 586,200 586,200 579,316 (6,884)

 Culture and recreation 1,293,500 1,293,500 1,146,502 (146,998)

  Total charges for services 4,188,020 4,188,020 4,034,571 (153,449)

Fines and forfeitures:

 Corporations court 1,650,000 1,686,507 1,514,171 (172,336)

 Other fines 50,000 50,000 66,609 16,609

  Total fines and forfeitures 1,700,000 1,736,507 1,580,780 (155,727)

Investment earnings 265,001 265,001 313,838 48,837

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

Net increase (decrease) in the

  fair value of investments -$                      -$                      69,455$             69,455$             

Other:

 Royalties 1,000,000 1,000,000 938,877 (61,123)

 Rents and concessions 20,000 20,000 6,906 (13,094)

 Other 24,800 24,800 338,858 314,058

  Total other revenues 1,044,800 1,044,800 1,284,641 239,841

  Total revenues 97,680,086 97,716,593 96,501,313 (1,215,280)

EXPENDITURES

 General government:

  City commission:

   Personal services 109,176 110,808 122,432 (11,624)

   Supplies 4,680 4,680 4,495 185

   Miscellaneous services 49,453 49,453 81,798 (32,345)

   Total city commission 163,309 164,941 208,725 (43,784)

 Special service:

   Miscellaneous services 871,800 1,046,800 1,015,136 31,664

  Total special service 871,800 1,046,800 1,015,136 31,664

 City manager:

  Personal services 1,036,090 1,053,159 1,393,809 (340,650)

  Supplies 2,430 2,430 5,022 (2,592)

  Miscellaneous services 46,859 65,859 70,158 (4,299)

  Maintenance 1,680 1,680 200 1,480

  Capital outlay 25,000 6,000 7,640 (1,640)

  Total city manager 1,112,059 1,129,128 1,476,829 (347,701)

 City secretary:

  Personal services 428,891 439,868 436,290 3,578

  Supplies 4,500 4,500 4,827 (327)

  Miscellaneous services 17,446 17,446 18,488 (1,042)

  Maintenance 23,187 23,187 23,447 (260)

  Total city secretary 474,024 485,001 483,052 1,949
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Audit office:

  Personal services 194,223$           199,299$           251,509$           (52,210)$           

  Supplies 1,342 1,342 1,050 292

  Miscellaneous services 11,203 11,203 9,591 1,612

Total audit office 206,768 211,844 262,150 (50,306)

Vital statistics:

 Personal services 125,883 129,141 140,689 (11,548)

 Supplies 7,200 7,200 8,430 (1,230)

 Miscellaneous services 25,358 25,358 15,365 9,993

 Capital outlay - - 844 (844)

Total vital statistics 158,441 161,699 165,328 (3,629)

Passport facility:

 Personal services 76,763 78,177 76,258 1,919

 Supplies 4,990 4,990 1,062 3,928

 Miscellaneous services 4,820 4,820 6,397 (1,577)

 Maintenance 200 200 - 200

 Total passport facility 86,773 88,187 83,717 4,470

 Municipal court:

  Personal services 1,184,228 1,214,222 1,125,811 88,411

  Supplies 8,910 8,910 8,708 202

  Miscellaneous services 79,542 81,242 56,111 25,131

  Maintenance 47,642 45,942 29,496 16,446

  Capital outlay 10,200 46,707 43,326 3,381

  Total municipal court 1,330,522 1,397,023 1,263,452 133,571

 Finance:

  Personal services 1,034,786 1,066,407 970,934 95,473

  Supplies 18,520 18,520 18,520 -

  Miscellaneous services 112,404 109,404 83,319 26,085

  Maintenance 19,363 19,363 9,461 9,902

  Capital outlay - 3,000 5,484 (2,484)

  Total finance 1,185,073 1,216,694 1,087,718 128,976
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Budget & management:

  Personal service 275,051$           275,051$           257,993$           17,058$             

  Supplies 5,000 3,400 1,993 1,407

  Miscellaneous services 8,300 8,500 7,229 1,271

  Maintenance 5,600 5,400 5,299 101

  Capital outlay 1,200 2,800 2,776 24

Total budget & management 295,151 295,151 275,290 19,861

 Tax office:

  Personal services 266,234 273,129 269,027 4,102

  Supplies 4,334 9,784 8,413 1,371

  Miscellaneous services 674,405 668,955 613,234 55,721

  Maintenance 9,307 9,307 8,540 767

  Capital outlay 10,396 10,396 - 10,396

  Total tax office 964,676 971,571 899,214 72,357

 Purchasing and contracting:

  Personal services 490,957 565,819 449,099 116,720

  Supplies 7,020 4,368 6,215 (1,847)

  Miscellaneous services 8,228 4,380 17,015 (12,635)

  Capital outlay 3,900 10,400 3,639 6,761

  Total purchasing and contracting 510,105 584,967 475,968 108,999

 Legal:

  Personal services 979,442 1,003,777 1,038,208 (34,431)

  Supplies 3,078 3,078 3,268 (190)

  Miscellaneous services 268,483 618,483 739,779 (121,296)

  Total legal 1,251,003 1,625,338 1,781,255 (155,917)

 Grant administration:

  Personal services 323,250 331,985 329,735 2,250

  Supplies 8,347 19,172 21,080 (1,908)

  Miscellaneous services 73,928 63,103 62,257 846

  Total grant administration 405,525 414,260 413,072 1,188

 Right of way:

  Personal services 133,553 136,981 134,393 2,588

  Supplies 1,454 1,454 1,600 (146)

  Miscellaneous services 56,799 55,781 33,231 22,550

  Capital outlay - 1,018 859 159

  Total right of way 191,806 195,234 170,083 25,151
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 Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
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For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Human resources:

  Personal services 580,036$           592,592$           592,046$           546$                  

  Supplies 23,165 19,994 19,967 27

  Miscellaneous services 161,476 263,201 249,385 13,816

  Maintenance 7,812 7,812 7,389 423

  Capital outlay 21,500 25,946 9,196 16,750

  Total human resources 793,989 909,545 877,983 31,562

 Risk management:

  Liability insurance 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

  Total risk management 651,761 651,761 651,761 -

 Planning:

  Personal services 1,048,447 1,068,760 804,320 264,440

  Supplies 17,695 24,095 19,772 4,323

  Miscellaneous services 55,807 49,407 36,102 13,305

  Maintenance 18,970 12,270 3,493 8,777

  Other (19,000) (19,000) - (19,000)

  Capital outlay - 6,700 5,711 989

  Total planning 1,121,919 1,142,232 869,398 272,834

 Information technology:

  Personal services 1,550,939 1,590,983 1,508,576 82,407

  Supplies 17,548 17,548 24,573 (7,025)

  Miscellaneous services 299,254 299,254 211,627 87,627

  Maintenance 424,809 424,809 395,189 29,620

  Capital outlay 273,000 273,000 239,559 33,441

  Total information technology 2,565,550 2,605,594 2,379,524 226,070

 Public information office:

  Personal services 508,393 522,853 406,636 116,217

  Supplies 17,500 17,500 9,532 7,968

  Miscellaneous services 37,921 37,921 58,204 (20,283)

  Maintenance 10,352 10,352 4,786 5,566

  Capital outlay 20,000 20,000 4,581 15,419

  Total public information office 594,166 608,626 483,739 124,887
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 311 Call centerenter:

   Personal services 139,473$           139,473$           162,476$           (23,003)$           

   Supplies 2,000 2,000 290 1,710

   Miscellaneous services 2,000 2,000 30 1,970

   Maintenance 30,000 30,000 - 30,000

  Total 311 Call center 173,473 173,473 162,796 10,677

 City hall:

  Personal services 102,424 104,978 99,951 5,027

  Supplies 20,257 20,257 22,823 (2,566)

  Miscellaneous services 357,632 357,632 357,540 92

  Maintenance 147,465 147,465 109,202 38,263

  Capital outlay 6,200 6,200 - 6,200

  Total city hall 633,978 636,532 589,516 47,016

 Building maintenance:

  Personal services 516,988 528,635 583,334 (54,699)

  Supplies 13,132 13,132 14,556 (1,424)

  Miscellaneous services 18,045 18,045 14,476 3,569

  Maintenance 39,996 39,996 34,519 5,477

  Capital outlay 39,000 39,000 3,826 35,174

  Total building maintenance 627,161 638,808 650,711 (11,903)

Development center

  Personal services 32,577 32,577 219 32,358

  Miscellaneous services 42,700 42,700 37,189 5,511

  Maintenance 14,250 14,250 - 14,250

  Total development center 89,527 89,527 37,408 52,119

 Economic development:

  McAllen Economic Development Corp. 1,383,195 1,383,195 1,383,195 -

  Chambers of commerce 644,200 644,200 669,200 (25,000)

  Total economic development 2,027,395 2,027,395 2,052,395 (25,000)

 Non-departmental activities 123,040 123,040 458,163 (335,123)

 Contingency 446,712 (958,068) - (958,068)

  Total general government 19,055,706 18,636,303 19,274,383 (638,080)
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Public safety:

 Police:

  Personal services 27,270,581$      27,913,492$      27,214,723$      698,769$           

  Supplies 414,841 414,841 449,758 (34,917)

  Miscellaneous services 1,393,572 1,393,572 1,373,904 19,668

  Maintenance 1,634,750 1,634,750 1,619,713 15,037

  Other (350,000) (350,000) (575,556) 225,556

  Capital outlay 350,000 350,000 300,388 49,612

  Total police 30,713,744 31,356,655 30,382,930 973,725

Animal control:

  Personal services 223,675 228,210 198,039 30,171

  Supplies 12,000 12,000 (5,811) 17,811

  Miscellaneous services 29,035 29,035 27,153 1,882

  Maintenance 65,000 65,000 36,805 28,195

  Capital outlay 30,000 30,000 - 30,000

  Total animal control 359,710 364,245 256,186 108,059

Communication technology:

 Personal services 216,417 221,774 221,844 (70)

 Supplies 8,257 8,257 8,179 78

 Miscellaneous services 94,294 94,294 85,619 8,675

 Maintenance 4,375 4,375 2,436 1,939

 Other - - (87,772) 87,772

 Total communication technology 323,343 328,700 230,306 98,394

 Fire:

  Personal services 14,570,860 14,638,770 15,254,696 (615,926)

  Supplies 260,678 267,678 220,087 47,591

  Miscellaneous services 1,057,020 1,042,020 1,179,426 (137,406)

  Maintenance 450,933 568,933 621,277 (52,344)

  Capital outlay 304,100 304,100 229,539 74,561

  Total fire 16,643,591 16,821,501 17,505,025 (683,524)
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 Traffic operations:

  Personal services 1,433,851$        1,466,400$        1,372,439$        93,961$             

  Supplies 115,492 115,492 115,350 142

  Miscellaneous services 335,867 335,867 331,189 4,678

  Maintenance 350,596 350,596 333,960 16,636

  Capital outlay 105,950 105,950 59,177 46,773

  Total traffic operations 2,341,756 2,374,305 2,212,115 162,190

 Building code compliance:

  Personal services 900,277 921,544 914,308 7,236

  Supplies 12,487 12,487 12,094 393

  Miscellaneous services 90,713 90,713 62,187 28,526

  Maintenance 20,545 20,545 21,188 (643)

  Total building code compliance 1,024,022 1,045,289 1,009,777 35,512

  Total public safety 51,406,166 52,290,695 51,596,339 694,356

Highways and streets:

 Engineering services:

  Personal services 1,725,941 1,764,213 1,471,581 292,632

  Supplies 21,032 21,032 11,273 9,759

  Miscellaneous services 129,146 129,146 120,752 8,394

  Maintenance 44,838 44,838 52,943 (8,105)

  Capital outlay 13,175 13,175 11,311 1,864

  Total engineering 1,934,132 1,972,404 1,667,860 304,544

 Street cleaning:

  Personal services 182,172 186,515 192,504 (5,989)

  Supplies 3,330 3,330 1,803 1,527

  Miscellaneous services 106,509 106,509 105,922 587

  Maintenance 134,000 134,000 102,093 31,907

  Capital outlay 4,000 4,000 4,733 (733)

  Total street cleaning 430,011 434,354 407,055 27,299

 Street maintenance:

  Personal services 1,548,292 1,576,099 1,381,899 194,200

  Supplies 37,515 37,515 36,160 1,355

  Miscellaneous services 234,980 234,980 235,284 (304)

  Maintenance 4,346,347 4,346,347 4,380,729 (34,382)

  Capital outlay 17,900 17,900 35,970 (18,070)

  Total street maintenance 6,185,034 6,212,841 6,070,042 142,799
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 Street lighting:

  Miscellaneous services 1,904,326$        2,204,326$        2,504,925$        (300,599)$         

  Maintenance 72,675 72,675 70,846 1,829

  Total street lighting 1,977,001 2,277,001 2,575,771 (298,770)

 Sidewalk construction:

  Personal services 224,212 228,948 223,771 5,177

  Supplies 36,200 36,200 36,736 (536)

  Miscellaneous services 27,575 27,575 27,590 (15)

  Maintenance 39,037 39,037 39,106 (69)

  Capital outlay 11,400 11,400 7,991 3,409

  Total sidewalk construction 338,424 343,160 335,194 7,966

 Drainage:

  Personal services 673,249 687,426 608,172 79,254

  Supplies 23,412 23,412 18,928 4,484

  Miscellaneous services 316,737 316,737 312,084 4,653

  Maintenance 327,164 327,164 275,469 51,695

  Capital outlay 19,000 48,999 47,882 1,117

  Total drainage 1,359,562 1,403,738 1,262,535 141,203

  Total highways and streets 12,224,164 12,643,498 12,318,457 325,041

Health and welfare:

 Health code compliance:

  Personal services 913,549 939,031 993,689 (54,658)

  Supplies 29,385 29,385 31,808 (2,423)

  Miscellaneous services 126,032 123,832 111,638 12,194

  Maintenance 48,957 48,957 83,075 (34,118)

  Capital outlay - 2,200 - 2,200

  Total health code compliance 1,117,923 1,143,405 1,220,210 (76,805)

 Graffiti cleaning:

  Personal services 103,527 106,035 106,307 (272)

  Supplies 10,181 10,181 9,366 815

  Miscellaneous services 12,551 12,551 12,558 (7)

  Maintenance 22,783 22,783 27,426 (4,643)

  Capital outlay 16,300 16,300 15,691 609

  Total graffitti cleaning 165,342 167,850 171,348 (3,498)

 Other agencies:

  Humane society 237,662 587,662 629,230 (41,568)

  Other health and welfare agencies 30,000 30,000 69,654 (39,654)

  Total other agencies 267,662 617,662 698,884 (81,222)

  Total health and welfare 1,550,927 1,928,917 2,090,442 (161,525)
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Culture and recreation:

 Parks and recreation administration:

  Personal services 384,881$           395,944$           393,679$           2,265$               

  Supplies 7,050 7,050 5,905 1,145

  Miscellaneous services 107,973 107,973 104,517 3,456

  Maintenance 20,295 20,295 19,198 1,097

  Capital outlay 20,000 20,000 10,387 9,613

  Total parks and  recreation administration 540,199 551,262 533,686 17,576

 Parks:

  Personal services 3,594,726 3,668,857 3,266,726 402,131

  Supplies 184,854 184,854 183,970 884

  Miscellaneous services 2,105,773 2,055,773 2,005,517 50,256

  Maintenance 453,896 453,896 600,751 (146,855)

  Capital outlay 265,115 315,115 196,169 118,946

  Total parks 6,604,364 6,678,495 6,253,133 425,362

 Recreation:

  Personal services 1,179,297 1,217,224 990,296 226,928

  Supplies 47,960 47,960 48,061 (101)

  Miscellaneous services 342,688 342,688 237,064 105,624

  Maintenance 4,801 4,801 11,706 (6,905)

  Capital outlay 9,200 9,200 14,716 (5,516)

  Total recreation 1,583,946 1,621,873 1,301,843 320,030

 Pools:

  Personal services 606,041 631,567 569,259 62,308

  Supplies 85,705 85,705 76,577 9,128

  Miscellaneous services 103,237 103,237 114,025 (10,788)

  Maintenance 46,617 46,617 52,487 (5,870)

  Capital outlay 14,115 14,115 8,830 5,285

  Total pools 855,715 881,241 821,178 60,063

 Las palmas community center:

  Personal services 292,692 299,769 252,971 46,798

  Supplies 14,987 14,987 11,095 3,892

  Miscellaneous services 75,276 75,276 73,814 1,462

  Maintenance 15,287 15,287 7,605 7,682

  Capital outlay 27,200 27,200 1,937 25,263

  Total las palmas community center 425,442 432,519 347,422 85,097

 Recreation center-Lark:

  Personal services 345,355 350,128 302,790 47,338

  Supplies 26,795 26,795 19,582 7,213

  Miscellaneous services 111,563 111,563 130,583 (19,020)

  Maintenance 14,550 14,550 7,773 6,777

  Capital outlay 8,850 8,850 5,260 3,590

  Total recreation center-Lark 507,113 511,886 465,988 45,898
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 Recreation center-Palmview:

  Personal services 341,153$           349,484$           347,409$           2,075$               

  Supplies 23,945 23,945 15,114 8,831

  Miscellaneous services 119,144 119,144 127,747 (8,603)

  Maintenance 10,559 10,559 16,930 (6,371)

  Capital outlay 14,290 14,290 2,530 11,760

  Total recreation center-Palmview 509,091 517,422 509,730 7,692

 Quinta mazatlan:

  Personal services 347,924 356,764 305,299 51,465

  Supplies 20,855 20,855 25,779 (4,924)

  Miscellaneous services 113,177 113,177 132,581 (19,404)

  Maintenance 22,483 22,483 24,821 (2,338)

  Capital outlay 21,500 21,500 23,489 (1,989)

  Total quinta mazatlan 525,939 534,779 511,969 22,810

 Library:

  Personal services 2,271,122 2,328,565 2,072,960 255,605

  Supplies 101,950 101,950 95,300 6,650

  Miscellaneous services 636,115 636,115 683,465 (47,350)

  Maintenance 83,637 83,637 83,436 201

  Capital outlay 183,000 183,000 182,353 647

  Total library 3,275,824 3,333,267 3,117,514 215,753

 Library branch-Lark:

  Personal services 366,220 376,035 403,428 (27,393)

  Supplies 17,203 17,203 10,940 6,263

  Miscellaneous services 10,913 12,413 9,364 3,049

  Maintenance 16,905 16,905 13,394 3,511

  Capital outlay 21,500 20,000 19,285 715

  Total library branch-Lark 432,741 442,556 456,411 (13,855)

 Library branch-Palmview:

  Personal services 377,325 386,436 402,739 (16,303)

  Supplies 8,937 8,937 9,357 (420)

  Miscellaneous services 10,913 12,413 9,096 3,317

  Maintenance 10,205 10,205 2,526 7,679

  Capital outlay 21,500 20,000 20,000 -

  Total library branch-Palmview 428,880 437,991 443,718 (5,727)

 Other agencies 995,259 995,259 995,259 -

 Museums 792,400 792,400 792,400 -

  Total culture and recreation 17,476,913 17,730,950 16,550,251 1,180,699

  Total expenditures 101,713,876 103,230,363 101,829,872 1,400,491

  Excess of revenues over expenditures (4,033,790) (5,513,770) (5,328,559) 185,211
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OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 9,630,300$        9,630,300$        9,790,207$        159,907$           

  Transfers out (4,507,424) (4,507,424) (4,507,424) -

  Net other financing sources (uses) 5,122,876 5,122,876 5,282,783 159,907

Net change in fund balances 1,089,086 (390,894) (45,776) 345,118

Fund balances at begining of year 43,875,557 43,875,557 43,875,557 -

Fund balances at end of year 44,964,643$      43,484,663$      43,829,781$      345,118$           
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REVENUES

 Hotel tax 3,500,000$        3,500,000$        4,156,141$        656,141$           

 Investment earnings - - 8 8

  Total revenues 3,500,000 3,500,000 4,156,149 656,149

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,187,469 (187,469)

  Total expenditures 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,187,469 (187,469)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,968,680 468,680

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out (2,500,000) (2,500,000) (2,968,671) (468,671)

  Total other financing sources (uses) (2,500,000) (2,500,000) (2,968,671) (468,671)

  Net changes in fund balances - - 9 9

Fund balances--beginning 24,907 24,907 24,907 -

Fund balances--ending 24,907$             24,907$             24,916$             9$                      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

HOTEL OCCUPANCY  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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REVENUES

 Charges for services -$                          -$                          30,000$             30,000$             

  Other - - 250,000            250,000            

.

  Total revenues - - 280,000 280,000

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government - - 97,925 (97,925)

  Total expenditures - - 97,925 (97,925)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures - - 182,075 182,075

  Net changes in fund balances - - 182,075 182,075

Fund balances--beginning (177,980) (177,980) (177,980) -

Fund balances--ending (177,980)$          (177,980)$          4,095$               182,075$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN EB-5 REGIONAL CENTER  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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REVENUES

 Intergovernmental 2,143,764$        2,143,764$        1,581,604$        (562,160)$          

  Total revenues 2,143,764 2,143,764 1,581,604 (562,160)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 347,953 347,953 342,367 5,586

  Highways and streets 96,000 96,000 190,730 (94,730)

  Health and welfare 1,157,611 1,157,611 970,755 186,856

  Culture and recreation 542,200 542,200 77,752 464,448

  Total expenditures 2,143,764 2,143,764 1,581,604 562,160

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures - - - -

  Net changes in fund balances - - - -

Fund balances--beginning - - - -

Fund balances--ending -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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REVENUES

 Licenses and permits 12,000$             12,000$             14,898$             2,898$               

 Charges for services 1,117,747 1,117,747 1,155,814 38,067              

 Fines and forfeitures 230,000 230,000 195,092 (34,908)             

 Investment earnings - - 619 619                   

 Other 7,200 7,200 8,859 1,659                

  Total revenues 1,366,947 1,366,947 1,375,282 8,335

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Highways and streets 1,064,673 1,079,493 935,446 144,047

  Total expenditures 1,064,673 1,079,493 935,446 144,047

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

  over expenditures 302,274 287,454 439,836 152,382

  Transfers out (207,000) (207,000) (207,000) -

  Total other financing sources (uses) (207,000) (207,000) (207,000) -

  Net changes in fund balances 95,274 80,454 232,836 152,382

Fund balances--beginning 154,790 154,790 154,790 -

Fund balances--ending 250,064$           235,244$           387,626$           152,382$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DOWNTOWN SERVICES PARKING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For Fiscal Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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REVENUES

 Sales tax 15,826,355$      15,826,355$      15,332,751$      (493,604)$          

 Intergovernmental revenues 1,020,265 1,020,265 - (1,020,265)       

 Investment earnings 100,000 100,000 120,876 20,876              

 Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 41,551 41,551              

 Other - - 1,153 1,153                

  Total revenues 16,946,620 16,946,620 15,496,331 (1,450,289)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 14,366,583 20,273,123 13,219,392 7,053,731

  Public safety 100,000 100,000 69,001 30,999

  Highways and streets 2,627,749 2,627,749 784,839 1,842,910

  Health and welfare 1,502,000 1,502,000 1,501,957 43

  Culture and recreation 7,518,819 7,610,719 5,116,189 2,494,530

Debt service:

  Principal 25,000 25,000 25,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 5,906 5,906 6,444 (538)

  Total expenditures 26,146,057 32,144,497 20,722,822 11,421,675

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenditures (9,199,437) (15,197,877) (5,226,491) 9,971,380

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in - - 636,884 636,884

  Transfers out (5,718,323) (5,718,323) (5,224,304) 494,019

  Total other financing uses (5,718,323) (5,718,323) (4,587,420) 1,130,903

  Net changes in fund balances (14,917,760) (20,916,200) (9,813,911) 11,102,283

Fund balances--beginning 25,008,285 25,008,285 25,008,285 -

Fund balances--ending 10,090,525$      4,092,085$        15,194,374$      11,102,283$      

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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REVENUES

 Property tax -$                       -$                  7,843$           7,843$           

 Interest - - 278 278

  Total revenues - - 8,121 8,121

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

Debt service:

  Principal 2,740,000 2,740,000 2,740,000 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 978,516 978,516 767,963 210,553

  Total expenditures 3,718,516 3,718,516 3,507,963 210,553

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3,718,516) (3,718,516) (3,499,842) 218,674

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 3,718,516 3,718,516 3,507,424 (211,092)

  Total other financing sources (uses) 3,718,516 3,718,516 3,507,424 (211,092)

  Net changes in fund balances - - 7,582 7,582

Fund balance--beginning 284,610 284,610 284,610 -

Fund balance--ending 284,610$           284,610$       292,192$       7,582$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

DEBT SERVICE  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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REVENUES

 Intergovernmental -$                       -$                       1,562,399$        1,562,399$        

 Investment earnings - - 38,178 38,178

 Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 26,194 26,194

 Other 3,281,342 3,281,342 94,715 (3,186,627)

  Total revenues 3,281,342 3,281,342 1,721,486 (1,559,857)

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 1,227,100 1,747,100 1,408,546 338,554

  Public safety 2,251,500 2,464,624 691,009 1,773,615

  Highways and streets 6,374,082 6,761,082 2,895,568 3,865,514

  Culture and recreation 5,434,241 5,077,765 2,323,242 2,754,523

  Total expenditures 15,286,923 16,050,571 7,318,365 8,732,206

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (12,005,581) (12,769,229) (5,596,879) 7,172,349

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,150,000 -

  Total other financing sources (uses) 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,150,000 -

  Net changes in fund balances (10,855,581) (11,619,229) (4,446,879) 7,172,349

Fund balances--beginning 9,183,815 9,183,815 9,183,815 -

Fund balances--ending (1,671,766)$       (2,435,414)$       4,736,936$        7,172,349$        

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

- 158 -



Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

REVENUES

 Other -$                       -$                       83,313$             83,313$             

 Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 3 3

 Investment earnings - - 3,000 3,000

  Total revenues - - 86,316 86,316

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  General government 1,105,000 1,105,000 788,518 316,482

  Total expenditures 1,105,000 1,105,000 788,518 316,482

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,105,000) (1,105,000) (702,202) 402,798

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers in 1,270,000 1,270,000 1,270,000 -

  Net changes in fund balances 165,000 165,000 567,798 402,798

Fund balances--beginning 436,942 436,942 436,942 -

Fund balances--ending 601,942$           601,942$           1,004,740$        402,798$           

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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REVENUES

 Other -$                       -$                       1,079$               1,079$               

 Investment earnings - - 154 154

  Total revenues - - 1,233 1,233

EXPENDITURES

 Current:

  Culture and recreation 100,000 130,000 4,516 125,484

  Total expenditures 100,000 130,000 4,516 125,484

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (100,000) (130,000) (3,283) 126,717

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

  Transfers out - - (636,884) (636,884)

  Net changes in fund balances (100,000) (130,000) (640,167) (510,167)

Fund balances--beginning 640,167 640,167 640,167 -

Fund balances--ending 540,167$           510,167$           -$                       (510,167)$          

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION LIBRARY FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,  AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Operating revenues:

 Water sales

  Residential customers 10,451,807$      10,451,807$      9,101,372$        (1,350,435)$       

  Commercial accounts 5,500,275 5,500,275 5,159,498 (340,777)

  Industrial customers 664,907 664,907 483,294 (181,613)

  Total water sales 16,616,989 16,616,989 14,744,164 (1,872,825)

 Service charges:

  Tap fees 250,000 250,000 279,150 29,150

  Connect fees 110,000 110,000 146,465 36,465

  Reconnect fees 160,000 160,000 126,155 (33,845)

  Other services 725,500 725,500 853,120 127,620

  Total service charges 1,245,500 1,245,500 1,404,890 159,390

  Total operating revenues 17,862,489 17,862,489 16,149,054 (1,713,435)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 48,820 48,820 95,266 46,446

  Net increase (decrease) in the

   fair value of investment - - 25,798 25,798

  Other - - 89,484 89,484

  Total non-operating revenues 48,820 48,820 210,548 161,728

  Total revenues 17,911,309 17,911,309 16,359,602 (1,551,707)

Expenses:

 Water plant:

  Salaries and benefits 1,582,574 1,628,249 1,550,104 78,145

  Supplies and raw water purchases 3,520,410 3,466,850 2,897,467 569,383

  Contractual and other services 1,504,155 1,520,980 1,426,685 94,295

  Repairs and maintenance 365,832 386,057 389,875 (3,818)

  Total water plant 6,972,971 7,002,136 6,264,131 738,005

 

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 

 

Water lab:

  Salaries and benefits 252,213$           267,774$           261,274$           6,500$               

  Supplies 31,130 31,130 24,901 6,229

  Contractual and other services 37,770 38,510 34,531 3,979

  Repairs and maintenance 20,990 12,490 8,308 4,182

  Total water lab 342,103 349,904 329,014 20,890

 Transmission and distribution:

  Salaries and benefits 1,692,139 1,752,118 1,598,780 153,338

  Supplies 31,500 31,500 25,297 6,203

  Contractual and other services 93,795 97,735 178,447 (80,712)

  Repairs and maintenance 285,751 263,031 218,288 44,743

  Total Transmission and distribution 2,103,185 2,144,384 2,020,812 123,572

 Water meters:

  Salaries and benefits 757,088 773,246 729,290 43,956

  Supplies 24,965 24,965 24,077 888

  Contractual and other services 64,017 65,052 29,563 35,489

  Repairs and maintenance 98,857 93,962 66,527 27,435

  Total water meters 944,927 957,225 849,457 107,768

 Utility billing:

  Salaries and benefits 373,759 383,539 367,278 16,261

  Supplies 38,000 38,000 30,603 7,397

  Contractual and other services 344,472 344,472 338,959 5,513

  Repairs and maintenance 100 100 - 100

  Total utility billing 756,331 766,111 736,840 29,271
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 

 

 Customer relations:

  Salaries and benefits 662,475$           682,962$           671,753$           11,209$             

  Supplies 15,560 14,985 15,102 (117)

  Contractual and other services 81,951 104,816 49,612 55,204

  Repairs and maintenance 40,000 40,000 34,401 5,599

  Total customer relations 799,986 842,763 770,868 71,895

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 943,509 822,439 717,940 104,499

  Supplies 5,000 7,685 8,057 (372)

  Contractual and other services 484,059 511,624 479,783 31,841

  Repairs and maintenance 32,980 32,980 48,418 (15,438)

  Total administration 1,465,548 1,374,728 1,254,198 120,530

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 90,073 90,073 90,073 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,222,634 1,222,634 1,211,163 11,471

  Bond principal requirements 1,508,250 1,508,250 - 1,508,250

  Other - - 26,477 (26,477)

  Capital outlay 6,728,380 8,633,177 4,787,022 3,846,155

  Total non-departmental expenses 9,549,337 11,454,134 6,114,735 5,339,399

  Total expenses 22,934,388 24,891,385 18,340,055 6,551,330
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (5,023,079)$       (6,980,076)$       (1,980,453)$       4,999,623$        

GAAP basis adjustments:

Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (4,182,203) (4,182,203)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 4,787,022 4,787,022

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted as 
expenses per budget basis, treated as a rduction of 
bonds payable per GAAP basis 1,508,250 1,508,250 - 1,508,250

Net income-GAAP basis (6,531,329)$       (8,488,326)$       (1,375,634)$       7,112,692$        
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

WATER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Current

Debt Customer

Service Deposits Depreciation

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2013 715,163$          2,373,955$               8,797,197$               

Cash receipts:

  Transfers in 2,740,243         -                               1,425,001                 

  Operating activities -                       971,138                    -                               

  Due to other funds -                       -                               -                               

  Interest received 267                   -                               100,056                    

Total cash receipts 2,740,510         971,138                    1,525,057                 

     Total cash available 3,455,673         3,345,093                 10,322,254               

Cash disbursements:

  Other -                       -                               10,123                      

  Due from other funds -                       -                               104,473                    

  Transfers out 275                   -                               -                               

  Refunds -                       917,122                    -                               

  Capital acquisition -                       -                               2,641,153                 

  Principal payments 1,508,250         -                               -                               

  Interest and fiscal charges (net) 1,223,383         -                               -                               

     Total cash disbursements 2,731,908         917,122                    2,755,749                 

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2014 723,765$          2,427,971$               7,566,505$               

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2014

  is comprised of the following:

   Cash 750$                 -$                             3,781$                      

   Certificates of deposit -                       2,427,971                 1,007,550                 

   Investments (net) 723,015            -                               3,539,986                 

   Accrued Interest -                       -                               15,188                      

   Note receivable -                       -                               3,000,000                 

Totals 723,765$          2,427,971$               7,566,505$               
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Capital Water

Improvement Revenue Bonds Total

 7,368,997$             182,575$                    19,437,887$            

480,375                  -                                 4,645,619               

-                             -                                 971,138                  

657,649                  -                                 657,649                  

46,068                    1,828                         148,219                  

1,184,092               1,828                         6,424,453               

8,553,089               184,403                     25,862,340              

93,347                    -                                 103,470                  

-                             -                                 104,473                  

-                             -                                 275                         

-                             -                                 917,122                  

1,879,996               -                                 4,521,149               

-                             -                                 1,508,250               

-                             -                                 1,223,383               

1,973,343               -                                 8,378,122               

 6,579,746$             184,403$                    17,482,390$            

 -$                           184,403$                    188,934$                

350,000                  -                                 3,785,521               

5,531,797               -                                 9,794,798               

13,064                    -                                 28,252                    

684,885                  -                                 3,684,885               

 6,579,746$             184,403$                    17,482,390$            
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Operating revenues:

 Sewer service charges 14,735,067$      14,735,067$      14,259,029$      (476,038)$          

 Industrial surcharges 433,472 433,472 296,832 (136,640)

 Other services 225,500 225,500 420,185 194,685

  Total operating revenues 15,394,039 15,394,039 14,976,046 (417,993)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 54,612 54,612 142,016 87,404

  Net increase (decrease) in the

   fair value of investment - - 10,684 10,684

  Other 37,308,511 37,308,511 1,194,335 (36,114,176)

  Total non-operating revenues 37,363,123 37,363,123 1,347,035 (36,016,088)

  Total revenues 52,757,162 52,757,162 16,323,081 (36,434,081)

Expenses:

 Sewer plant:

  Salaries and benefits 1,962,164 2,037,612 1,948,055 89,557

  Supplies 177,200 168,315 168,019 296

  Contractual and other services 1,746,623 2,000,823 2,123,217 (122,394)

  Repairs and maintenance 207,766 200,501 201,316 (815)

  Total sewer plant 4,093,753 4,407,251 4,440,607 (33,356)

Sewer lab:

  Salaries and benefits 354,387 365,804 322,624 43,180

  Supplies 51,347 51,347 47,842 3,505

  Contractual and other services 8,880 8,880 7,155 1,725

  Repairs and maintenance 8,410 8,410 5,927 2,483

  Total sewer lab 423,024 434,441 383,548 50,893

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Sewer collection:

  Salaries and benefits 981,412$           1,014,188$        997,496$           16,692$             

  Supplies 480,500 471,500 468,149 3,351

  Contractual and other services 268,790 248,390 284,376 (35,986)

  Repairs and maintenance 393,143 263,243 264,308 (1,065)

  Total sewer collection 2,123,845 1,997,321 2,014,329 (17,008)

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 563,905 578,384 576,510 1,874

  Supplies 9,806 9,806 3,708 6,098

  Contractual and other services 670,474 658,421 614,315 44,106

  Repairs and maintenance 50,335 50,335 33,281 17,054

  Total administration 1,294,520 1,296,946 1,227,814 69,132

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Employee benefits 109,217 - - -

  Liability insurance 72,201 72,201 72,201 -

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,391,026 1,391,026 1,402,322 (11,296)

  Bond principal requirements 3,319,750 3,319,750 - 3,319,750

  Other - - (170,693) 170,693

  Capital outlay 63,670,937 64,518,037 5,451,877 59,066,160

  Total non-departmental expenses 68,563,131 69,301,014 6,755,707 62,545,307

  Total expenses 76,498,273 77,436,973 14,822,005 62,614,968
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (23,741,111)$     (24,679,811)$     1,501,076$        26,180,887$      

GAAP basis adjustments:

Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (5,754,548) (5,754,548)

Principal payments on revenue bonds-budgeted as 
expenses per budget basis, treated as reduction of 
bonds payable per GAAP basis 3,319,750 3,319,750 - 3,319,750

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per  GAAP basis - - 5,451,878 5,451,878

Net income-GAAP basis (27,060,861)$     (27,999,561)$     1,198,406$        29,197,967$      
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SEWER FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Current Reserve TWDB

Debt Bond for Debt

Service Reserve Improvements Service Depreciation

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2013 776,500$          1,008,846$       11,289,469$      796,708$           9,862,735$       

Cash receipts:

  Transfers from operating cash 2,986,391         360,101            -                       2,208,325         2,878,051         

  Transfers from internal funds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

  Due sewer fund -                       -                       -                       -                       75,974              

  Interest received 290                   399                   845                   306                   67,680              

  Valuation allowance -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

  Capital contributions -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total cash receipts 2,986,681         360,500            845                   2,208,631         3,021,705         

     Total cash available 3,763,181         1,369,346         11,290,314       3,005,339         12,884,440       

Cash disbursements:

  Other -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

  Due sewer fund and internal funds 298                   -                       3,765,752         300                   -                       

  Principal payments 1,666,750         -                       -                       1,653,000         -                       

   Interest and fiscal charges (net) 1,304,358         -                       -                       93,421              -                       

  Capital acqusitions -                       -                       -                       -                       1,785,078         

     Total cash disbursements 2,971,406         -                       3,765,752         1,746,721         1,785,078         

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2014 791,775$          1,369,346$       7,524,562$        1,258,618$        11,099,362$     

Cash, certificates of deposit, and

  investments at September 30, 2014

  is comprised of the following:

   Cash 750$                 -$                     -$                      -$                     -$                     

   Cash-escrow agent -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

   Certificates of deposit -                       -                       -                       -                       592,550            

   Investments (net) 791,025            1,369,346         7,524,562         1,258,618         10,488,460       

   Accrued Interest -                       -                       -                       -                       18,352              

   Other receivables -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Totals 791,775$          1,369,346$       7,524,562$        1,258,618$        11,099,362$     
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Capital Sewer Sewer Sewer

Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2012 2009-TWDB Total

 8,716,763$           10,981,952$     1,369,217$  -$                    44,802,190         

704,295                -                       2,606,108    2,265,000      14,008,271         

3,854,392             -                       -                   -                     3,854,392           

127,910                -                       -                   -                     203,884              

63,090                  10,475              -                   -                     143,085              

(1,262)                   -                       -                   -                     (1,262)                

-                            -                       1,181,576    -                     1,181,576           

4,748,425             10,475              3,787,684    2,265,000      21,654,946         

13,465,188           10,992,427       5,156,901    2,265,000      66,457,136         

4,750                    -                       -                     4,750                  

-                            -                       2,614,081    2,265,000      4,879,381           

-                            -                       -                   -                     3,319,750           

-                            -                       -                   -                     1,397,779           

1,205,694             -                       1,913,679    -                     4,904,451           

1,210,444             -                       4,527,760    2,265,000      14,506,111         

 12,254,744$         10,992,427$     629,141$     -$                    45,919,975$       

104,966$              2,818$              -$                 -$                    108,534$            

-                            -                       607,209       -                     607,209              

627,550                1,346,670         -                   -                     2,566,770           

11,502,660           9,642,305         -                   -                     42,576,976         

19,568                  634                   -                   -                     38,554                

-                            -                       21,932         -                     21,932                

 12,254,744$         10,992,427$     629,141$     -$                    45,919,975$       
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Operating revenues:

 Solid waste collections 16,651,122$      16,651,122$      16,885,461$      234,339$           

 Other services 50,000 50,000 83,098 33,098

  Total operating revenues 16,701,122 16,701,122 16,968,559 267,437

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 91,900 91,900

  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 10,202 10,202

  Other - - 10,175 10,175

  Total non-operating revenues - - 112,277 112,277

  Total revenues 16,701,122 16,701,122 17,080,836 379,714

Expenses:

 Facilities administration:

  Salaries and benefits 811,131 830,167 725,461 104,706

  Supplies 15,750 15,750 14,081 1,669

  Contractual and other services 1,101,220 1,101,220 1,274,938 (173,718)

  Repairs and maintenance 54,751 54,751 19,147 35,604

  Capital outlay 498,000 671,119 194,524 476,595

  Total facilities administration 2,480,852 2,673,007 2,228,151 444,856

 Brush collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,352,236 1,380,348 1,119,453 260,895

  Supplies 256,570 256,570 121,460 135,110

  Contractual and other services 125,225 125,225 148,236 (23,011)

  Repairs and maintenance 523,437 523,437 525,110 (1,673)

  Capital outlay 29,000 29,000 22,069 6,931

  Total brush collection 2,286,468 2,314,580 1,936,328 378,252

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Residential collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,249,085$        1,276,415$        1,226,588$        49,827$             

  Supplies 34,359 34,359 27,920 6,439

  Contractual and other services 550,840 550,840 658,852 (108,012)

  Repairs and maintenance 850,300 850,300 950,309 (100,009)

  Capital outlay 83,500 83,500 - 83,500

  Total residential collection 2,768,084 2,795,414 2,863,669 (68,255)

 Commercial box collection:

  Salaries and benefits 1,131,186 1,154,629 1,076,784 77,845

  Supplies 41,479 41,479 38,805 2,674

  Contractual and other services 1,213,780 1,213,780 1,297,714 (83,934)

  Repairs and maintenance 972,711 972,711 1,133,509 (160,798)

  Capital outlay 89,700 89,700 - 89,700

  Total commercial box collection 3,448,856 3,472,299 3,546,812 (74,513)

 Roll offs:

  Salaries and benefits 287,945 295,659 278,890 16,769

  Supplies 5,750 5,750 4,705 1,045

  Contractual and other services 258,450 258,450 262,906 (4,456)

  Repairs and maintenance 215,054 215,054 287,551 (72,497)

  Capital outlay 28,000 28,000 9,152 18,848

Total roll offs 795,199 802,913 843,204 (40,291)

 Recycling:

  Salaries and benefits 1,026,131 1,044,348 842,440 201,908

  Supplies 41,606 41,606 32,289 9,317

  Contractual and other services 253,943 253,943 366,151 (112,208)

  Repairs and maintenance 136,784 136,784 167,634 (30,850)

  Capital outlay 184,500 260,446 106,723 153,723

  Total recycling 1,642,964 1,737,127 1,515,237 221,890
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

SANITATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Composting:

  Salaries and benefits 312,517$           320,092$           305,693$           14,399$             

  Supplies 26,000 26,000 19,396 6,604

  Contractual and other services 232,375 232,375 235,268 (2,893)

  Repairs and maintenance 86,233 86,233 150,065 (63,832)

  Capital outlay 5,800 58,800 53,000 5,800

  Total composting 662,925 723,500 763,422 (39,922)

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Depreciation fund-capital outlay 1,335,000 1,805,320 1,428,066 377,254

  Liability insurance 104,898 104,898 104,898 -

  Total non-departmental expenses 1,439,898 1,910,218 1,532,964 377,254

  Total expenses 15,525,246 16,429,058 15,229,787 1,199,271

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) before transfers 1,175,876 272,064 1,851,049 1,578,985

 Transfers out (270,000) (270,000) (270,000) -

Net transfers (270,000) (270,000) (270,000) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 905,876 2,064 1,581,049 1,578,985

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (2,162,719) (2,162,719)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 1,813,535 1,813,535

Net income-GAAP basis 905,876$           2,064$               1,231,865$        1,229,801$        
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Positive 
(Negative)

 

Operating revenues:

  Green fees 630,670$           630,670$           563,452$           (67,218)$            

  Membership sales 176,059 176,059 174,887 (1,172)

  Cart rental 282,402 282,402 265,540 (16,862)

  Rentals and other sales 161,016 161,016 148,251 (12,765)

  Total operating revenues 1,250,147 1,250,147 1,152,130 (98,017)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 1,000 1,000 1,827 827

  Net decrease in the fair value of investments - - (240) (240)

  Total non-operating revenues 1,000 1,000 1,587 587

  Total revenues 1,251,147 1,251,147 1,153,717 (97,430)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 771,035 785,617 706,348 79,269

  Supplies 116,733 116,733 109,031 7,702

  Contractual and other services 218,025 218,025 156,146 61,879

  Repairs and maintenance 93,953 93,953 89,682 4,271

  Capital outlay 89,000 89,000 - 89,000

  Total expenses 1,288,746 1,303,328 1,061,207 242,121

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (37,599) (52,181) 92,510 144,691

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (318,774) (318,774)

Net income-GAAP basis (37,599)$            (52,181)$            (226,264)$          (174,083)$          

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

PALM VIEW GOLF COURSE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals -$                       -$                       6,117$               6,117$               

  Concessions-other - - 6,950 6,950

  Other services - - 129,353 129,353

  Total operating revenues - - 142,420 142,420

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 1,975 1,975

  Net decrease in the fair value of investments - - (975) (975)

  Intergovernmental 7,410,585 7,410,585 2,722,748 (4,687,837)

  Total non-operating revenues 7,410,585 7,410,585 2,723,748 (4,686,837)

  Total revenues 7,410,585 7,410,585 2,866,168 (4,544,417)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 298,892 316,222 92,625 223,597

  Contractual and other services 600,515 600,515 256,560 343,955

  Repairs and maintenance 236,877 236,877 275,041 (38,164)

  Capital outlay 7,429,105 7,429,105 1,691,366 5,737,739

  Total expenses 8,565,389 8,582,719 2,315,592 6,267,127

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (1,154,804) (1,172,134) 550,576 1,722,710

Transfers:

 Transfers in 1,089,772 1,089,772 345,753 (744,019)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (65,032) (82,362) 896,329 978,691

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (336,753) (336,753)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 1,691,366 1,691,366

Net income-GAAP basis (65,032)$            (82,362)$            2,250,942$        2,333,304$        

TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

TRANSIT TERMINAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals 116,800$           116,800$           93,800$             (23,000)$            

  Concessions-other 131,770 131,770 248,794 117,024

  Other services 14,000 14,000 15,122 1,122

  Total operating revenues 262,570 262,570 357,716 95,146

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 551 551 3,923 3,372

  Net decrease in the fair value of investments - - (1,220) (1,220)

  Total non-operating revenues 551 551 2,703 2,152

  Total revenues 263,121 263,121 360,419 97,298

Expenses:

  Supplies 10,500 10,500 14,397 (3,897)

  Contractual and other services 310,631 310,631 333,282 (22,651)

  Repairs and maintenance 16,900 16,900 18,296 (1,396)

  Total expenses 338,031 338,031 365,975 (27,944)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (74,910) (74,910) (5,556) 69,354

Transfers:

 Transfers in 500,000 500,000 593,734 93,734

 Transfers out (150,000) (150,000) (150,000) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 275,090 275,090 438,178 163,088

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (70,856) (70,856)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - - -

Net income-GAAP basis 275,090$           275,090$           367,322$           92,232$             

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL CIVIC CENTER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Operating revenues:

  Rentals 1,030,000$        1,030,000$        1,094,350$        64,350$             

  Concessions-other 921,000 921,000 950,214 29,214

  Other services 175,750 175,750 160,853 (14,897)

  Total operating revenues 2,126,750 2,126,750 2,205,417 78,667

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 5,000 5,000 19,114 14,114

  Net increase (decrease) in the
   fair value of investments - - 3,467 3,467

  Other - 2,098,640 1,805,282 (293,358)

  Total non-operating revenues 5,000 2,103,640 1,827,863 (275,777)

  Total revenues 2,131,750 4,230,390 4,033,280 (197,110)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 1,648,135 1,685,711 1,564,178 121,533

  Supplies 70,675 70,675 83,899 (13,224)

  Contractual and other services 1,461,815 1,461,815 2,066,425 (604,610)

  Repairs and maintenance 299,582 299,582 342,023 (42,441)

  Capital outlay 500,000 542,500 246,274 296,226

  Total expenses 3,980,207 4,060,283 4,302,799 (242,516)

Excess (deficency) of revenues over

  over expenses (budget basis) before transfers (1,848,457) 170,107 (269,519) (439,626)

Transfers:

 Transfers in 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,374,937 374,937

 Transfers out - (2,098,640) (2,098,640) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 151,543 71,467 6,778 (64,689)

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted -                       -                       (1,580,750)       (1,580,750)       

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 246,274 246,274

Net income-GAAP basis 151,543$           71,467$             (1,327,698)$       (1,399,165)$       

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN CONVENTION CENTER FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Operating revenues:

  Charges for services 2,246,000$        3,146,000$        2,535,607$        610,393$           

  Rentals 2,745,000 2,745,000 2,862,939 (117,939)

  Other services 213,500 213,500 373,192 (159,692)

  Total operating revenues 5,204,500 6,104,500 5,771,738 332,762

 Non-operating revenues:

  Intergovernmental 13,357,046 23,246,945 5,638,758 17,608,187

  Investment earnings 30,000 30,000 52,006 (22,006)

  Net increase  in the fair value of investments - - 4,257 (4,257)

  Total non-operating revenues 13,387,046 23,276,945 5,695,021 (17,581,924)

  Total revenues 18,591,546 29,381,445 11,466,759 (17,914,686)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 1,821,926 1,863,840 1,678,543 185,297

  Supplies 67,500 67,500 54,543 12,957

  Contractual and other services 1,526,985 1,526,985 1,587,136 (60,151)

  Repairs and maintenance 398,168 398,168 383,219 14,949

  Capital outlay 19,491,256 30,281,155 9,920,336 20,360,819

  Total administrative expenses 23,305,835 34,137,648 13,623,777 20,513,871

Non-departmental expenses (income):

 Interest and fiscal charges 419,249 419,249 414,038 5,211

 Capitalized interest - - (348,230) 348,230

Total non-departmental expenses 419,249 419,249 65,808 353,441

Total expenses 23,725,084 34,556,897 13,689,585 20,867,312

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 expenses (budget basis) before transfers (5,133,538)$       (5,175,452)$       (2,222,826)$       2,952,626$        

Transfers:

 Transfers out (1,103,965) (1,103,965) (1,103,965) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (6,237,503) (6,279,417) (3,326,791) 2,952,626

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (3,553,819) (3,553,819)

Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

  per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 9,920,336 9,920,336

Net income-GAAP basis (6,237,503)$       (6,279,417)$       3,039,726$        9,319,143$        
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Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 9,998,842$        9,998,842$        10,673,408$      674,566$           

  Rentals 2,100,000 2,100,000 1,892,738 (207,262)

  Other 110,000 110,000 127,892 17,892

  Total operating revenues 12,208,842 12,208,842 12,694,038 485,196

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 1,591 1,591

  Total non-operating revenues - - 1,591 1,591

  Total revenues 12,208,842 12,208,842 12,695,629 486,787

Expenses:

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 193,638 201,367 233,206 (31,839)

  Supplies 24,800 24,800 12,976 11,824

  Contractual and other services 352,325 352,325 315,028 37,297

  Repairs and maintenance 9,000 9,000 17,527 (8,527)

  Capital outlay 137,000 550,119 179,383 370,736

  Total  administration 716,763 1,137,611 758,120 379,491

Operations :

  Salaries and benefits 1,198,670 1,220,140 957,841 262,299

  Supplies 85,000 85,000 77,138 7,862

  Contractual and other services 494,500 494,500 590,974 (96,474)

  Repairs and maintenance 170,000 170,000 196,171 (26,171)

  Total operations 1,948,170 1,969,640 1,822,124 147,516

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 50,368$             50,368$             50,368$             -$                       

  Interest and fiscal charges 180,451 180,451 - 180,451

  Bond principal requirement 149,549 149,549 - 149,549

  Other 2,915,907 2,915,907 3,428,995 (513,088)

  Total non-departmental expenses 3,296,275 3,296,275 3,479,363 (183,088)

  Total expenses 5,961,208 6,403,526 6,059,607 343,919

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

   expenses (budget basis) before transfers 6,247,634 5,805,316 6,636,022 830,706

Transfers:

 Transfers out (5,183,834) (5,183,834) (5,718,893) (535,059)

Net transfers (5,183,834) (5,183,834) (5,718,893) (535,059)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 1,063,800 621,482 917,129 295,647

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (606,661) (606,661)

Interest on board advances - - 550,445 550,445

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 179,383 179,383

Net income-GAAP basis 1,063,800$        621,482$           1,040,296$        418,814$           
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN INTERNATIONAL TOLL BRIDGE FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014

Bridge

Reserved for Capital

City Distribution Contingency Improvement Total

Cash and investments at September 30, 2013 4,773,067$        502,674$       962,026$       6,237,767$    

Add:

Transfers in 5,147,667          -                     708,562         5,856,229      

Other -                      -                     10,471           10,471           

Interest earned 433                 169                380                982                

Total additions 5,148,100          169                719,413         5,867,682      

Less payments:

Capital assets -                         -                     215,188         215,188         

Interfund transfers 4,771,818          -                     -                     4,771,818      

Total payments 4,771,818          -                     215,188         4,987,006      

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014 5,149,349$        502,843$       1,466,251$    7,118,443$    

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014

  are comprised of the following:

Cash -$                       -$                   55,934$         55,934$         

Investments 5,149,349          502,674         1,410,317      7,062,340      

Accrued interest -                         169                -                     169                

 
5,149,349$        502,843$       1,466,251$    7,118,443$    
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Operating revenues:

 Charges for services 2,765,886$        2,765,886$        2,998,333$        232,447$           

  Rentals - - 18,276 18,276

  Other 117,000 117,000 37,102 (79,898)

  Total operating revenues 2,882,886 2,882,886 3,053,711 170,825

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 1,600 1,600 870 (730)

  Total non-operating revenues 1,600 1,600 870 (730)

  Total revenues 2,884,486 2,884,486 3,054,581 170,095

Expenses:

 Administration:

  Salaries and benefits 147,440 148,556 135,561 12,995

  Supplies 8,200 8,200 6,667 1,533

  Contractual and other services 265,577 265,577 241,854 23,723

  Repairs and maintenance 1,000 1,000 1,248 (248)

  Capital outlay - 87,448 61,845 25,603

  Total  administration 422,217 510,781 447,175 63,606

Operations :

  Salaries and benefits 373,190 379,323 291,566 87,757

  Supplies 15,000 15,000 10,327 4,673

  Contractual and other services 58,028 58,028 39,018 19,010

  Repairs and maintenance 41,094 41,094 59,563 (18,469)

  Total operations 487,312 493,445 400,474 92,971

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS  INTERNATIONAL CROSSING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS  INTERNATIONAL CROSSING  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 12,000$             12,000$             12,000$             -$                       

  Interest and fiscal charges 1,685,820 1,685,820 1,682,645 3,175

  Interest on board advances - - 550,445 (550,445)

  Bond related charges - - (30,143) 30,143

  Bond principal requirement 1,200,000 1,200,000 - 1,200,000

  Total non-departmental expenses 2,897,820 2,897,820 2,214,947 682,873

  Total expenses 3,807,349 3,902,046 3,062,596 839,450

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 
(budget basis) before transfers (922,863) (1,017,560) (8,015) 1,009,545

Transfers:

 Transfers in 939,204 939,204 947,075 7,871

Net transfers 939,204 939,204 947,075 7,871

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 16,341 (78,356) 939,060 1,017,416

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,543,678) (1,543,678)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses 
per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 61,845 61,845

Net income-GAAP basis 16,341$             (78,356)$            (542,773)$          (464,417)$          
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Current Current

Debt Debt

Contingency Service Service

Reserve Series A-$26M Series B-$13M

Cash and investments at September 30, 2013 123,922$        564,226$            279,096$          

Add:

Transfers 45,000         1,964,732        947,075         

Interest earned 49                -                       113                

Total additions 45,049            1,964,732           947,188            

Less payments:

Principal payments -                      800,000              400,000            

Capital assets -                      -                          -                       

Other -                   -                          -                       

Interest and fiscal charges -                      1,147,153           539,741            

Total payments -                      1,947,153           939,741            

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014 168,971$        581,805$            286,543$          

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014

  are comprised of the following:

Cash -$                    -$                        -$                     

Investments 168,971          581,805              286,543            

168,971$        581,805$            286,543$          

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS INTERNATIONAL CROSSING FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014
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Current Current

Debt Debt

Contingency Service Service

Reserve Series A-$26M Series B-$13M

Cash and investments at September 30, 2013 123,922$        564,226$            279,096$          

Add:

Transfers 45,000         1,964,732        947,075         

Interest earned 49                -                       113                

Total additions 45,049            1,964,732           947,188            

Less payments:

Principal payments -                      800,000              400,000            

Capital assets -                      -                          -                       

Other -                   -                          -                       

Interest and fiscal charges -                      1,147,153           539,741            

Total payments -                      1,947,153           939,741            

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014 168,971$        581,805$            286,543$          

Cash and investments at September 30, 2014

  are comprised of the following:

Cash -$                    -$                        -$                     

Investments 168,971          581,805              286,543            

168,971$        581,805$            286,543$          

CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

ANZALDUAS INTERNATIONAL CROSSING FUND

SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

IN RESTRICTED ACCOUNTS

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014
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Capital

Improvement Total

487,988$          1,455,232$                

235,426         3,192,233                  

179                341                            

235,605            3,192,574                  

-                        1,200,000                  

55,818              55,818                       

14,432              14,432                       

-                        1,686,894                  

70,250              2,957,144                  

653,343$          1,690,662$                

19,200$            19,200$                     

634,143            1,671,462                  

653,343$          1,690,662$                
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Capital

Improvement Total

487,988$          1,455,232$                

235,426         3,192,233                  

179                341                            

235,605            3,192,574                  

-                        1,200,000                  

55,818              55,818                       

14,432              14,432                       

-                        1,686,894                  

70,250              2,957,144                  

653,343$          1,690,662$                

19,200$            19,200$                     

634,143            1,671,462                  

653,343$          1,690,662$                

- 189 -



Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 
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Operating revenues:

  Charges for services 565,568$           565,568$           526,778$           (38,790)$            

  Other services 615,887 615,887 457,730 (158,157)

  Total operating revenues 1,181,455 1,181,455 984,508 (196,947)

 Non-operating revenues:

  Intergovernmental 1,448,079 1,448,079 462,295 (985,784)

  Investment earnings - - 6,271 6,271

  Net decrease in the fair value of investments - - (1,290) (1,290)

  Other - - 21,510 21,510

  Total non-operating revenues 1,448,079 1,448,079 488,786 (959,293)

  Total revenues 2,629,534 2,629,534 1,473,294 (1,156,240)

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 2,100,990 2,127,758 1,862,851 264,907

  Supplies 49,629 49,629 44,123 5,506

  Contractual and other services 758,028 758,028 715,659 42,369

  Repairs and maintenance 642,803 642,803 614,629 28,174

  Total expenses 3,551,450 3,578,218 3,237,262 340,956

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers (921,916) (948,684) (1,763,968) (815,284)

Transfers:

 Transfers in 921,127 921,127 921,127 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (789) (27,557) (842,841) (815,284)

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (669,795) (669,795)

Net income-GAAP basis (789)$                 (27,557)$            (1,512,636)$       (1,485,079)$       

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

McALLEN EXPRESS  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Operating revenues:

  Fleet billings 3,116,000$        3,116,000$        3,448,355$        332,355$           

  Materials management 280,000 280,000 313,562 33,562

  Total operating revenues 3,396,000 3,396,000 3,761,917 365,917

 Non-operating revenues:

  Other - - 17,085 17,085

  Total non-operating revenues - - 17,085 17,085

  Total revenues 3,396,000 3,396,000 3,779,002 383,002

Expenses:

 Materials management:

  Salaries and benefits 117,900 121,149 131,442 (10,293)

  Supplies 2,150 2,150 2,017 133

  Contractual and other services 2,100 2,100 2,086 14

  Repairs and maintenance 3,817 3,817 3,001 816

  Total  materials management 125,967 129,216 138,546 (9,330)

Fleet operations :

  Salaries and benefits 884,540 903,665 741,740 161,925

  Supplies 22,614 22,614 14,209 8,405

  Contractual and other services 1,608,300 1,608,300 2,735,590 (1,127,290)

  Repairs and maintenance 36,234 36,234 28,886 7,348

  Capital outlay 50,000 150,364 81,415 68,949

  Total fleet operations 2,601,688 2,721,177 3,601,840 (880,663)

903,665

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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(Negative)

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

FLEET MATERIALS MANAGEMENT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014

 Non-departmental expenses:

  Liability insurance 12,493$             12,493$             12,493$             -$                       

  Other - - (41,755) 41,755

  Total non-departmental expenses 12,493 12,493 (29,262) 41,755

  Total expenses 2,740,148 2,862,886 3,711,124 (848,238)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) 655,852 533,114 67,878 (465,236)

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (66,980) (66,980)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses per 
budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 81,415 81,415

Net income-GAAP basis 655,852$           533,114$           82,313$             (450,801)$          
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 8,475,301$        8,475,301$        8,800,682$        325,381$           

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 13,865 13,865

  Net decrease in the fair value of investments - - (3) (3)

  Other 153,354 153,354 105,495 (47,859)

  Total non-operating revenues 153,354 153,354 119,357 (33,997)

  Total revenues 8,628,655 8,628,655 8,920,039 291,384

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 256,781 263,230 269,736 (6,506)

  Supplies 3,000 3,000 3,106 (106)

  Contractual and other services 1,475,567 1,475,567 1,456,494 19,073

  Self insurance claims 8,123,903 8,123,903 9,083,296 (959,393)

  Capital outlay 38,700 38,700 14,471 24,229

  Total expenses 9,897,951 9,904,400 10,827,103 (922,703)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (1,269,296) (1,275,745) (1,907,064) (631,319)

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (5,320) (5,320)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 14,471 14,471

Net income-GAAP basis (1,269,296)$       (1,275,745)$       (1,897,913)$       (622,168)$          

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 1,312,370$        1,312,370$        489,242$           (823,128)$          

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 12,390 12,390

  Net decrease in the fair value of investments - - (704) (704)

  Total non-operating revenues - - 11,686 11,686

  Total revenues 1,312,370 1,312,370 500,928 (811,442)

Expenses:

  Contractual and other services 81,206 81,206 82,351 (1,145)

  Self insurance claims 970,000 970,000 313,151 656,849

  Total expenses 1,051,206 1,051,206 395,502 655,704

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget 261,164 261,164 105,426 (155,738)

Net income-GAAP basis 261,164$           261,164$           105,426$           (155,738)$          

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE  FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Original 
Budget Final Budget

Actual 
Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-contributions 3,640,526$      3,640,526$            3,898,962$      258,436$         

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings 87,177 87,177 64,983 (22,194)

  Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (4,386) (4,386) 13,572 17,958

  Other 215,593 215,593 1,962,802 1,747,209

  Total non-operating revenues 298,384 298,384 2,041,357 1,742,973

  Total revenues 3,938,910 3,938,910 5,940,319 2,001,409

Expenses:

  Salaries and benefits 243,208 251,177 294,298 (43,121)

  Supplies 4,000 4,000 4,012 (12)

  Contractual and other services 1,549,902 1,549,902 1,455,460 94,442

  Self insurance 1,600,000 1,600,000 3,212,046 (1,612,046)

  Repairs and maintenance 1,448 551,448 1,336,247 (784,799)

  Capital outlay 4,500 9,385,720 9,381,216 4,504

  Total expenses 3,403,058 13,342,247 15,683,279 (2,341,032)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) before transfers 535,852 (9,403,337) (9,742,960) (339,623)

Operating transfers:

 Transfers out (1,000,000) (1,000,000) (1,000,000) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over budget (464,148) (10,403,337) (10,742,960) (339,623)

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

    per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 9,381,216 9,381,216

Net income-GAAP basis (464,148)$       (10,403,337)$         (1,361,744)$    9,041,593$      

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL INSURANCE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Original 
Budget Final Budget Actual Amount

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative)

 

Revenues:

  Operating-charges for services 2,106,012$        2,106,012$        2,106,012$        -$                      

 Non-operating revenues:

  Investment earnings - - 88,470 88,470

  Net increase in the fair value of investments - - 12,150 12,150

  Other - - 14,521 14,521

  Total non-operating revenues - - 115,141 115,141

  Total revenues 2,106,012 2,106,012 2,221,153 115,141

Expenses:

  Capital outlay 3,810,384 4,041,753 1,785,823 2,255,930

  Total expenses 3,810,384 4,041,753 1,785,823 2,255,930

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  expenses (budget basis) (1,704,372) (1,935,741) 435,330 2,371,071

GAAP basis adjustments:

 Depreciation expense, not budgeted - - (1,744,094) (1,744,094)

 Capital outlay-amounts budgeted as expenses

   per budget basis, capitalized per GAAP basis - - 1,785,823 1,785,823

Net income-GAAP basis (1,704,372)$      (1,935,741)$      477,059$           2,412,800$        

 CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS

GENERAL DEPRECIATION FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES-BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS)

For the Year Ended  September 30, 2014
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Contents

Financial Trends

Revenue Capacity

Debt Capacity

Demographic and Economic Information

Operating Information

Other Information
Information that City considers useful to its citizens is included in this section.

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual financial report for the relevant year.

This part of the City of McAllen's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a 
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the government's overall financial health.

These shedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial 
performance and well-being have changed over time.

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government's most significant local revenue 
source, the property tax.

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government's current levels 
of outstanding debt and the government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment 
within which the government's financial activities take place.

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in 
the government's financial report related to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.
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This section contains information regarding grant activity, which was audited under the guidelines of the 
United States Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement.
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Grant Thornton 


c...nt Thornton l1.P 
700 "'~m Street Suite 300 
H.Mkln. rx 77002·28-48 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
T832.476,3600 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 	 f 113.655 8741 

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT 	 GrantThomtcll.cotn 
ifl1 kd.1 n,iGrantThOfl1C<ll/SAUDITING STANDARDS t>Mtte<.~lholntQnUS 

The Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Commission and 

Public Utility Board ofTruslees 
City of McAllen, Texas 

We have audited, in ac(:orciance with auditing staocbrds genualJy accepted in me United Srates 

of America and the standards applicable to financW audits contained in Gwernmml Altaitin!, 

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United Sones, the fioUlcial statemeot$ of the 

govemm~ca1 activi ties, the business-type activities, each ITUjor fund. and the aggregate r~;ti.ning 

fund information of the City of McAllen . l'exas (the "City") as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the firumcilll statements, which collectively comprise 

me City's basic fioanciru statements, and h:Lve issued our report thereon dated Much 13,2015. 

Intema l control over finandal (eporting 
10 p1.a.uning and performing ou r audit of th~ fimlOcial 5tatements, we considered the City's 
internal control over finMciaJ reporting ("iruemal control',) to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 

statements, but not fo r the purpose of e:'lprcssing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 

control. Accordingly, we do Dot exprcss an opinion on the effectiveness of the Gry's internal 

cootrol 

A de6.ciency in inte.cnal control existS when the design or Opl".t2.tioo of a control does not aUow 

management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned fuoctions, to 

prevent, or detect and correct, misstatemenD on a timely basis. A mBterial weakness is a 

deficiency, or a combin:uion of deficiencit:$, in intcroal controL such that there is a reasonable 
posSJbility that 1 m:uecia1 missta tement of the City's financial sl.3temcnts will not be prevented, 

or detected and corrected, on 1 timely basis. A significant deficiency is ;'\ deficiency, o r 'OJ 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than 'OJ material weakness, yet 

important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

c."" n..rotoo LlP 
\I.$.~ hrmolGr¥O ThIinIon r _ LI<l 
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Our coc.s.ideration of internal control WlIS fo r the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 

of this seetioo and was n OI" dcsignro to identify all deficiencies in internal conttol that might be 

material Wtlknesses or significlJ\( deficiencies and thudoIe, matuial weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies may exist that wac not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
nOt identify any deficiencies in internal cootto! that we conuder to be material weaknesses. 

However, material we'it.k.nesses may exist that have nor been identified. We did identify certain 

deficiencies in internal cont:ro~ described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 

questioned costs as 2014-001, 2014-002, 2014-003, and 2014-004 thai we consider to be 
significant de6ciencics in the ury's internal control 

Compliance and other matters 
As part of obtaining c01Isanable assurance about whether the City's financ:i:a..l scatements \lIe free 
from mate.riru m.i&5tatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions o f laws, 
regulations, conc:racls, and grant agreements, noncompliUlce with which could have a direx:I and 

material effect on the determination o f financial sllItemcnt arnounlS. H owever, providing an 

opinion 00 compliance with those provis.ions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, 

we do not express such an opinion. The results of our ItslS disclosed no instances of 

noncompliance or omu matters that ace ~quired to ~ ttported under Gcwnt111t1f1 AJldiJing 
Slondordr. 

City'S response to findings 

The City's response to OUl 6ndings, which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costS, was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 

financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on the City's response. 

Intended purpose 
The purpose of this repOrt is solely to describe the scope: of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the resulls of that testing. and oat to provide: 3D opinion on the effectiveness of 

the City's internal control or on complance. This report is an integral part of an :wwe performed 

in accordance witb C(Wtnlmtllf APdifilll Standards in considering the Ciry'$ internal control and 

compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable (or any other purpose. 

Houston, Texas 
March 13,201 5 
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GrlInt Thornton UP 
700 Milam Street, Suite 300REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
Ho~stOf'1. TX 77002·2848

ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND 
T832.476.3600 

.ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY F 7l3.65$.874L 
OMS CIRCULAR A·133 GrarHl'tofnIQn,co(1I 

Iiokd.h/GrillllT/lQ(l1IonUS 
IV.'itter.tl)!1'l/Gr¥IIThonliOl'lllS 

The Honorable M:r.yor, Memben of the City Commission and 
Public Utility Board o(TNS~e$ 
City of McAllen, TaIlS 

Report on compUanc. for each major federal program 

We have lI.udited the compliance: of the City of McAllen, Texas (the "City") with the types of 

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Of6ce of Management and Budget's OMB 
Cirrular A-133 umpliantt SNJ1PIlmrnl that could have a direct and material effect on each of its 
major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014. The wry's major federal 

progrmns arc: identified in the summary ofauditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 

of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's responsibility 


z...fanagem~ 1 is respoosible {or complfam:e with the requiremems or lllws, regulations, conlr.lcts, 


and gnn~ appliable to the Cicy's federal programs. 


AudJlor's responsibility 

Our responsibili ty is to el:press an opiruon on compliance for each of the City's major federal 

programs based on our audlt of the types of comp1iancl': requirt:mcnts referred 10 above. WI': 

conducted our audit of compliance in :accordance with auditing m.ndards generally :accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits eoclained in GowrnmMt 
AndiJing Stalldardt issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stites; and 011B 

Circular A-I33, AudiJ.t ofStatu, Lxal Govtnlments, and Non-ProjiJ Of"!,dlliZaJiqllJ. 

The above-mentioned standards and OMS Circular A-I33 require that we plan and perform the 

auctit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 

requirements refecroo to Ilbove that could have a direct and material effect on i\ major federal 
program occuaed. An aurut includes aamioing. on a (CSt basis, evidence about the City's 

compliance with those re<juiremenu and performing such orner procedures as we cons.idered 

necessary in the circumstances. 

0;;",.. Thornton LLP 
U,S. __ """ O! GtWIII_i'(~ '1d 

. 225 . 



o GrantThornton 


We believe that our audit provides a ctisonable basis (or our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a Irvi determination of the City's 
compliance. 

Basis for qualified opinion on Equilable Sharing Program 

As descnbed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the City did not 

comply with the requirements regarding CFDA 16.922 Equit2ble Sharing Program as described 

in finding number 2014--005 for Davis Bacon. Compliance'with such requiremcots is necessary. 

in oue opinion, for the Ciry to comply w:ith the requirements applicable to that program. 

Qualified opinion on EquItable Sharing Program 

In OUt opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on 
the Equitable Sharing Program pamgraph, the City complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and mM.erial effect 

on the Equitllble Sharing Program for the yeu ended September 30, 2014. 

Unmodlned opinion 00 each of lhe othel maJO( federal programs 

10 OUf op.inion, the City complied, io aU material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could han a direct and material effect on each of its other 
major federal programs identified in the summary of auditor's resulu section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs fot the year ended September 30, 2014. 

City's response to findings 

The City's response to our noncompliance finding. which is described in Lhe accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs, was nOf subjected to the auditing procedw:es applied 

in the audit of compliance., and :lccordingly, we express no opinion on the Ciry's response. 

Roport on Internal control over compliance 

Management of the Gty is responsible for designing, implementing, and maintai.o.ing effective 
internal control over compliance with the typ~ of compliance reguirements referred to above. 
In planning and performing ou.r .ludit of compli2nce., we considered {he City's internal control 

over compliao~ with the types ofcompliance requirements that could hllve a direct aud material 

effect on ~ch major federal program to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
ciro.unSt;u1ces for the purpose of cxpressmg an opinion on compliance for t1Ich major fedual 
program and to test and report on intem.a1 control over compliance in accordance with OMB 

Circular A-l33, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 00 the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express Rn opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control over compliance. 

A de6ciency in internal control Over compliance exists when the cluign or operation ofa control 

over compliance does Dot allow managm1ent or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions., 10 prevent, at detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a ti.rody basis. A roateru..I weakness in internal 
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control over compJUoce is a deficiency, or a combination of ddiciencies, in internal control over 

compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, 
on a timely bWs. A SigniliC2IlI deficiency in int~ control over compliance is a deficiency, or 

a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliaoce with Ii type of compliance 

requirement of a fedenJ. program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control 

over compliance., yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with goVem2Ilce. 

Our consideration of inlemal control over compliance was (or the linUled purpose dc:sc:ri~d in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to ideoci.fy aU de6ciencies in internal 

control over compl.i:mce that migbt bt: material weU.ncsses or s.igniGcant deficiencies. However, 

we idenci6ed certain deficiencies in ifllC1llal comrol over compli2nce, described in the 
accompanying schedule of 6ndings and questioned coses as items 2014-005 and 2014-008, thai 

we consider 10 be m:llcriaJ weaknesses in the Ciry's internal con trol over complianc~. 

We identified cerWn deficiencies in internal control ova compliance, described in the: 
accompwying schedule of findin~ and questioned COsts as items 2014-006, and 2014-007, thaI 

we consider to be significant deficiencies in the City's internal control over compliance. 

The City'S response to our findings on internal control over compliance, which is described in 

the accompwying schedule of findings and questioned costs, \VlI$ not subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of compliance, and accordingly, we express no opinion on the 

City's response. 

The purpose of this Report on InTernal Control Over Compliance is solely to describe the scope 

or our testing of internal control over compliance and the resulTS of thaI testing based on the 

requirements of OMB Circulat A-133. Accordingly, this upon is not suitable for any other 

purpose. 

Houston, Texas 

March 13,2015 


"'_ ........ u·

1j..$. __"'Go... ~_u" 
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Grant Thornton 


Grant ThornlOl\ UP 
700 MiI3ITI Street Stnte 300REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
Ho~!on, TX 17002·2848

ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM AND 
T832.471>'3600

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIREO BY F 713.655.8741 
STATE OF TEXAS SINGLE AUDIT CIRCULAR 	 Gr~nlThomtOlLrom 

IlI1kd ,~~ID\ThomlooUS 

twiner.cQr1Vl:;raniThe< I'll t>'IJ S 

The Hooorable Mayor, Members o f meCity Commission and 

Public Utility Board o fTruslccs 

Gty of McAllen, T~as 


Report on compliance for each major state program 

We have audited the compwncc: of the City of McAllen, Texas (me "Ci0/1 with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the Stall ofTexw Sing!' Audit Circular thai could have a 
direct and material effect on each of its major state prognms for the year ended September 30, 
20t4. Th e City'S major Slate programs are identified in the summary of auditor's resuln. section 

of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned com. 

Management's responsibility 
Management is responsible fo r complUnce wilh the requicements of b.ws, regulations, contracts, 

and gnnts applicable to the City's state programs. 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our responsibility is to (,),:press an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major state 

programs based o n oue audit of the l)'pu of compl ia nce requirements referred to above. We 

conducted o ue audit of compliance in accordance wilh audi ting standards generally accepted in 

the United SUles of America; the standards applicable to financi::t.l audits contained in GQlNT7Imrnl 

AlIdiJint SJa,,&:mi! issued by the CoroptroUer General of the United States; and the State ofTe.us 

Single Audit Circul:u:. 

The above-mentioned sWldards an d State of Texas Single Audit Circular require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain re:;uonable usurance abOUI whether noncompliance wilh the 

types of compli:mce requirements reielTed to above that could have 3. direct and material effeci 

on a major ~tate program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a teST basis, evidence about 

the Cit)"s compliance with those requirements and performing such other p rocedures as we 

considered necessuy in the circumstances. 

We bdteve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for oue opinion on compliance for each 
majot state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal detennination of the City's 

compliance. 

GtOlll T,..,..- UF 
1I.s, """",", """de.... n.or-~ UoI 
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BasIs for Qualified opinion on Equltab1e Sharing Program 
As described in lh(: accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the City did not 
comply with The requirements regarding the Equitable Sharing Program as described in finding 
numbtl2014-OQ9 for Suspension and Deba.nT':lUlI aDd finding nwnbe.t 2014-010 for Equipment 

Manag~e.tH , Compliance with such requirements is necessary. in our opinion, for the City to 

comply with the requiremeno applicable [0 that program. 

Qualified opinion on Equitable Sharing Program 

In our opinion, except for the noncomptiance de$c:cibed in the Basis for Qu:ili.fied Opinion on 

the EquitabJe Sharing Program paragraph, the City complied, in all material respects, with the 

types of compliance requirements referred to above that couJd have a direct and material effect 
on the Equitable Sharing Program foc the year ended September 30, 2014. 

CIty'S response to findings 

The City's response to oue noncompliance findings. which is described in the accompanying 
scheduJe of findings and questioned costs, was not subjecled 10 the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit o f compliance, and accordingly, we ~):Pt~SS no opinion on the City'S responsc. 

Report on Internal control over compliance 

Management of the City is responsible for tJesigning, implementing. and nu.intaining effective: 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
In planning and perlorrning our auclit of compliR.oce, we considered the wry's internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliaoce reqWIements that could have a direct and material 
effeci on C'a.ch major stale program to design audit procedures thaI are appropriate in the 
cUcumsttnces fOr the purposc o f expressing an opinion on complWtcc for each major Sl:1re 

program aod to leSf aDd report on inlernal control ower compliance in accordance with the Stale 

of Ttlas Single Audil Circular, bUI not (or the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 

effectiveness ofintemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Gty's internal control ovu compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the: design or operntion of a control 
over complianct does not allow management or employees, in the Donnal course of perfonrung 
their assigned functions, to preven t, or detect and correct, noncompliance wjth a type of 
compliance requirement of a state program on a tim ely basis. A marer.iaJ weako~s in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, QC a combination o f deficiencies, in internal control ovec 

compliance, such that lhere is a rc:uonable possibility dUlt rnare.cial noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requin:rnent of a stare program will oot be prevented, or dctected and conected, on 
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in inte.mal control ove:r eompli2l1ce is a deficiency, oc a 
combination of deficiencies, in intc:I1l.al cono-ol over compliance with a typc of compliance 
requirement of a sfltte program that js less severe than a matetial weakness in internal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to mcril mention by those charged with governance. 

GtOlll~~LLI' 
U.S.~I.mojGtwt~""""""" lW 
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Our consideratioll of internal control over compliance was for the lira.ited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify :ill deficiencies in internal 

con trol over compliance that might be material weaknesses or signjficant deficiencies, However. 

we identified cc.rWn deficiencies in internal control over compliance, described in the 

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as ilems, 2014-009 and 2014-010, du.t 

we consider to be material weaknesses in the City's internal cootrol over compliance. 

The City's response to our findings on .internal control over compliaoce, which is described in 
the accompanying schWu1e of finding5 and questioned CDs tS, was no t subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of comptiancc, and accordingly, we express no opinion on the 

City's response. 

The purpose of this Report on InlaTlai Control Over Compliance is solc.ly to describe the scope 

of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Stat e o f Tals Single Audit Circular. Accoroingly, this rcpon is nOi suitabl e 

for 10y other pwpose. 

Houston, Texas 
MMch 13. 2015 

1lTa", llIono"ft I.'-" 
U.S . ......- .... ol C...'t 1__l tJ 
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CITY OF McALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 


Year Ended September 30, 2014 

Federal Grantor! ferlera! Program 
Pass-Tbrough CFDA Granlor's or Aw.lrd Disburs eroeors/ 

GraotorfProgram Titl e Number Number Amount Expenditures 

U.S. De partmcnl of Housing lln dUrban DcVl": lopm c nl 

Direct Program: 

Community Development Block Grant : 

38th Year Entitlement Grant 14.2 18 C8 12MC48506 1,60 1,178 $ 165,519 

39th Year Entitlemern Grant 14.2 18 CB 13M C48506 1,535,436 890,428 
40th Year Ent itlement Grant 14 .2 18 CB 14M C48506 1,522,800 

Home Investment Partnership s Programs 14.239 M IOMC480S06 664,307 112,869 

Home Investment PartJlCrship s Programs 14.239 M 1 JM C480506 585,793 352,284 

Home Investment Partnerships Progrums 14.239 M 12MC480S06 465,925 

Home Investment Partnerships Programs 14.239 M 13M C480506 418,6]4 

Home Investment Partnerships P~ams 14.239 M 14M C480506 4)4,9 14 

Emergency Solutions Grant J4.23 I S l3M C480506 116,8 11 60,504 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
1,581.604 

U.S. Department of Tran sportati on 

Direct Pro£ram: 
Airport Improvement ProgaID 20.106 3·48·0144.42 4,3 18,852 2,406.894 

Airport Improvement ['ro£1WD 20. 106 3-48·0 144.43 680,373 40,335 

A irport ImprovelJlCflt Prog'dITI 20. 106 3· 48·0 144.44 762,352 759,436 

Airport Improvement Program 20. 106 3·48·0 144.<15 9,41 6, 163 7.244 

Small Communily A ir Service Developmem 20 .9 30 201J·01 20·0029 750.000 

Federal Trnns il Capitallnvcst menl s G JWlt • 20.5()() T X·04·()() 10·00 495,000 

Frocral Trnns i! Formula G rant· 20.507 TX ·90·X73HlO 1,823,797 243, 122 

Federal Transi! FomlUla G ran! • 20.507 TX·9(}·X778·00 1,679,250 166.924 

Federal Trans i! Formula G ran! • 20.507 TX·90·X830·01 1,3")7,939 8,682 

Federal Trans i! FomlUla G ran! • 20.507 TX · 9(}·X906-OO 1,962,520 407,945 

Federal Trans i! Fomlula G ram' 20.507 TX ·90·X937-OO 5,207,3n 949, 100 

Federal Trans i! FOfTIluia GI'lIJl! • 20.507 TX-90-YO\7-OO 3,70 1,400 365.654 

FakraJ Trans i! Formulll Grant' 20.507 T X-90-Y048-OO 3, 17 1,640 709, 155 

Federal Transit Job Access & Reverse Communit y Program • 20.5 16 T X·)7·X085-OO 885,305 193,52 1 

Federal Transit New Fn:edom ProgJ1lm • 20.52 1 TX·57·X030·00 t08,081 18.254 

Federal Trans it Admini~lralion 20.523 TX ·8t1-OU(} I -OO 1,906,908 

Federal Highway Adminislrat ion 

Passed through Te.'13S Department ofTranspOr1 ation 

Highway Pbnningand Const~l ion 2(}.205 STP 20 1,1 ( 102 ) T E 1,020,265 

State and Communit), H"igh wlI)' Safet y 20.600 20 14·McA lIenP-S- 1 YG.(l049 80,000 79,693 

State and Communit), Hi~wa)' Saf~y 20.600 20 14· M cA1ICflPO· 10M ·00008 47,480 40,284 

State and Communi!y Hi!1Jway Safely 20.600 20 14 ·M cA 11e!\PD ·CtOT · 00020 5,001 5,001 

Total US. Department o f Transp ort ali 0 11 S 6,401,244 
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Federal Grantor! 

Pass-'through 


GranlorlProgram Title 


U.S. Departm ent of Justice 
Direct Program: 

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistanct: Grant 
EdWll{d Bymc Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 
Equilable Sharing Program 

Total U.S. Department or Juslice 

u.s. Environmental Protection Agency 
Clean Waler State Revolving Fund 

Clean Waler Slale Revolving rund 
Clean Waler State Revolving Fund 

Clean Water Slale Re volving Fund 

Total U.S. Environmental PrOleclion Agency 

U.S. Department of Homtlllnd Set urity 

Border Interoperability DemonSlmtion Project 

Emergency Ma.n~gement PerformaJ"K:e Grants 


Pass through Assislance 10 Firefighlers Granl Program 


Opcralioos and Sarery Program 


Pass through Divisioo o rEmergeney Man agemem 


HB.llll"d Miligalion Grnnl Program 


Hazard Miligation Grant Program 


Hazard Mil igat ion Granl Program 


flazard Mitig.lt ion Granl Program 


Repel ilive Flood Claims Program 


Homeland $C(:uriry Granl Program ~ 


Homeland SC(:uriry Grant Program· 

Homeland Security Grant Program • 

.Homeland Security Grant Program * 
Total U.S. Depanment Homeland Security 

U.S. Depllrlnlent ofCommeree (EDA) 

Investments for Public Works & Economic Development Facilities 

South Benlsen Road Jndustrial Park Improvements 

TOlal U.S. Depanmenl orCommercc 

Total federal tinancial assistance cxpended 

federal 
CFOA 

Number 

16.138 
16.7J8 
16.921 

66.458 

66A58 
66.458 
66.458 

97. 120 

97.042 

97 .044 

97.039 

97.039 

97.039 

97.039 

97.092 

97.067 

97.067 

97.067 

97.067 

11 .300 

Granlor'S 

Number 


20 1] ·DJ·BX·06 11 
2014· DJ·BX·Q466 

TWDS #73633 
TWOB #73640 
TWD]) #10435 

TWDS #73659 

2011 ·PD· J20·Q007 

j4rX·EMPG·071) 

EMW-201 2· f"R-0037 1 

FEMA 1780-007 


FEMA ·I 9} I·DR·TX- 11 


FEMI\· 193 1-DR· TX-12 


FEMA·1 93 1·DR·TX-13 


RfC· FY I2-00) 


20 13-5$-00045 


20 13-$5-00045 


20 14-SS·00029 


2014 -SS·00029 


08·0 1-04837 

Program 
or Award Disb ursemeots} 
Amount Expenditures 

,
22,6 15 22,6 15 
19,6 14 

2, 107,345 

2.1 29,960 


1,700,000 782,865 
7,808,511 544,629 

434,000 256, 188 
3,245,393 2,910,524 

4,494,206 

1,881 ,800 

46,581 

231,856 

46,08) 

2,201 , 120 2,176,501 

1,3 11 ,446 

507,532 

190,0 13 

636,7 17 

3 11 ,050 

94,929 

37,921 

87,677 

12,323 

901,798 

87, 17 1 

4,260 

577,874 

26,582 

77,928 

4,130,053 

600,000 

S J8,737,067 
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Program 
Gran lor 's or Award 
Number Amount 

Tobacco Compliance Grant 2014 
475- 14011 

VeLG'I4 

VelG ' I S 


LBSP-14·49 


CSJII MI42 1MCAL 

SAOOTO I IOO4 11 4 

SAOOTOI IOO41JS 


RT13016 


6, 150 
10,000 
40,976 

40,976 
75,000 

50,000 

292,408 
J 1l,879 

2 18,400 

Disbursementsl 
Expend itures 

$ 6, 150 
10,000 

36,976 
3,132 

74, 164 

50,000 

268,799 
19,977 

231,328 

700,5 26 

S 19,437,593 

TelliS Agend"" 
Te.X3S Siale University 
Texas Siale Library and An:hivcs Commission 

Tc.'(asOfficc: o f lhc Ano mey Gcncral 
Texas Office o f the Anomey General 

Texas Oepanmeru of Public Safe()' 
Texas Department ofTransportation: 

Routine Airport Maintcn~ce Program 
Pass Through - CilyofSmwnsll ilie 


AUIO Theft Prevention 20 14 

Auto Theft Prevention 20 15 


Texas Parks and Wildlife 

Equ itable Sharing Program 


Total statc financial assistance expended 

TotaJ federal and state financial assistance expended 

Denotes Slinmllls Funding 

• Indicates clustered program unde( OMB Circula( A-133 CompEance Suppl ement 
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Year Ended September 30,2014 


1. General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards presents the activity of all 
federal and state award programs of City of McAllen, Texas, for the year ended September 30,2014. 
The reporting entity consists of the primary govenunent, organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the primary government is not 
accountable, but for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary govenunent 
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete. 

Financial accountability exists if a primary government appoints a voting majority of an organization's 
governing Board and is either able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the 
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the 
primary govenunenl. A primary government may also be financially accountable for govenunental 
organizations with a separately elected governing Board, a governing Board appointed by another 
govenunent, or ajointly appointed Board that is fiscally dependent on the primary government. 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board requirements, the City has reviewed 
other entities and activities for possible inclusion in the reporting entity and determined that there are 
none; however. federal financial assistance passed through other goverrunental agencies is included on 
the schedule. 

2. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

The federal and state grant funds are accounted for in the Special Revenue Fund, a component of the 
Governmental Fund type, and in an Enterprise Fund. The accounting and financial reporting treatment 
applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. The Governmental Fund types are accounted 
for using a current financial resources measurement focus. With the Governmental Fund type 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance 
sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) 
and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for the Goverrunental Fund types. This basis of 
accounting recognizes revenues in the accounting period in which they become susceptible to accrual, 
i.e., both measurable and available, and expenditures in the accounting period in which the fund liability 
is incurred, if measurable, except for certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which 
are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial 
resources. Enterprise Funds are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business or where the governing body has decided that the determination of 
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SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness identified? No

• Significant deficiencies identified that are not
  considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness identified? Yes

• Significant deficiencies identified that are not
  considered to be material weaknesses? Yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with
Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? Yes

Identification of major federal program:

    CFDA Numbers   Name of Federal Program or Cluster

16.922 Equitable Sharing Program
20.106 Airport Improvement Program
20.507 Federal Transit Administration 
97.039 Hazard Mitigation 
97.044 Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A
and Type B federal programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No

Unmodified for all major programs except for the 
Equitable Sharing Program which was qualified
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State Awards 
  
Internal control over major programs: 

   
• Material weakness identified? Yes 
  
• Significant deficiencies identified that are not 
  considered to be material weaknesses?  No 

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for 
major programs:  Unmodified for all major programs except for the 

Equitable Sharing Program which was qualified 
  

Any audit findings disclosed that are required  
to be reported in accordance with  
State of Texas Single Audit Circular?  Yes 

Identification of major state program:  

Grant Number Name of State Program or Cluster 
 

N/A Equitable Sharing Program 
  
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A 
and Type B state programs:  $300,000  

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

Finding #: 2014-001 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency 
 
Criteria: 
Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) prescribes that all receivables should be measured net of 
estimated uncollectible amounts. 

Condition: 
We noted that an analysis is not being performed to determine an appropriate allowance for doubtful 
accounts on all of the City’s accounts receivables. Currently, an allowance is determined only for water, sewer 
and sanitation receivables. As an example, it was noted in the Airport fund there were a few receivables that 
had been outstanding for an extended period of time and related to vendors that were in bankruptcy.   
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that management establish a policy and develop a method based on historical experience and 
other relevant factors to determine an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and consistently use it on 
a periodic basis, at least annually, to analyze whether an allowance should be recorded.  This will allow 
management to assess the true collectability of outstanding receivables. 
 
View of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: 
Management concurs and will establish an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts policy in FY 14-15. 
 
Target completion date:   
June 30, 2015. 
 
Finding #: 2014-002 
Financial Statement and Supporting Schedules Reconciliation 
Type of Finding:  Significant Deficiency 
 
Criteria:   
Reconciliation of supporting schedules to amounts reported in the financial statements is a necessary 
component of a strong internal control. 
 
Condition: 
During the audit, we encountered inconsistencies in the supporting schedules of the capital assets and grants 
when auditing the numbers within the financial statements. We noted that there is a decentralized process 
regarding the underlying data and the data recorded in the financial statements.  Complete and accurate 
supporting schedules are necessary for complete and accurate financial statements. 
 
Recommendation: 
We recommend that the City establish policies and procedures to ensure the supporting schedules are 
reconciled to the financial statements.  This could include a detailed checklist identifying the supporting 
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schedules utilized to prepare the financial statements and related notes and assigning a person to be 
responsible for the accurate reconciliation. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: 
Management concurs and will establish detailed checklists for capital assets and grants. 
 
Target Completion Date: 
Ongoing and will be utilized for year-end process 
 
Finding #: 2014-003 
Accounts Payable Open Items Report 
Type of Finding:  Significant Deficiency 
 
Criteria:   
Understatement is the primary risk surrounding accounts payable; thus, a detail of the open payables balance 
at year-end is necessary to for underlying support of the financial statement balance. 
 
Condition: 
Based on our inquiries, management was unable to provide an open payables detail by fund to support the 
accounts payable balance.  It was our understanding based on prior year response to this matter that the 
accounting system was going to be modified to allow for an open payables report to be created. Additionally, 
it was noted that the City engaged a consultant to assist in this matter during 2014 to create a report. 
 
Recommendation:  
If the City has this capability, we recommend the City have available the system generated report to 
appropriately monitor accounts payable activities of the City. 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: 
Cogsdale, consultant for the City, has been unable to create the requested report.  IT Director is checking 
other avenues to remedy this issue. 
 
Target Completion Date 
Ongoing.  Status will be forthcoming 
 
Finding #: 2014-004 
Revenue Recognition 
Type of Finding:  Significant Deficiency 
 
Criteria: 
In accordance with the NCGA Statement 1 paragraph 110, governmental fund revenues should be classified 
in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances by fund and major revenue source, 
such as taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, fines and forfeits, and 
miscellaneous. 
 
Condition: 
During the audit, we noted that the City is recording grant revenue against expenditures in the general ledger 
for those grants included in the General fund.  It was communicated that this practice is done to ensure for 
budgetary purposes there is an accurate picture of the grant.  
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Recommendation:  
We recommend that the City properly reflect the grant revenue as intergovernmental revenues in the general 
fund or account for the grant activity of those specific grants in the Miscellaneous Grants Fund.  In order to 
maintain the ability to monitor the grant for budgetary purposes, the City could create a grant revenue 
account that is linked to the grant expense account. 
 
 
 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: 
Management concurs and will set up revenue and expenditure account numbers on the general ledger to 
record them to the Miscellaneous Grants Fund (Fund 140).   

Target Completion Date 
Ongoing and will continue throughout the fiscal year.   
 
  



CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2014 
 

- 244 - 
 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AND STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Federal Award Findings: 
 
Finding #: 2014-005 
CFDA Title:  Equitable Sharing Program     CFDA Number: 16.922 
Federal Award Number: N/A      Federal Award Year: 2014 
Federal Agency: Department of Justice 
Type of Finding:  Material Weakness and Material Noncompliance 

Davis Bacon 

Criteria or Specific Requirement: 

Title 29 CFR Part 5 states that a contract in the excess of $2,000 which is entered into for the actual 
construction, alteration and or repair, financed in whole or in part from Federal funds or in accordance with 
guarantees of a Federal agencies, are to pay minimum wages to all laborers and mechanics employed or 
working upon the site of the work and will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week and 
without subsequent deductions or rebate on any account.  In addition non-federal entities shall include in 
their construction contracts subject to the Davis –Bacon Act a requirement that the contractor or 
subcontractor comply with the requirements of the Davis Bacon Act including the requirement for a 
contractor or subcontractor to submit to the non-federal entity weekly, for each week in which any contract 
work is performed, a copy of the payroll and is statement of compliance (certified payrolls). 

Condition: 

We noted that the City did not include the provisions of Davis Bacon requirements in their contracts requiring 
the contractors to pay minimum wages to all laborers and mechanics.  In addition the City did not require the 
contractors to submit weekly certified payrolls.  

Questioned Costs: 

None reported.  

Context: 

It was noted that City of McAllen did not include the Davis Bacon provisions in contracts occurred during the 
period.  

Effect: 

The City’s lack of compliance with the requirements may cause the City to fail to require contractors to comply 
with the provisions of the Davis Bacon Act, which could potentially lead to loss or return of funding. 

Cause: 

The department did not indicate that the project was to be funded with federal dollars on the Request for 
Funding Availability form when requesting Purchasing and Contracts to procure contractors for specific 
construction renovations.   

Recommendation: 

We recommend the City strengthen their policies and procedures over the communication of federal 
requirements that all contracts funded with federal financial assistance to be subjected to the Davis Bacon Act 
requirements.  The policies should consider defining federal financial assistance as outlined in OMB Circular 
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A-133 to ensure all departments are aware that is not just grants that are subject to OMB Circular A-133 
requirements. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions:   

Elizabeth Cabrera, Purchasing Director.  Davis Bacon requirements were not implemented because the 
department was not aware that Seized fund (state and federal) were being used for this project.  Since that 
time, Request for Availability forms have been revised.  This form will require that each department notify 
Budget and Purchasing and Contracting of the type and name of funding to be used for the procurement of 
services, supplies, and goods.  No solicitation will be advertised unless Request for Funding Availability form 
has been completed to its entirety. 

Completion Date:  April 1, 2015. 

 

Finding #: 2014-006 
CFDA Title:  Federal - Equitable Sharing Program   CFDA Number: 16.922 
Federal Award Number: N/A      Federal Award Year: 2014 
Federal Agency: Department of Justice 
Type of Finding:  Significant Deficiency  

Procurement, Suspension and Debarment 

 

Criteria or Specific Requirement:  

In accordance with 2 CFR section 180, nonfederal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making 
subawards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred.  “Covered transactions” 
include those procurement contracts for goods and services awarded under a nonprocurement transaction 
(e.g. grant or cooperative agreement) that are expected to equal or exceed $25,000 or meet certain other 
criteria as specified in 2 CFR section 180.220.   

Condition:  

The City did not perform an inspection of the vendor in System for Award Management (SAM) to ensure the 
vendor is not suspended or debarred from use for the Equitable Sharing Program.  The inspection of the 
vendors was performed for another grant funded project in which the vendors were utilized, thus the City 
was in compliance with the requirements.  The control over the process in general however failed. 

 
Questioned Costs:  
None reported. 
 

Context:  

Of the three vendors utilized, the City did not perform an inspection of the vendor in System for Award 
Management (SAM) to ensure the vendor is not suspended or debarred from use in federally funded projects 
for the Equitable Sharing Program. 

Effect:  

The City’s lack of compliance with the requirement could potentially lead to loss or return of funding. 
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Cause:  

The Police Department was unaware that the Equitable Sharing Program was subject to the federal regulations 
and therefore, did not communicate to the Contracts and Purchasing department that the project would be 
funded with federal forfeitures.  

Recommendation:  

We recommend the City of McAllen’s Police department ensure all projects funded by federal forfeitures be 
communicated to the Contracts and Purchasing department to ensure the suspension and debarment inspection 
is performed.    

Views of responsible officials and Planned Corrective Actions:  Javier Rodriguez, Director of Fiscal 
Management (Police Department).  We agree to implement the auditor’s recommendations. 

Completion Date:  Ongoing. 

 

Finding #: 2014-007 
Program Title: Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program   CFDA Number: 97.044 
Federal Award Number:  EMW-2012-FR-00371 Federal Award Year: 2012 
Federal Agency: Federal Emergency Management Agency  
Pass-through Entity: N/A 
Type of Finding:  Significant Deficiency 

 

Cash Management  

Criteria or Specific Requirement:  

The A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110 (2 CFR part 215) require that non-Federal entities 
receiving Federal awards (i.e., auditee management) establish and maintain internal control designed to 
reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance requirements. 

Condition:  

The request for funds document is not reviewed prior to being submitted to the grantor agency. 

Questioned Costs:  
None reported. 

Context:  

Of the 3 reimbursement reports judgmentally selected for testing, there was no indication that a review of the 
report was performed prior to submission to the granting agency.  It was noted that the City performs an after 
submission review when recording the journal entry however this is not a preventative control but a detective 
control. 

Effect:  

The City of McAllen’s lack of review could cause errors to be reported to the granting agency thus causing a 
loss of funding. 

Cause:  
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The City believes, as the reports are prepared electronically there is no opportunity for review prior to 
submission. 

Recommendation:  

We recommend the City of McAllen assign another individual with requisite knowledge to review the 
reimbursement requests for the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program prior to submission. 

 

Views of responsible officials and Planned Corrective Actions:  Vidal Roman, Assistant Budget Director 

The City of McAllen will assign the appropriate individual with knowledge of the granted funds to review the 
required reports prior to submission.  
 

Completion Date:  Effective immediately and going forward. 

 

Finding #: 2014-008 
Program Title: Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program   CFDA Number: 97.044 
Federal Award Number:  EMW-2012-FR-00371 Federal Award Year: 2012 
Federal Agency: Federal Emergency Management Agency  
Pass-through Entity: N/A 
Type of Finding:  Material Weakness  

Reporting 

Criteria or Specific Requirement:  

The A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110 (2 CFR part 215) require that non-Federal entities 
receiving Federal awards (i.e., auditee management) establish and maintain internal control designed to 
reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws, regulations, and program compliance requirements. 

Condition:  

The Federal Financial Report/SF-425 reports are not reviewed by anyone other than the preparer prior to 
being submitted to the grantor agency. 

Questioned Costs:  
None reported. 

Context:  

Of the 2 financial reports judgmentally selected for testing, there was no indication that a review of the reports 
was performed prior to submission to the granting agency. 

Effect:  

The City of McAllen’s lack of review could cause errors to be reported to the granting agency thus causing a 
loss of funding. 

Cause:  

The City believes as the reports are prepared electronically there is no opportunity for review prior to 
submission. 
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Recommendation:  

We recommend the City of McAllen assign another individual with requisite knowledge to review the required 
reports for the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Program prior to submission. 

 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions:   

Vidal Roman, Assistant Budget Director. The City of McAllen will implement a procedure that quarterly reports 
generated electronically will be printed out first so that a designated individual can review the report prior to 
submission to ensure accuracy of the data.  

 

Completion Date:  Effective immediately and going forward. 

 

State Award Findings 

Finding #: 2014-009 
Program Title: Equitable Sharing Program  
State Award Year: 2014 
State Agency: Texas Attorney General 
Type of Finding:  Material Weakness and Material Noncompliance 

Suspension and Debarment 

Criteria or Specific Requirement:  

Per the Uniform Grants Management Standards subpart c paragraph .35, Subawards to debarred and 
Suspended parties, Grantees and subgrantees must not make any award or permit any award (subgrant or 
contract) at any tier to any party which is debarred or suspended or is otherwise excluded from or ineligible 
for participation in federal assistance programs under Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension.”   

Condition:  

The City did perform the review of the Parties Excluded from Procurement and Nonprocurement Programs 
listing to ensure the contractors are not suspended or debarred by the State of Texas. 

 
Questioned Costs: None reported. 
 

Context:  

Of the three vendors utilized, the City did not review the Parties Excluded from Procurement and 
Nonprocurement Programs listing maintained by the State of Texas.  In addition, the review of the Parties 
Excluded from Procurement and Nonprocurement document is not included within the established policies 
and procedures for review of Suspension and Debarment for state funded projects. 

Effect:  

The City’s lack of compliance with the requirement could potentially lead to loss or return of funding. 

Cause:  



CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2014 
 

- 249 - 
 

The City was unaware that the State of Texas maintained a Parties Excluded from Procurement and 
Nonprocurement Programs list and that the City was required to perform a review of the listing to ensure 
contractors are not suspended or debarred by the State of Texas. 

Recommendation:  

We recommend the City of McAllen perform a review of the Parties Excluded from Procurement and 
Nonprocurement Programs listing to ensure contractors are not suspended or debarred.  In addition, we 
recommend that the City incorporate this review into its established policies and procedures in place for other 
government funded projects. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions:    

Elizabeth Cabrera, Purchasing Director. Standard operating procedures have been developed (awaiting 
approval for Assistant City Manager) and all appropriate staff (Director, Assistant Director, Senior Buyer, 
Buyers II, and Contracts Compliance Officer) will be trained on these procedures.   

Completion Date: April 1, 2015. 

 

Finding #: 2014-010 
Program Title: Equitable Sharing Program – State         
State Award Number: N/A  
State Award Year: 2014                                          
State Agency: Texas Attorney General  
Pass-through Entity: N/A 
Type of Finding:  Material Weakness and Material Noncompliance 

Equipment Management 

In accordance with the Uniform Grants Management Standards paragraph 32(d) (1)and (2) Property records 
must be maintained that include a description of the property, a serial number or other identification number, 
the source of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, and cost of the property, percentage of federal or 
state  participation in the cost of the property, the location, use and condition of the property, and any 
ultimate disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the property.  A physical inventory of 
the property must be taken and the results reconciled with the property records at least once every two years.   

 

 

Condition:  

The City of McAllen did not meet the equipment requirement of taking a physical inventory of equipment at 
least once every two years as outlined in the Uniform Grants Management Standards. 
 
Questioned Costs:  
None reported. 

Context:  

There was no physical inventory of equipment in the last two years.  In addition, a control system was not 
identified that ensures a physical inventory is performed as required. 



CITY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 

Year ended September 30, 2014 
 

- 250 - 
 

Effect:  

The City’s lack of adhering to the equipment requirement of performing a physical inventory could result in a 
loss of funding from the granting agency. 

Cause:  

The department responsible for managing this program failed to perform the required inventory within the past 
two years. 

Recommendation:  

We recommend the City of McAllen establish physical inventory policies and procedures to ensure compliance 
with the equipment requirement. The policy and procedures should include details of preparing for and 
executing a physical inventory count, and resolving differences between quantities determined by the physical 
inspection and those shown in the accounting records.    

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions:   

Javier Rodriguez, Director of Fiscal Management (Police Department).  We agree to implement the auditor’s 
recommendations. 

 

Completion Date:    Ongoing. 
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